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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 19	 “NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “FINANCIAL LIABILITIES – TRADE PAYABLES”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

Trade Payables

(A)	 Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises – –
(B)	 Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 211.79 211.79
	 (Refer Note No. 49)

TOTAL 211.79 211.79

` Crore
NOTE NO. 20	 “NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “FINANCIAL LIABILITIES – OTHERS”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

i.	 Security Deposit from Vendors 34.44 43.71
ii.	 Deposit from Employees 0.01 0.01
iii.	 Other Liabilities (ROU Lease Liability) 9.44 –

TOTAL 43.89 43.72

` Crore
NOTE NO. 21	 “NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “PROVISIONS”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

Provision for Employee Benefits
i.	 Leave Salary Encashment 101.25 98.95
ii.	 Post Retirement Medical Benefits 87.03 71.64
iii.	 Gratuity – 10.57
iv.	 Long Service Award 0.27 0.30

TOTAL 188.55 181.46

` Crore
NOTE NO. 22	 “NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

a.	D eferred Tax Liability:
i.	 Depreciation 286.17 392.47
ii.	 Fair value of Investments 18.06 24.29
iii.	 Revenue from TDR 8.39 8.39
iv.	 Other timing differences 0.77 1.01

TOTAL 313.39 426.16
b.	D eferred Tax Asset:

i.	 Provision for doubtful debts/claims/advances 11.95 16.49
ii.	 Provision for obsolescence of stores 4.14 9.65
iii.	 Provision for diminution in value of investments 7.07 12.37
iv.	 Expenditure allowable on payment basis 62.22 92.91
v.	 MAT Credit – 6.01
vi.	 Other timing differences 31.07 8.40

TOTAL 116.45 145.83
Net Deferred Tax Liability 196.94 280.33
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 23	 “OTHER LIABILITIES” AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

I	NON  CURRENT
i.	 Advance rent Received 23 A 4.44 6.99
ii.	 Government Grants 23 B 0.98 1.28
iii.	 Deferred Deposit 33.69 30.01

TOTAL OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES (I) 39.11 38.28
II	C URRENT

(a)	 Revenue received in advance
	 Income received in advance from Customers 48.40 39.98
(b)	O ther Advances
	 Retention money 12.50 12.50
(c)	O ther Liabilities:

i.	 Advance Rent Received 23 A 2.55 2.55
ii.	 Government Grants 23 B 0.30 0.32
iii.	 Deferred Deposit 4.59 4.53
iv.	 Statutory Dues:

a.	 Withholding taxes 13.08 12.69
b.	 GST Payable – 0.18

v.	 Others (Refer Note No. 53) 0.09 0.07
20.61 20.34

TOTAL OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (II) 81.51 72.82

` Crore
NOTE NO. 23A	 “ADVANCE RENT RECEIVED” AS AT 

31.03.2020
AS AT 

31.03.2019
At at 1st April 9.54 12.34
Received / (Repaid) during the year – (0.46)
Released to the statement of profit and loss 2.55 2.34
As at 31st March 6.99 9.54
Current 2.55 2.55
Non-current 4.44 6.99

` Crore
NOTE NO. 23B	 “GOVERNMENT GRANTS” AS AT 

31.03.2020
AS AT 

31.03.2019
At at 1st April 1.60 1.41
Received / (Repaid) during the year – 0.49
Released to the statement of profit and loss 0.32 0.30
As at 31st March 1.28 1.60
Current 0.30 0.32
Non-current 0.98 1.28
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 24	 “CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “FINANCIAL LIABILITIES – BORROWINGS”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

(a)	L oans Repayable on Demand
I.	   Secured
	 a.	 From Banks*

i.	 Cash Credit 82.00 18.54
ii.	 Working Capital Demand Loan 1230.66 2398.17

(includes Rupee Loans amounting to ̀  910.66 crore (P.Y. ̀  788.17 crore) from Punjab National Bank 
under Special Banking Arrangement against the subsidy receivables on Urea and P&K Fertilizers 
from Govt of India. The Bank has charged interest at 6.15% per annum which is totally payable by 
Govt. of India (PY 8.20% out of which 7.72% pa paid by Govt of India directly to the Bank). ̀  0.04 
crore pertaining to SBA of year 2018-19 (PY ` 0.16 crore) has been charged as interest expense 
in the statement of Profit and Loss. This loan is secured by hypothecation of subsidy receivables 
upto ̀  910.66 crore (PY ̀  788.17 crore) from Govt. of India. This loan is repayable within 60 days.

Total Secured 1312.66 2416.71
II.	 Unsecured:
	 a.	 From Banks

i.	 Foreign currency loans from banks-Buyers Credit ** 215.21 118.76
ii.	 Rupee loans 1349.00 –

1564.21 118.76
	 b.	O ther Loans

Commercial Paper *** 1200.00 350.00
Total Unsecured 2764.21 468.76
TOTAL 4076.87 2885.47

*Cash Credit and Working Capital Demand Loan from banks carrying interest in the range of 7.00% to 8.55% 
per annum are secured by hypothecation of entire Company’s current assets including all stocks, book debts and 
other moveable assets, both present and future.
**Unsecured Foreign Currency Loans from Banks are in the form of Buyers Credit and carry interest in the 
range of 2.00% to 3.00% per annum. These loans are repayable within 180 days.
***Unsecured Commercial Papers carry interest in the range of 5.48% to 7.55% per annum. The outstanding 
commercial papers are repayable by June 2020.

` Crore
NOTE NO. 25	 “CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “FINANCIAL LIABILITIES – TRADE PAYABLES”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

Trade Payables (including Acceptances)*
(A) Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 36.81 24.67
(Refer Note No. 53)
(B) Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 959.92 1129.13

TOTAL 996.73 1153.80
Trade payables are normally non-interest bearing and are usually settled within 30-days from the date of receipt 
of invoice unless they are contracted with specific credit terms as applicable.
* Acceptances include arrangements where operational suppliers of goods and services are initially paid by 
banks while the Company continues to recognise the liability till settlement with the banks which are normally 
effected within a period of 180 days amounting to ` 48.51 crores (P.Y. ` 65.06 crores)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 26	 “CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “FINANCIAL LIABILITIES – OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

i.	 Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note No. 18) 145.24 151.12

ii.	 Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 3.74 7.44

iii.	 Unclaimed dividend * 0.87 0.88

iv.	 Creditors on Capital Account 76.61 51.10

v.	 Standing Deposit from Customers 45.55 47.33

vi.	 Trade Deposit from Customers 73.88 76.45

vii.	 Earnest Money Deposit & Security Deposit from Vendors 78.62 56.11

viii.	 Other Payables 7.84 6.72

ix.	 Ex-gratia & employee benefits 48.22 48.87

x.	 Derivatives not designated as Hedges (MTM loss payable) – 5.16

xi.	 ROU Lease Liability 1.97 –

TOTAL 482.54 451.18

* No amounts are due & payable to Investor Education & Protection Fund

` Crore

NOTE NO. 27	 “CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “PROVISIONS”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

Provision for Employee Benefits

i.   Leave Salary Encashment 99.32 111.32

ii.   Post Retirement Medical Benefits 7.13 6.10

iii.   Ex-gratia / Gratuity Payable 16.53 24.37

iv.   Payable to Provident Fund 19.07 –

v.   Long Service Award 0.09 0.04

TOTAL 142.14 141.83

` Crore

NOTE NO. 28	 “CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES NET”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

Provision for Taxation less Advance tax 53.25 –

TOTAL 53.25 –
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 29	 “REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS” Year Ended 
31.03.2020

Year Ended 
31.03.2019

1.	 Sales
	A .	M anufactured Products 29A

Fertilizers 2369.57 2214.11
Industrial Products 660.94 955.16

3030.51 3169.27
	 B.	 Bought-out Products 29A

Fertilizers 642.74 252.85
Net Sales 3673.25 3422.12

2.	O ther Operating Revenues
Subsidy on Urea & Complex Fertilizers* 29B 6000.73 5447.18
Sale of Scrap 1.87 3.46
Management Fees -For Services rendered 10.67 9.65
Margin on Tie- ups 11.43 3.06

TOTAL 6024.70 5463.35
	 Revenue from Operations 9697.95 8885.47

*Subsidy includes ` 320.33 crore (P.Y. ` 48.13 crore) in respect of earlier years, determined during 
the year

` Crore
NOTE NO. 29A	 “SALES - PRODUCT WISE BREAK-UP” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

1	 Manufactured
	A .	 Fertilizers

Urea
Suphala 15 : 15 : 15 1119.48 943.82
Urea / Neem coated Urea 1216.55 1235.89
Others 33.54 34.40

2369.57 2214.11

	 B.	 Industrial Products
Ammonia 123.41 240.84
Methylamines 72.47 89.15
Ammonium Nitrate Melt 249.73 296.10
Others 208.37 329.07

660.94 955.16

2	 Bought-out Products
Imported Di Ammonium Phosphate 350.61 122.90
Imported Muriate of Potash 155.46 3.88
Imported NPK 10:26:26 122.48 114.94
Others 14.19 11.13

642.74 252.85
TOTAL 3673.25 3422.12
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 29B	 “SUBSIDY ON UREA & COMPLEX FERTILIZERS” Year Ended 
31.03.2020

Year Ended 
31.03.2019

1.	M anufactured Fertilizers
Price 5250.17 4839.17
Freight 443.47 487.95

5693.64 5327.12
2.	 Bought-out Fertilizers

Price 265.44 96.10
Freight 41.65 23.96

307.09 120.06
TOTAL 6000.73 5447.18

` Crore
NOTE NO. 30	 “OTHER INCOME” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

1.	I nterest Income
On Loans to Employees 0.08 0.13
On Deposits with Bank and Others 3.42 3.48
On Income Tax Refund 2.68 5.11
On Sales Tax Refund – 4.74
From Customers 3.71 3.39

From Others (includes ` 30.94 crore dues of DOF) 31.52 0.92
TOTAL 41.41 17.77

2.	D ividend Income 0.20 0.32
3.	O ther Income

Profit on sale of fixed assets (Net) 0.10 2.83
Bad debts recovered 2.16 1.76
Rent received, recovery of electricity etc. 39.74 33.38
Lease compensation of railway siding 0.21 0.21
Government Grants (Refer Note No. 23B) 0.32 0.30
Amortisation of Deferred Deposits 6.13 4.79
Miscellaneous Income 38.40 20.64

87.06 63.91
Less: Transfer to Research and Development Expenses (Refer Note No. 37C) (0.02) (0.01)

TOTAL 128.65 81.99

` Crore
NOTE NO. 31	 “COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Raw Materials 31A 3671.08 3767.90
Packing Materials 105.15 112.11
Less : Transferred to Research & Development (Refer Note No. 37C) (0.01) –

TOTAL 3776.22 3880.01
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 31A	 “ITEMWISE BREAKUP OF MATERIALS CONSUMED” Year Ended 
31.03.2020

Year Ended 
31.03.2019

RAW MATERIALS
Rock Phosphate 74.08 67.73
Di-Ammonium Phosphate 7.49 –
Mono-Ammonium Phosphate 306.58 337.10
Muriate of Potash 316.03 264.66
Natural Gas 2873.76 3000.97
Others 93.14 97.44

SUB TOTAL 3671.08 3767.90
Less : Transferred to Research and Development (Refer Note No. 37C) (0.01) –

TOTAL 3671.07 3767.90

` Crore
NOTE NO. 32	 “PURCHASES OF STOCK IN TRADE” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Imported Di Ammonium Phosphate 166.09 429.02
Imported Muriate of Potash 10.00 212.17
NPK 10:26:26 137.90 143.73
Others 18.64 13.23

SUB TOTAL 332.63 798.15
Less: Transferred to Plant for internal consumption

Imported DAP / MOP (38.20) –
TOTAL 294.43 798.15

` Crore
NOTE NO. 33	 “CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF 
	 FINISHED GOODS & STOCK IN TRADE”

Year Ended 
31.03.2020

Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Opening Stock
Finished Goods 33A 387.72 278.96
Intermediary Products 35.41 33.57
By-Products 4.42 7.02
Stock in trade 33A 497.53 0.26

Sub-Total 925.08 319.81
Closing Stock

Finished Goods 33B 283.83 387.72
Intermediary Products 28.90 35.41
By-Products 5.77 4.42
Stock in trade 33B 3.33 497.53

Sub-Total 321.83 925.08
TOTAL 603.25 (605.27)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 33A	 “OPENING STOCK - PRODUCT WISE BREAK-UP” Year Ended 
31.03.2020

Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Finished Goods
1.	M anufactured
	A .	 Fertilizers

Urea (Trombay) 22.63 32.50
Urea (Thal) 172.13 147.53
Complex Fertilizers 170.14 77.48
Others 16.40 19.92

	 B.	I ndustrial Products
Methanol 1.44 0.03
Concentrated Nitric Acid 0.20 0.10
Ammonium Bi-carbonate 0.27 0.21
Sodium Nitrate 0.51 0.25
Sodium Nitrite 0.57 0.36
Methylamines 0.93 0.38
Ammonium Nitrate Melt 0.02 0.02
Dimethyl Acetamide 1.71 0.03
Argon Gas / Liquid 0.69 0.06
Formic Acid 0.07 0.08
Others 0.01 0.01

387.72 278.96
2.	 Bought-out Products
	 Fertilizers

Imported Di Ammonium Phosphate 276.90 0.05
Imported Muriate of Potash 212.17 –
Imported NKP 20:20:0 8.46 –
Sulphate of Potash – 0.11
Others – 0.10

497.53 0.26
TOTAL 885.25 279.22

` Crore
NOTE NO. 33B	 “CLOSING STOCK - PRODUCT WISE BREAK-UP” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Finished Goods
1.	M anufactured
	A .	 Fertilizers

Urea (Trombay) 46.26 22.63
Urea (Thal) 130.17 172.13
Complex Fertilizers 87.24 170.14
Others 15.92 16.40

	 B.	I ndustrial Products
Methanol 0.12 1.44
Concentrated Nitric Acid 0.24 0.20
Ammonium Bi-carbonate – 0.27
Sodium Nitrate 0.22 0.51
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 33B	 “CLOSING STOCK - PRODUCT WISE BREAK-UP” Year Ended 
31.03.2020

Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Sodium Nitrite 0.02 0.57
Methylamines 1.03 0.93
Ammonium Nitrate Melt 0.02 0.02
Dimethyl Formamide 1.17 –
Dimethyl Acetamide 0.08 1.71
Argon Gas / Liquid 0.39 0.69
Formic Acid 0.95 0.07
Others – 0.01

283.83 387.72
2.	 Bought-out Products

Fertilizers
Imported Di Ammonium Phosphate 1.55 276.90
Imported Muriate of Potash 0.77 212.17
Imported NPK 20:20:0 0.09 8.46
Others 0.92 –

3.33 497.53
TOTAL 287.16 885.25

` Crore
NOTE NO. 34	 “EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 520.90 494.11
Contribution to Provident Fund and other funds 69.51 50.27
Contribution to Gratuity Fund 8.41 25.40
Workmen and Staff Welfare Expenses 52.40 51.68

651.22 621.46
Less: Transferred to Research and Development (Refer Note No. 37C) (1.97) (2.31)
Share recoverable from Thal Ammonia Extension and Others (31.99) (27.74)

(33.96) (30.05)
TOTAL 617.26 591.41

` Crore
NOTE NO. 35	 “FINANCE COSTS” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

i.	 Interest
a.	 Term Loans-From Banks 29.30 34.24
b.	 Working capital from Banks 168.07 95.03
c.	 Other loans and deposits 5.99 11.34

ii.	 Interest on Deferred deposits 5.36 4.31
iii.	 Other Borrowing & Finance Costs 1.55 0.80
iv.	 Exchange differences regarded as an adjustment to borrowing costs; 26.65 10.13
v.	 Interest Expense ROU Asset 0.90 –

TOTAL 237.82 155.85
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 36	 “DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSES / IMPAIRMENT” Year Ended 
31.03.2020

Year Ended 
31.03.2019

i.	 Depreciation on Property Plant and Equipment 167.34 154.73
ii.	 Impairment reversal on Property Plant and Equipment 2.86 –
iii.	 Depreciation on Investment Property 0.19 0.16
iv.	 Amortisation on Intangible Assets 0.99 1.14
Total Depreciation / Amortisation Impairment provided during the year 171.38 156.03
Less : Under Research and Development (Refer Note No. 37 C) (0.34) (0.34)
As reported under Statement of Profit & Loss: 171.04 155.69

` Crore
NOTE NO. 37	 “OTHER EXPENSES” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Stores and Spares 34.20 33.77
Power and fuel 2758.87 2694.99
Water Charges 62.18 68.06
Repairs and Maintenance 37A 133.11 124.96
Freight and Handling Charges 689.43 687.05
Rent 16.70 12.15
Rates and Taxes 16.00 19.02
Insurance 27.50 10.08
Miscellaneous Expenses 37B 85.55 129.91
Less: Transferred to Research & Development Expenses (Refer Note No. 37C) (0.06) (0.18)

TOTAL 3823.48 3779.81

` Crore
NOTE NO. 37A	 “REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Plant and Machinery 93.74 86.74
Buildings 21.16 19.75
Other Assets 18.52 18.58

133.42 125.07
Less: Transferred to Research & Development Expenses (Refer Note No. 37C) (0.31) (0.11)

TOTAL 133.11 124.96

` Crore
NOTE NO. 37B	 “MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Security expenses-Factory and Others 49.10 43.54
Electricity Charges-Township and Offices 7.94 7.40
Advertisement 0.76 1.74
Bank Charges 1.43 1.01
Promotion and Publicity 5.20 5.68
Hire Charges for vehicles 3.82 4.69
Travelling expenses 4.20 3.58
Entertainment Expenses 0.05 0.03
Research and Development expenses 37C 5.06 3.20
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 37B	 “MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES” Year Ended 
31.03.2020

Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Loss on Fixed Assets Sold /Discarded 3.31 0.94
Losses/ Damages and other amounts written off 0.76 –
Foreign exchange Loss/(Gain) (0.52) 24.54
Corporate Social Responsibility expenses 3.42 3.88
Provision for Doubtful Debts/ Claims/ Advances 4.73 24.58
Provision for obsolescence of stores 3.29 5.41
Bad debts written off – 2.89
Provision of earlier years no longer required (6.24) (5.66)
Liabilities for expenses no longer required (10.79) (23.47)
Recovery of share of common expenses (32.64) (22.02)
Other expenses ** 42.67 47.95

TOTAL 85.55 129.91
** Includes Directors’ sitting fees C.Y. ` 18,95,000, P.Y. ` 16,50,000

` Crore
NOTE NO. 37C	 “RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Salaries and Staff Welfare Expenses 1.97 2.31
Repairs and Maintenance 0.31 0.11
Depreciation 0.34 0.34
Direct Research Expenditure 2.39 0.27
Other Expenses 0.04 0.12
Handling charges 0.02 0.06
Materials Consumed 0.01 –

SUB TOTAL 5.08 3.21
Less: Transferred from Other Income (0.02) (0.01)

TOTAL 5.06 3.20

` Crore
NOTE NO. 38	 “EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Fair valuation (Gain) / Loss - Transferable Development Right 100.17 (23.44)
TOTAL 100.17 (23.44)

(Refer Note No. 65)

` Crore
NOTE NO. 39	 “OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (18.54) (3.79)
Fair Value Equity instruments (IPL Shares) 2.27 12.61

(16.27) 8.82
Less: Income tax / Deferred tax relating to above items 10.90 (3.07)

TOTAL (5.37) 5.75
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EXPLANATORY INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020 ` Crore

NOTE NO. 40	 “DISCLOSURE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 
	LIA BILITIES AS PER IND AS 107”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

I)	 FINANCIAL ASSETS
	 a.	 BREAKUP OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THORUGH OCI

Investments - fully paid shares 72.26 69.99
TOTAL 72.26 69.99

	 b.	 BREAKUP OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT & LOSS
Derivatives not designated as hedges 2.67 0.14
Transfer Development Rights 31.23 –

TOTAL 33.90 0.14
	 c.	 BREAKUP OF FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT AMORTISED COST

Loans 27.03 26.28
Others Financial Assets 1652.53 43.74
Trade Receivables 4551.23 4552.54
Cash and Cash Equivalents 2.07 3.59
Other Bank Balances 1.29 1.27

6234.15 4627.42
	 d.	 BREAKUP OF FINANCIAL ASSETS CARRIED AT COST

Investments - Joint ventures 159.51 16.35
Total 159.51 16.35

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETS 6499.82 4713.90
II)	 FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
	 a.	 BREAKUP OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT & LOSS

Derivative not designated as hedges – 5.16
TOTAL – 5.16

	 b.	 BREAKUP OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES CARRIED AT AMORTISED COST
Borrowings 4677.78 3310.58
Trade Payables 1208.52 1365.59
Deposit from Employees 0.01 0.01
Current maturities of long term debt 145.24 151.12
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 3.74 7.44
Unclaimed dividend 0.87 0.88
Creditors on Capital Account 76.61 51.10
Standing Deposit from Customers 45.55 47.33
Trade Deposit from Customers 73.88 76.45
Earnest Money Deposit & Security Deposit from Vendors 113.06 99.82
Ex-gratia & employee benefits 48.22 48.87
Other Payables - Tie ups 7.84 6.72
ROU Lease Liability 11.41 –

Total 6412.73 5165.91
TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 6412.73 5171.07

The above referred carrying values of Financial Assets and Liabilities approximate its fair value as at the 
balance sheet date
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EXPLANATORY INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

41.		C  ontingent Liabilities not provided for:
41.1	 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts to the extent ascertainable (Interest cannot be estimated 

reliably) and not provided for net of payment/liability provided:-
` Crore

Sr. 
No

Particulars As at 
31.03.2020

As at 
31.03.2019

1 Invoices/ debit notes and claims raised by GAIL(India) Ltd.
a Increased gas transmission charges for ONGC pipeline. Stay order obtained from Mumbai High 

Court and directed to resolve through arbitration.
64.30 64.30

b Levy of Market priced gas differential for use of APM/Domestic Gas for Non-fertilizer Non-
Urea operations (Refer Note no. 49)

1231.05 1231.05

c For non-submission for FICC certified gas utilization data 39.39 39.39
Sub total 1334.74 1334.74

2 Claims on the Company not acknowledged as debts by Contractors / Suppliers/ Arbitrators etc. 81.83 84.74
3 Demands raised by various authorities that may arise in respect of matters in appeal

Excise Duty (D) (Refer note no 41.1.1) 67.49 28.38
Excise Duty (S) 20.10 29.87
Sales Tax 6.45 5.46
Income Tax 20.08 18.95
Service Tax (D) 7.24 31.25
Service Tax (S) 5.59 7.36
Custom Duty (D) 80.93 80.93
Custom Duty (secured by Bank Guarantee)(Refer note no 41.1.2) 25.62 25.62

4 Water charges claimed by Municipal Corporation of Greater Mumbai(Refer note no 41.1.3) 38.79 36.86
5 Claims preferred by local authorities 8.37 8.37

GRAND TOTAL 1697.23 1692.53

		  (D) – Demands raised / (S) – Show cause notice issued.

41.1.1	 Includes an amount of ` 24.82 crore (P.Y. ` 24.82 crore) towards duty, interest and penalty relating to purchase of 
Naphtha at concessional rate of excise duty for the purposes other than mentioned in the exemption notification 
for the period November-1996 to October-2005. The demand for the period upto February-2005 for ` 21.28 crore 
(P.Y. ` 21.28 crore) has been appealed against by the Company and the matter is resting with the Honorable 
Supreme Court, which is yet to be heard. For the balance demand pertaining to subsequent period (i.e March 2005), 
amounting to ` 3.54 crore order has been stayed by CESTAT, which has been appealed by the department to High 
Court. Pending hearing, no provision is considered necessary.

41.1.2	 The demand of duty is secured by Bank Guarantees amounting to ` 29.07 crore and the Company has filed an 
appeal against the same before the bench of CESTAT, which was heard during the year and a favorable order is 
expected. Hence no provision is considered.

41.1.3	 Demand of ̀  33.48 crore raised by Municipal Corporation of Greater Mumbai (BMC) towards additional sewerage 
charges levied from 05-04-1987 are disputed by the Company in a Writ Petition filed in Bombay High Court. The 
Honorable High Court vide its interim Order dated 10-11-1992 has granted stay on recovery of the demand for 
the period up to the date of the Order and directed the Company to pay sewerage charges from the date of the 
order which is being paid by the Company. The matter has been disposed off by the High Court and the Company 
approached Supreme Court. Supreme Court has now directed the Bombay High Court to hear the matter and decide 
on merits based on facts of the case. The Stay granted on the said matter continues.

		  As a part of an agreement entered into with BMC for obtaining raw sewerage, the Company has paid an interest 
free deposit of ` 16.00 crore to BMC representing approximately 50% of the disputed demand which would 
be adjustable against the disputed demand in case the Court rules in favor of BMC. No provision is considered 
necessary for the disputed demand of ` 33.48 crore as the claim of BMC is not tenable.
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41.1.4	 With reference to additional demand received as per orders of Sub Divisional Officer (SDO) Mumbai Suburban 
District and as revised by Tahsildar, towards Non Agriculture (NA) Tax and 100% Increase in Land Revenue 
(ILR), Company has recognized a liability of ` 22.00 crore in earlier years, against which ` 21.48 crore has been 
paid. As per the notices received, Company may also be subjected to pay additional NA tax and ILR for any future 
revision in the same. Company has been advised by its solicitors to appeal against the said demand as the same is 
not tenable.

41.1.5	 Owing to non-compliance of Corporate Governance requirements as mandated by SEBI, with reference to 
composition of Independent Directors in the Board and appointment of Woman Independent Director,	 Company 
is in receipt of notice of penalty aggregating to ` 0.76 crore from the stock exchanges (BSE & NSE). Since the 
appointment of Directors is done by Government of India, Company had approached its Administrative Ministry 
for ensuring the compliance and has also approached the stock exchanges for condonation/waiver of the penalty. 
Company is confident that this penalty would be waived.

41.2	 The amount of claims in respect of legal cases filed against the Company for labour matters relating to regular 
employees and not acknowledged as debts is not ascertainable.

41.3	 In respect of clause 41.1 to 41.2 above, it is not practicable for the Company to estimate the closure of these issues 
and the consequential timing of cash flows, if any.

42.		C  apital Commitments (Net of Advances):
` Crore

Particulars As at 
31.03.2020

As at 
31.03.2019

Capital Expenditure Commitments 56.34 659.43
Commitment Towards Investments in JV (Talcher Fertilizers Ltd.) 1024.69 –

43.		D  isclosures relating to Finance Lease:
		  Relating to 416 Wagons leased to Indian Railways “Under Own your Wagons Scheme”

` Crore
Particulars Year ended 

31.03.2020
Year ended 
31.03.2019

Minimum Lease Payments
Not Later than one year – 0.35
Later than one year but not later than 5 years – –
Later than 5 years – –
Total – 0.35
Amount representing finance income earned during the year 0.01 0.08
Adjusted Against Lease Receivable during year 0.34 0.62
Total 0.35 0.70
Present Value of MLP
Not Later than one year – 0.34
Later than one year but not later than 5 years – –
Later than 5 years – –
Total – 0.34
Unearned Finance Income – 0.01
Expected Credit Loss on above NIL NIL

		  The lease agreement with Railways has expired during the year and action has been initiated for renewal of the 
same. As the wagons are still in the custody of Railways, Company has recognized revenue of ` 0.35 crore for 
the period after completion of finance lease based on the minimum lease rentals expected to be negotiated with 
Railways. As the terms of lease are yet to be finalized the said transaction is now treated as Short-term Operating Lease.
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44.		  Formalities relating to transfer of certain immovable and other properties from Fertilizer Corporation of India 
Limited to the Company on reorganization of the former in 1978 are not yet completed. Out of property cards for a 
total area of 30,44,530 Sq. meters (P.Y. 30,89,013 Sq. meters), property cards for 3,78,321 Sq. meters (P.Y. 3,78,321 
Sq. meters) are yet to be transferred in the name of the Company. The Company is in the process of transferring 
the title deeds.

45.		  Out of total area of 50,52,476 Sq. meters area at Thal Unit, the title deeds relating to area of 32,27,573 Sq. meters 
(P.Y. 32,27,573 Sq. meters) area are in the name of the Company. The balance title deeds w.r.t 18,24,903 Sq meter 
of land are in the process of being transferred in the name of Company. The capitalization of Freehold land at Thal 
Unit includes land at Kihim having carrying cost of ` 0.02 crore, pending execution of documents and transfer of 
title deeds in the name of Company, due to dispute.

46.		  Balance of subsidy receivables including subsidy receivable from Government recognized on estimated basis are 
subject to confirmation. Some of the balances of trade payables, current liabilities, loans and advances are subject 
to confirmation / reconciliation and consequential adjustments if any.

47.		  The Company is eligible to receive subsidy from Fertilizer Industry Co-Ordination Committee (FICC) / Department 
of Fertilizers (DOF) on Urea, Phosphatic and Potassic (P & K) Fertilizers at the rates notified from time to time.

		  Subsidy is further adjusted for escalations/de-escalations in the cost of inputs and other costs, as estimated by 
the management based on the prescribed norms in line with known policy parameters. Accordingly the subsidy 
adjusted on account of this escalations/de-escalations basis for the year amounts to ` 95.74 crore refundable to 
FICC/DOF (PY ` 423.49 crore receivable). Further considering the notification issued by DoF dated 30th March 
2020, removing the ambiguity in respect of eligible compensation of fixed costs effective from 2nd April, 2014 
under Modifed NPS III, Company has recognized subsidy income based on the assessment of its eligibility and 
also provided for certain anticipated recoveries by DoF towards final adjustments of subsidy on NPK fertilizers 
and other subsidy receivables, recognized earlier on estimated basis, being doubtful of settlement. The net impact 
of the same works out to ` 342.92 crore receivable from FICC/DoF.

48.		  The matter relating to the issue of unintended benefits accruing to units using domestic gas for manufacture of 
nutrient “N” has been referred and is pending before an Inter-Ministerial Committee (IMC) of Government of India 
(GoI). It is expected that a decision on the matter would be taken soon by the IMC. Initially subsidy amounting to 
` 198.94 Crore was withheld by DOF, which has been released in full upon submission of its claims along with 
bank guarantee for equivalent amount by the Company.

49.		  Consequent to Gas pooling being made applicable to Fertilizer (Urea) sector w.e.f. June 1, 2015, it is expected 
that a differential pricing of gas may be made applicable for non-urea usage. Company has represented to DoF 
for maintaining supply of domestic gas for P&K fertilizers and chemicals. Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas 
(MoPNG) vide its order No. L-13013/3/2012-GP-I, dated: December 16, 2015 has directed GAIL (India) Limited 
to levy a higher gas price (i.e. the highest rate of RLNG used for production of urea) for gas consumed in non-
urea operations. As the matter relating to the same is pending before the IMC for decision, the Company has 
represented that any decision on the same be taken only upon the issue being settled by the IMC of GoI. However, 
pending finalization of price payable as per the said letter, Company is recognizing liability based on the difference 
between domestic gas price and pool / market price of gas for its non-urea operations. The difference is provided 
considering domestic gas first for urea operations on cumulative basis for the year and the balance if any, for non-
urea operations. Accordingly, there is no impact for the year ended March 31, 2020. The Company has recognized 
a liability of ̀  211.79 Crore for the period commencing from June 1, 2015 to March 31, 2020 (` 211.79 Crore upto 
March 31, 2019) on this account.

		  The Company has entered into a contract for procurement of market priced gas for non-urea operations at Trombay 
unit, effective from May 16, 2016.
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		  Pursuant to the said order, GAIL has sought a differential levy amounting to ` 1442.84 Crore for the period 
commencing from July 1, 2006 till March 31, 2017 and has initiated arbitration proceedings towards non-payment 
of the same. The Company has represented this matter to Department of Fertilizers for dispute resolution as the 
matter relating to the same is pending before the IMC of GoI. The said matter has been referred to Administrative 
Mechanism for Resolution of CPSEs Disputes (AMRCD).

50.		  On 20th and 22nd March, 2019 respectively, both the Gas Turbine Generator (GTG) plants at Thal unit stopped 
operating. Upon failure, the matter was taken up with the LSTK contractor who had supplied the turbines for 
repair, as the same were covered under warranties. The matter was referred by the LSTK contractor for repairs to 
the Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) who had indicated a total estimated expenditure of about 98 Million 
SEK (` 74.51 crore excluding taxes and duties).

		  In the best interests of the Company, based on the acceptance of Notice to Proceed as proposed by the LSTK 
contractor, the equipments have been sent for repair to the foreign Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) 
which are to be received back as at the Balance Sheet date. As per the Notice to proceed, the final settlement of 
the repair costs can either be decided mutually or in the event not agreed upon, the settlement of disputes clause 
as per contract can be invoked.

		  As the equipments are covered under warranties, the Company is of the view that no additional costs would devolve 
on the Company. Further the Company has initiated arbitration proceedings towards the LSTK contractor citing 
loss of profits owing to higher energy costs, higher maintenance costs etc.

		  In the meanwhile, the Company has procured a Gas generator and commissioned a Gas Turbine Generator plant 
in August 2019 to mitigate future losses.

51.		D  isclosures relating to Impairment of Non-Financial Assets:
		  Company has carried out imp airment testing of its Cash Generating Units (CGU) which is carried out considering 

an estimated useful life of 10 Years for arriving at the value in use. In determining value in use for the CGU, the 
cash flows were discounted at a rate of 8% on pre-tax basis.

		  The status of provision made towards impairment is as under:-

		  For the year 2019-20

` Crore

Sr 
No. Plant

Provision for 
Impairment 
made during 

the year

Reversal of 
Impairment 

Provision made 
during the year

Balance in 
Provision 

account at the 
end of the year

Recoverable 
Amount

Reportable Segments 
In which these Plants/

Assets are used

1 Dimethyl Formamide 0.05 – 0.10 0.43 Chemical Segment
2 Carbon Mono Oxide 2.81 – 10.87 1.99 Chemical Segment

Total 2.86 – 10.97 2.42

For the year 2018-19	 ` Crore

Sr 
No. Plant

Provision for 
Impairment 
made during 

the year

Reversal of 
Impairment 

Provision made 
during the year

Balance in 
Provision 

account at the 
end of the year

Recoverable 
Amount

Reportable Segments 
In which these Plants/

Assets are used

1 Dimethyl Formamide – – 0.05 0.43 Chemical Segment
2 Carbon Mono Oxide – – 8.06 1.84 Chemical Segment

Total – – 8.11 2.27

		  The recoverable amount of ` 2.42 crore PY (`2.27 crore) was based on value in use and was determined at the 
level of the CGU.
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		  Higher raw material prices coupled with steep fall in realizations warranted in carrying out a review of the recoverable 
amount of the said plants and related equipment’s resulting in provision towards impairment.

		  Key assumptions based on which recoverable amount is most sensitive.
		  The calculation of value in use for the identified CGU is most sensitive to the following assumptions.

		  1.	 Selling Prices
			   The extant selling prices are considered for forecasting cash flow estimates for arriving at the value in use. 

The selling prices are assumed to be kept constant in future year projections.

		  2.	D iscount Rate
			   Discount rate is estimated considering the entity’s incremental borrowing rate which is arrived at considering 

the present debt structure etc.

		  3.	 Sales Quantity
			   The sales projections have been worked out considering the present demand scenario and the operating capacities 

of the plants.

		  4.	 Raw Material Prices - Considering current prices of raw materials.
			   The estimates of cash flows are done considering current raw material prices at the reporting date and the same 

are assumed to be remain constant in the future year projections as any increase in the same is expected to be 
passed on to the market.

52.		  Inventory includes stores and spares declared as surplus with further classification as disposable surplus. Since 
such surplus stores on disposal may not fetch full book value a suitable provision has been made. Consequent 
to full provision for impairment made in respect of plants referred in Note. No. 51, Company has also provided 
towards inventory of specific spares relating to the said plants. The value of such inventory and provision towards 
the same is as under:-

` Crore
Sr. No. Particulars As on 31.03.2020 As on 31.03.2019

A 1 Surplus Stores and Spares 18.47 21.05
2 Disposable Surplus 15.38 17.97
3 Specific stores and spares of impaired assets 10.86 10.88
4 Material Stolen 0.21 0.21

B 1 Provision made for Disposable Surplus 14.61 17.07
2 Provision reckoned on stores and spares for impaired assets 10.31 10.34
3 Provision for Material Stolen 0.21 0.21

Total 25.14 27.62

53.		  Disclosures required under Section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006 
is as under:

` Crore
Sr. 
No. Particulars As at 

31.03.2020
As at 

31.03.2019
1 Principal amount remaining unpaid 36.81 24.67
2 Interest due thereon NIL 0.01

3
Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act,2006 ,along with the amount of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during the year.

NIL NIL

4
Interest due and payable for the period of delay making payment (which have been paid 
but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified 
under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

5 Interest accrued and remaining unpaid NIL NIL
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` Crore
Sr. 
No. Particulars As at 

31.03.2020
As at 

31.03.2019

6

Further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date 
when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose 
of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under Section 23 of the Micro, Small and 
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

NIL NIL

		  Dues to Micro and small enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the 
basis of information given by such parties/available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

54.		  Based on the nature of business activities undertaken by the Company and requirement of IND AS 108, 
following are the operating segments identified
Segment Nature of activities
Fertilizers Production and supply of various grades of Fertilizers for agricultural use.
Chemicals Production of various chemicals and supply to diverse industries
Trading Represents fertilizers imported / locally sourced and marketed for agricultural use.

		  The necessary disclosures as required under IND AS 108 are given in Annexure-1.

		  The segment revenue and segment results are arrived at based on the revenues generated out of sale of such products 
and the costs attributable are reduced for arriving at the segment results. Assets are allocated to operating segments 
based on the intended use for which the asset was primarily installed. Liabilities are allocated to operating segments 
to which it relates to.

		  No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.

55.		N  on Current Asset Held for Sale:
` Crore

Particulars As at 
31.03.2020

As at 
31.03.2019

Plant & Machinery & other assets 0.57 131.97
Total 0.57 131.97

		  Company intends to dispose of items classified under Asset held for sale in next 12 months. Efforts are underway 
to dispose of the items to other Fertilizer Companies/User of such assets.

		  Fair value of TDRs amounting to ` 131.39 crore in previous year included in the above has been reclassified to 
investment, as elaborated in note no 65.

56.		  Disclosures under IND AS 24 on Related Party Transactions are given below:
56.1	 Transactions with Joint Controlled Entities
		  a)	 Relationship
			   JOINT CONTROLLED ENTITIES

` Crore

Name of the Company No of Shares Country of 
Incorporation

% of Ownership interest as at
31.03.2020 31.03.2019

1)	 FACT-RCF BUILDING 
PRODUCTS LTD. (FRBL) *

32870000 of ` 10 each India 50.00 50.00

2)	 URVARAK VIDESH LTD.(UVL) * 180002 of ` 10 each India 33.33 33.33
3)	 TALCHER FERTILIZERS 

LIMITED (TFL) #
159504807 of ` 10 each India 33.33 33.33

			   * Consequent to full provision recognized towards the investments made in FRBL and UVL as per Indian 
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GAAP, the carrying value as on the date of transition has been recognized as deemed cost of investment which 
is NIL as on IND AS transition date .i.e. 1st April 2015.

			   Further URVARAK VIDESH LTD. (UVL) has been declared as Dormant Company on 04.11.2015 by Registrar 
of Companies, New Delhi.

			   # the shareholding is subject to change depending on the final value of the assets transferred by FCIL to Talcher 
Fertilizer Ltd.

		  b)	 Transactions during the year with the above referred related parties:
` Crore

Sr 
No. Particulars Year ended 

31.03.2020
Year ended 
31.03.2019

1 Contribution towards share capital-TFL 143.16 11.32
2 Advances given- FRBL – 19.50
3 Share of Expenses receivable from TFL 2.74 4.45

			   The advances given to FRBL has fully provided for as doubtful

		  c)	 Balance Outstanding:
` Crore

Sr. 
No. Particulars

As at 
31.03.2020

As at 
31.03.2019

Joint Ventures Joint Ventures
1 Advances including advance against pending equity allotment –FRBL * 40.23 40.23
2 Share of Expenses receivable from TFL 7.19 4.45

			   *The same has been fully provided.

			   Company has given guarantee of ` 2.20 crore, PY (` 2.20 crore) for working capital facilities from banks 
on behalf of FRBL. Since such facility has not been availed, no provision towards financial guarantee and 
corresponding asset has been recognized.

56.2	 Transactions with other entities- where Directors are interested:
		  a)	N ame of the entity & transactions
			   Fertilizers and Chemicals Travancore Ltd. (FACT) -
			   i)	 Shri Umesh Dongre Director (Finance) being given the additional charge of Director (Finance) of the said 

entity w.e.f 01st February, 2019 till 28th August, 2019.

			   ii)	 Shri Sudhir Panadare Director (Technical) being given the additional charge of Director (Technical) of 
the said entity w.e.f 04th June 2019 till 30th November, 2019.

			   iii)	 Shri K U Thankachen Director (Marketing) being given the additional charge of Director (Marketing) of 
the said entity w.e.f 01st June, 2019.

` Crore
Sr. 
No Nature of Transaction 2019-20 2018-19

1 Inter corporate Deposit – 25.50
2 Interest earned during the year 2.17 2.01
3 Earnest Money Deposit(EMD) – (0.03)

				    The amount of ` 25.50 crore being the share of contribution of Fertilizers and Chemicals Travancore Ltd 
(FACT) - a 50% JV partner in FACT-RCF Building Products Ltd (FRBL) paid by RCF towards one time 
settlement entered into between FRBL and their bankers resulting in discharge of Corporate Guarantee 
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given by Company to FRBL bankers has been reported under Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD). This ICD 
along with interest outstanding for the half year ending 31st March 2020 amounting to ̀  1.09 crore has not 
been provided for, considering improvement in FACT’s financial position and the Company is confident 
of settlement of the ICD given. FACT is a Government owned Entity and outstanding interest has been 
settled by them in May 2020. Further the Company has entered into an agreement with FACT for the ICD 
given, wherein FACT shall repay the same in five annual equal instalments commencing from December 
2020.

		  b)	D isclosure as required by Regulation 34(3) and 53(f) of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015

` Crore

Sr 
No.

Particulars Current Year Previous Year

Entity in which Directors are 
interested

Amount as on 
31.03.2020

Maximum amount 
outstanding during the 
year ended 31.03.2020

Amount as on 
31.03.2019

Maximum amount 
outstanding during 

the year ended 
31.03.2019

1 Loans and Advances including 
interest to FACT 26.59 26.59 25.50 25.50

		  c)	D isclosure as per Section 186 of the Companies Act 2013
` Crore

Sr 
No. Name of Party Amount as on 

31.03.2020
Amount as on 

31.03.2019
1 FACT (Joint Venture Partner in FRBL) 26.59 25.50

			   The share of FACT towards onetime settlement entered in to with Dena Bank amounting to `25.50 Crore has 
been paid by the Company and is reported as Inter Corporate loan given. The said loan carries an interest in 
accordance with section 186(7) of Companies Act 2013.

56.3	 Key Management Personnel
		  a)	 Whole Time Directors & Company Secretary

(i)	 Shri S. C. Mudgerikar , Chairman & Managing Director from 01.10.2019
(ii)	 Shri Umesh V. Dhatrak, Chairman & Managing Director upto 30.09.2019
(iii)	Shri Sudhir Panadare, Director (Technical) from 18.12.2017
(iv)	Shri Umesh Dongre, Director (Finance) and CFO from 09.02.2018
(v)	 Shri K. U. Thankachen, Director (Marketing) from 11.12.2018
(vi)	Shri Jai Bhagwan Sharma, Company Secretary from 01.10.2017

		  b)	I ndependent Directors
(i)	 Shri Harin Pathak upto 09.06.2019
(ii)	 Shri G. M. Inamdar upto 09.06.2019
(iii)	Shri Suryanarayana Simhadri upto 07.03.2020
(iv)	Prof. Anil Kumar Singh from 07.03.2019
(v)	 Dr. Shambhu Kumar from 07.03.2019

		  c)	 Government Nominee Directors
(i)	 Ms Alka Tiwari from 06.03.2017
(ii)	 Ms Gurveen Sidhu from 18.05.2018



42nd keeef<e&keÀ efjHeesì&/Annual Report 2019-20

152

EXPLANATORY INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

		D  etails relating to parties referred above:
		  Remuneration:

` Crore

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2020

Year ended 
31.03.2019

Shri S. C. Mudgerikar 0.25 –
Shri Umesh V. Dhatrak 0.90 0.55
Shri Sudhir Panadare 0.51 0.55
Shri Umesh Dongre 0.48 0.42
Shri K. U. Thankachen 0.47 0.13
Shri Jai Bhagwan Sharma 0.26 0.24

Total 2.87 1.89

		  The above amount includes salaries and allowances, contribution to Provident fund, pension etc. and actual payments 
towards leave encashment, if any.

		  The remuneration to key management personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity; leave encashment 
and post-retirement medical benefits as they are determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.

		  There have been no outstanding loans and advances from the above referred parties as at year end.

		  Sitting Fees in case of Independent Directors

` Crore

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2020

Year ended 
31.03.2019

Shri Harin Pathak 0.01 0.04
Shri G. M. Inamdar 0.02 0.06
Shri Suryanarayana Simhadri 0.06 0.06
Prof. Anil Kumar Singh 0.05 –
Dr. Shambhu Kumar 0.05 0.01

Total 0.19 0.17

56.4	 Transaction with other Government related Entities
		  Since Government of India owns 75% of the Company’s equity share capital (under the administrative control of 

Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers), the disclosures relating to transactions with Government controlled entities 
have been reported in accordance with para 26 of IND AS 24.

		  Certain transactions which are individually and collectively significant carried out with Government related entities 
for purchase of Gases, for procurement of Raw Materials / Finished Goods, Assets / Spare parts from Original 
equipment manufacturers etc. the details of which are as under:

` Crore
Name of Entity Nature of Transaction 2019-20 2018-19

Sale of Product/Services during the year
Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited Deposit received for STP Project 11.74 25.32
Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited Renting of Immovable Property 21.63 –
Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited Sale of Industrial chemicals 10.62 –
Indian Oil Corporation Ltd Sale of Industrial chemicals 43.81 25.16
Oil and Natural Gas Corporation Ltd Renting of Immovable Property – 20.83
The Singareni Collieries Co. Ltd. Sale of Industrial chemicals 17.05 10.56
Hindustan Insecticides Limited Sale of fertilizers 20.31 35.46
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` Crore
Name of Entity Nature of Transaction 2019-20 2018-19

Purchase of Product/Services during the year

GAIL (India) Ltd Procurement of Gas / Transportation Charges/
Pool difference payment 5069.52 5104.04

Mangalore Refinery & Petrochemicals Procurement of Sulphur – 21.88
Indian Oil Corporation Ltd Procurement of Gas 81.78 198.22
Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited Procurement of Capital Goods 18.13 105.19
Accounts Receivable
Indian Oil Corporation Ltd Trade & other receivable 11.78 10.19
Hindustan Insecticides Limited Trade & other receivable 1.71 9.76
Accounts Payable
GAIL (India) Ltd Trade & other payables 557.05 314.43
Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited Trade & other payables 6.58 9.93
Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited Trade & other payables 82.12 70.37

		  The above referred transactions have been carried out on arm’s length basis with the said entities.

57.		  Disclosure as per Ind AS 37 on “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” as on 31st March 2020:
` Crore

Sr. 
No. Particulars Balance as on 

01.04.2019 Addition Utilization Reversal Balance as on 
31.03.2020

a) Disputes and Claims, Legal Matters 2.00
(2.00)

–
–

–
–

–
–

2.00
(2.00)

		  Figures in brackets are in respect of previous year.

58.		E  arnings per Share –Basic and Diluted

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2020

Year ended 
31.03.2019

Net profit after tax as per Statement of Profit and loss (` crore) (A) 208.15 139.17

Weighted Average Numbers of Equity Shares for calculating basic EPS (B) 55,16,88,100 55,16,88,100

Basic/Diluted earnings per Share (in Rupees) (Face Value of ` 10/- per share) (A)/(B) 3.77 2.52

EPS from continuing operations 3.77 2.52

59.		  “Financial Reporting of interests in Joint Ventures”
		  The required information is as under:-

		  JOINT CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Name of the Company Country of 
Incorporation

Percentage of ownership 
interest as on

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
1) FACT-RCF BUILDING PRODUCTS LTD. India 50.00 50.00
2) URVARAK VIDESH LTD. India 33.33 33.33
3) TALCHER FERTILIZERS LIMITED India 33.33 33.33
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		  A)	 FACT-RCF BUILDING PRODUCTS LTD:- A Joint venture Company with Fertilizers and Chemicals 
Travancore Ltd. (FACT) for manufacture of rapid building materials from Gypsum at Kochi.

			   Summarized financial information of Company’s investment in 
FACT-RCF BUILDING PRODUCTS LTD. (FRBL)

` Crore
Sr 
No. Particulars As at 31.03.2020 

(Unaudited)
As at 31.03.2019 

(Audited)
1 Non-Current Assets 55.98 65.48
2 Cash and Cash Equivalent 0.01 1.02
3 Current Assets other than Cash and Cash Equivalent 12.15 15.40
4 Non-Current Liabilities 46.53 41.93
5 Current Liabilities 87.73 91.56
6 Equity (66.12) (51.59)
7 Proportion of the company’s ownership 50% 50%
8 Carrying amount of the investment* – –
9 Capital Commitments – 4.66
10 Commitment to subscribe to additional equity – –
11 Contingent Liabilities 9.65 9.65

` Crore

Sr 
No. Particulars

Year Ended 
31.03.2020 

(Unaudited)

Year Ended 
31.03.2019 
(Audited)

1 Income 16.74 16.61
2 Cost of materials consumed 1.85 3.73
3 Depreciation and amortization expense 9.13 9.12
4 Finance costs 4.79 4.33
5 Employee benefits expenses 3.25 3.80
6 Other Expenses 9.99 10.16
7 Profit/Loss from continuing operations before exceptional item (14.53) (13.54)
8 Exceptional Item – 10.83
9 Profit/Loss Before Tax (14.53) (2.71)
10 Total comprehensive income for the year (14.53) (2.71)
11 Company’s Share of profit / (loss) for the year (7.27) (1.37)

			   * Owing to the Company’s share of losses exceeding its interest in the joint venture, the share of loss stands 
discontinued to be recognized. Accordingly Company has not recognized share of loss of ` 7.27 crore for 
the year (P.Y. ` 1.37 crore) and ` 33.07 crore cumulatively upto the year ended 31.03.2020 (` 25.80 crore 
cumulatively upto the year ended 31.03.2019).

		  B)	 URVARAK VIDESH LTD: - A joint venture with National Fertilizers Ltd. and KRIBHCO for revival of 
closed Fertilizer Units of FCI/HFC group of companies has been formed. Further URVARAK VIDESH LTD. 
(UVL) has been declared as Dormant Company on 04.11.2015 by Registrar of Companies, New Delhi.
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			   Summarized financial information of Company’s investment in URVARAK VIDESH LTD.
` Crore

Sr 
No. Particulars As at 31.03.2020 

(Unaudited)
As at 31.03.2019 

(Audited)
1 Non-Current Assets – –
2 Cash and Cash Equivalent 0.03 –
3 Current Assets other than Cash and Cash Equivalent 0.07 0.10
4 Non-Current Liabilities – –
5 Current Liabilities 0.03 0.02
6 Equity 0.07 0.08
7 Proportion of the Company’s ownership 33.33% 33.33%
8 Carrying amount of the investment* – –

` Crore

Sr 
No. Particulars

Year Ended 
31.03.2020 
(Unudited)

Year Ended 
31.03.2019 
(Audited)

1 Income 0.01 0.01
2 Cost of materials consumed – –
3 Depreciation and amortization expense – –
4 Finance costs – –
5 Employee benefits expenses – –
6 Other Expenses 0.02 0.02
7 Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations (0.01) (0.01)
8 Total comprehensive income for the year (0.01) (0.01)
9 Company’s Share of profit /(loss) for the year # (0.01) –

			   *Company, on implementation of IND AS had adopted the carrying amount as per IGAAP as its deemed cost 
of its investment in joint ventures.

		  C)	TALC HER FERTILIZERS LIMITED: - A Joint venture Company with Coal India Limited (CIL), GAIL 
(India) Limited and Fertilizer Corporation of India Limited (FCIL) was incorporated on 13th November 2015 
for revival of the FCIL’s fertilizer unit at Talcher by establishing and operating new coal gasification based 
fertilizer complex(Ammonia/Urea Complex).

			   Summarized financial information of Company’s investment in TALCHER FERTILIZERS LTD.
` Crore

Sr 
No. Particulars As at 31.03.2020 

(Unaudited)
As at 31.03.2019 

(Audited)
1 Non-Current Assets 301.40 33.71
2 Cash and Cash Equivalent 233.72 17.08
3 Current Assets other than Cash and Cash Equivalent 17.46 5.00
4 Non-Current Liabilities – –
5 Current Liabilities 95.80 25.45
6 Equity 456.79 30.33
7 Proportion of the Company’s ownership 33.33% 33.33%
8 Carrying amount of the investment 159.51 16.35
9 Income 5.78 0.95
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` Crore
Sr 
No. Particulars As at 31.03.2020 

(Unaudited)
As at 31.03.2019 

(Audited)
10 Cost of materials consumed – –
11 Depreciation and amortization expense 0.15 0.05
12 Finance costs – –
13 Employee benefits expenses – –
14 Other Expenses 8.67 19.63
15 Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations (3.04) (18.73)
16 Total comprehensive income for the year (3.03) (18.74)
17 Company’s Share of profit / (loss) for the year (1.01) (6.25)

60.		  Miscellaneous expenses include auditors’ remuneration as per details given below:
` Crore

Sr 
No. Particulars Year ended 

31.03.2020
Year ended 
31.03.2019

1 Audit fees for the year 0.24 0.21
2 Audit fees for Limited review 0.03 0.03
3 Audit fees for Consolidated Financial Statement 0.01 0.01
4 For Certificate and other expenses 0.13 0.14

61.		  The position of (Net) Certified Emission Reductions (CER’s) or Carbon Credits allotted and held by the 
Company is as under:-

Particulars Unit 2019-20 2018-19
CER’s at the beginning of the year
(includes 28,772 CERS held on behalf of supplier of Catalyst)

No. 9,73,738 9,73,738

CER’s Allotted No. – –
CER’s Sold No. – –
CER’s held at year end
(includes 28,772 CERS held on behalf of supplier of Catalyst)

No. 9,73,738 9,73,738

CER’s under certification No. Nil Nil
Depreciation, operating and maintenance cost of emission reduction 
equipment’s expensed during the year

` Crore 0.02 0.21

62.		  Employee Benefits:
		  The required disclosure under IND AS 19 is given below.

		  General Description of Defined Benefit Plan
		  1)	 Provident Fund:-
		  a)	 The Provident Fund contributions are made to a Trust administered by the Company. The interest rate payable 

to the members of the Trust shall not be lower than statutory rate of interest declared by the Central Government 
under the Employees Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952.

			   During the year an amount of ` 38.11 crore (P.Y. ` 37.08 crore) has been charged off to statement of Profit 
and loss towards contribution by the Company.

		  b)	 Pending finalisation of accounts of the Company’s Employees Provident Fund Trust, the investments held 
by the Trust amounting to ` 92.64 crore have become doubtful as at 31st March 2020 owing to defaults with 
respect to payment of principal and interest warranting provision towards the same. The same will have to be 
made good by the Company, as principal employer, in the event there are no adequate assets of the Trust to 
meet its liabilities as per EPFO Act.
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			   However as per Ind AS 19, for Defined Benefit plans, Company is required to ascertain the present value of 
the defined benefit obligation and compare with the fair values of the Plan assets to determine the surplus or 
deficit, if any, as at Balance Sheet date. Deficit, if any, needs to be accounted in the books of the Company. 
Accordingly, Company has recognized an amount of `19.07 crores as contribution to Trust owing to such 
deficit.

			   The assumptions used in determining the present value of obligation of the interest rate guarantee under 
deterministic approach are:

Particulars As at 31st 
March 2020

As at 31st 
March 2019

Maturity profile assumed upto 5 years 5 years
Expected guaranteed interest rate 8.50% 8.65%
Discount rate 6.84% 7.47%

			   The funds of the trust have been invested under various securities as per the pattern of investment mandated 
by Employees Provident Fund Organization (EPFO) Guidelines.

			   Changes in the benefit obligation and fair value of plan assets as at March 31, 2020
` Crore

Particulars
2019-20

Defined Benefit 
Obligation

Fair Value of 
Plan Asset

Net Benefit 
Asset

Opening Balance (1045.72) 1106.05
Service Cost (36.93) –
Net Interest Expenses (84.76) 84.76
Benefits Paid 178.18 (178.18)
Return on Plan Asset (excluding amounts included in net Interest Expense) – (1.02)
Difference in Book value & Fair Value of Plan Asset – (78.38)
Experience Adjustment – –
Settlement /Transfer in (0.96) 0.96
Settlement /Transfer out 0.60 (0.60)
Contribution by Plan Participants Employees (50.34) 50.34
Contribution by Employer – 36.93
Closing Balance (1039.92) 1020.85 (19.07)

		  2)	 Gratuity:-
			   The Company operates gratuity plan wherein every employee is entitled to the benefit equivalent to fifteen 

days salary last drawn for each completed year of service depending upon the date of joining the same is 
payable on death, separation from service, or retirement, whichever is earlier. The benefit vests after five years 
of continuous service. During the year, the charge on account of Gratuity to Statement of Profit and Loss is 
` 12.46 crore (PY ` 20.55 crore).

		  3)	L eave Encashment:-
			   The Company has been accounting for provision on account of leave encashment on retirement based on 

actuarial valuation carried out as at the Balance Sheet date.

			   The liability for the leave encashment on retirement as at 31st March 2020 is ` 200.57 crore (P.Y. ` 210.26 
crore)

		  4)	 Post-Retirement Medical Benefits:-
			   The Company has been accounting for provision on account of post-retirement medical benefits based on 

actuarial valuation carried out as at the Balance Sheet date. Employees of the company upon retirement/
separation under Voluntary Retirement Scheme are entitled to medical benefits as per agreed upon scheme in force.
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		  5)	 Long Term Service Award:
			   As a part of cordial relation and appreciation of long dedicated service, Company is honoring its employees 

with a memento on completion of 25 years of service.

			   General Description of Defined Contribution Plan
			   Contributory Superannuation Scheme: -The scheme is a defined contribution scheme. Employees are 

required to exercise their option to be a part of the scheme and make a contribution equivalent to the amount 
contributed by the Company to the fund, upon becoming the member of the scheme Under the scheme the 
employee shall be eligible for pension provided they have put in at least 15 years of service in the Company 
and superannuate from the Company which is as per Government of India guidelines. During the year Company 
has recognized an expenditure of ` 12.25 crore (P.Y. ` 13.10 crore) as contribution towards the said scheme.

			   Gratuity & Post-Retirement Medical Benefits:
			   The following table shows the impact of actuarial valuation as recognized in the financial statements in respect 

of Gratuity and Post-retirement medical benefits.

` Crore

Particulars

As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019

Gratuity 
(Funded)

Post-Retirement 
Medical Benefits 

(Non-Funded)

Gratuity 
(Funded)

Post-Retirement 
Medical Benefits 

(Non-Funded)
1)	C omponents of Employer expenses

Current Service Cost 8.97 2..37 9.41 2.77
Past Service cost – – – –
Net Interest Cost / (Income) 2.61 6.05 10.12 5.21
Net expense/(gain) recognized in the statement of 
Profit and Loss (refer note below)

11.58 8.42 19.53 7.98

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability
Actuarial Gains or Losses due to changes in Financial 
Obligations

8.46 6.47 1.22 (0.11)

Actuarial Gains or Losses due to experience adjustments (3.64) 8.02 (2.39) 8.75
Return on plan assets excluding amounts included in 
Net Interest Expense

0.77 – 3.67 –

Components of defined benefit cost/(Income) 
recognized in other comprehensive income

4.05 14.49 (4.85) 8.65

2)	 Changes in Benefit Obligations
Present value of Obligation at year beginning 306.96 77.75 317.99 67.18
Service Cost 8.97 2.37 9.41 2.77
Interest Cost 22.93 6.05 24.04 5.21
Past Service cost – – – –
Liability Transferred In/ Acquisitions 0.20 – – –
Actuarial(gain)/Loss 4.82 14.49 (1.17) 8.64
Benefits paid (50.29) (6.50) (43.31) (6.06)
Present value of Obligation at year end 293.59 94.15 306.96 77.75

3)	C hanges in Plan Assets
Fair value of Plan Assets , at year beginning 272.03 184.04
Assets Transferred In/Acquisitions 0.20
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` Crore

Particulars

As at 31st March 2020 As at 31st March 2019

Gratuity 
(Funded)

Post-Retirement 
Medical Benefits 

(Non-Funded)

Gratuity 
(Funded)

Post-Retirement 
Medical Benefits 

(Non-Funded)
Expected return on Plan Assets 20.32 13.91
Employer’s contributions 50.29 113.70
Benefits paid (50.29) (43.30)
Actuarial gain/(Loss) –
Return on plan Asset excluding interest income. 0.77 3.67
Fair value of Plan Asset at the year end 293.31 272.03
Present Value of funded defined benefit obligation 293.59 94.15 306.96 77.75
Fair value of Plan Asset 293.31 272.03
Net (Liability)/Asset arising from defined benefit 
obligation

(0.28) (34.94) -

Category of Plan Assets
Insurance Fund 293.31 272.03
Total 293.31 272.03
Actuarial Assumptions
Discount Rate(per annum) 6.84% 6.81% 7.47% 7.78%
Expected Rate of Return on Assets (per annum) 6.84% – 7.47% –
Salary Escalation/Annual increase in health care cost 8.00% 4.00% 8.00% –
Rate of Employee Turnover 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Contribution to defined benefit plan during the next financial year
Sensitivity Analysis for Significant Assumptions is as given below
One percentage point increase in discount rate (13.14) (6.66) (12.89) (5.18)
One percentage point decrease in discount rate 14.85 7.81 14.44 6.03
One percentage point increase in salary increase 5.03 5.33
One percentage point decrease in salary increase (5.63) (5.88)
One percentage point increase in employee turnover rate 1.29 1.61
One percentage point decrease in employee turnover rate (1.41) (1.75)
The expected future cash flows:
Projected benefits payable in future years from the date of reporting
1st Following Year 55.18 7.13 57.72 6.10
2nd Following Year 31.28 7.24 36.01 6.28
3rd Following Year 48.63 7.23 45.10 6.28
4th Following Year 40.76 7.28 46.58 6.39
5th Following Year 28.75 7.39 39.14 6.58
Sum of Years 6 to 10 103.38 36.51 110.99 32.95
Sum of Years 11 and above 147.02 – 146.95 –

			   The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit 
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of 
the assumptions may be correlated.
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			   Furthermore in presenting the above sensitivity analysis the present value of the defined benefit obligation has 
been calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as 
that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognized in the balance sheet.

			   There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior 
years.

			   Estimates of future salary increase considered in the actuarial valuation take into account inflation, seniority, 
promotion and other relevant factors such as demand and supply in the employment market.

63.		T  he position of Hedged Foreign currency exposures are as under:
` Crore

Particulars Hedged Exposure Cross 
Currency

As on 
31.03.2020

As on 
31.03.2019

Foreign Currency 
exchange contracts

Buyer’s credit/Supplier’s credit availed for import of 
raw materials and traded products

USD 74.97 533.54

Long Term Borrowings USD/EUR 50.85 70.33

		  Derivative Financial Instruments

		  The status of derivative financial instruments outstanding is as under:-

in million

Hedging Instrument Currency Hedged Exposure Currency As on 
31.03.2020

As on 
31.03.2019

Forwards/ Call 
Spreads /Seagull 
options

USD / INR Buyers Credit / Suppliers Credit/ 
Foreign Currency Long Term Loans

USD 10.17 79.16

EUR/INR External Commercial Borrowings EUR 2.13 6.38
EUR/USD External Commercial Borrowings EUR 4.25 –

		  The year-end foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise are 
as under:-

` Crore
Particulars As on 

31.03.2020
As on 

31.03.2019
Foreign currency term loans 121.27 154.68
Buyer’s credit/Suppliers credit for import of raw materials and others 238.83 78.40
Receivable from suppliers 6.53 3.98

64.		C  ontingent Assets:
		  As per the Arbitration award received in its favor for the compensation claimed in respect of surrender of land to 

Mumbai Metropolitan Regional Development Authority (MMRDA) on 23rd May, 2018, Company is eligible for 
compensation either in the form of cash / TDRs amounting to ` 75.17 crore along with interest over and above 
the entitled compensation as recommended by Arbitration award. Company has filed an execution application, 
however MMRDA has obtained stay against the same from Mumbai High Court subject to deposit of 25% of the 
disputed amount with the Court.
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65.		E  xceptional items:
		  a)	E xceptional item consist of :

` Crore
Particulars Year ended 

31.03.2020
Year ended 
31.03.2019

Loss / (Gain) on Revaluation of Development Right Certificate received / receivable from 
MMRDA towards surrender of land in earlier years to MMRDA/MCGM.

64.84 21.58

Fair value gain on account of valuation of Development Right Certificate receivable from 
Municipal Corporation of Greater Mumbai towards surrender of land.

35.33 (45.02)

Net Exceptional Expense / (Income) 100.17 (23.44)

			   The loss on account of fair valuation of Transferable Development Rights (TDRs) received /accrued has been 
reported as exceptional item amounting to ` 100.17 crore. Hitherto, as at 31.03.2019 the Company expecting 
TDRs to be sold in the coming financial year had classified the same as Non-Current Assets Held for sale. 
Considering the current depression in the real estate segment which has been further aggravated owing to 
COVID-19 pandemic, the sale of the same is not highly probable. Accordingly as per IND AS 105, the TDRs 
cannot be classified as Non-Current Asset Held for sale and has been reclassified as investment at fair value 
of ` 31.23 crore for the year ended 31.03.2020.

66.		D  isclosure relating to Corporate Social Responsibility “CSR” Activities
		  Company during the year has incurred an expenditure of ` 3.42 crore (P.Y. ` 3.88 crore) towards the same which 

is reported under Note No. 37 “Other Expenses”& Note 37B “Miscellaneous expenses”.

		  The functional classification of the same is as under:-

` Crore

Particulars

Year ended 31.03.2020 Year ended 31.03.2019
Construction / 
Acquisition of 
any assets (i)

On the purpose 
other than (i)

Construction / 
Acquisition of 
any assets (i)

On the purpose 
other than (i)

Water charges – 0.83 – 0.67
Repairs and Maintenance – 0.29 – 0.11
Miscellaneous expenses – 2.30 – 3.10
Total – 3.42 – 3.88

		  The other disclosures are as under:-

` Crore

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2020

Year ended 
31.03.2019

Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 3.23 3.84
Amount spent during the year (on purpose other than construction / acquisition of assets 
controlled by the Company)

3.42 3.02

Amount yet to be paid in cash 0.30 0.86
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67.		I  ncome Tax
		  Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit as per below:

` Crore
Sr. 
No. Particulars Year ended 

31.03.2020
Year ended 
31.03.2019

1 Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations 202.93 235.25
2 Profit/(loss) before tax from a discontinued operation – –
3 Long term capital gain on TDR – 23.44
4 Accounting profit before income tax (other than above) 202.93 211.81

At the effective income tax rate of 
(31st March 2020: 25.17% and 31st March 2019: 34.94%)

51.07 74.01

A Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit
i) Disallowance of CSR expenditure 0.91 1.35
ii) Perquisite tax paid on behalf of employees 0.67 0.66
iii) Other permanent differences 2.60 24.82

B Effect of income that is exempt from taxation
i) Income not considered for Tax purpose (0.08) (1.22)

C Deferred Tax Asset (MAT credit) reversal as no longer allowed 6.01 –
D Effect of deferred tax of previous period 7.95 6.10
E Effect due to change in tax rate (75.01) –

Sub Total (A + B+ C) (5.88) 105.73
F Tax on Long term capital gains on TDR – 7.56
G Adjustment in respect of current income tax of previous year 0.22 (17.20)
H At the effective income tax rate of %

(31st March 2020: -2.79%, 31st March 2019: 40.84%)
(5.66) 96.08

68.		D  eferred Tax
		  For the Year 2019-20

` Crore

Particulars Opening Balance 
01.04.2019

Recognized in 
P&L

Recognized in 
OCI

Closing Balance 
31.03.2020

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY
Depreciation 392.47 (106.30) – 286.17
Revaluation of FVTOCI Investments to Fair value 24.29 – (6.23) 18.06
Other timing differences 1.01 (0.24) – 0.77
TDR Accrued 8.39 – – 8.39
TOTAL 426.16 (106.54) (6.23) 313.39
DEFERRED TAX ASSET
Provision for doubtful debts/claims/advances 16.49 (4.54) – 11.95
Provision for obsolescence of stores 9.65 (5.51) – 4.14
Provision for diminution in value of investments 12.37 (12.37) – –
Expenditure allowable on payment basis 92.91 (23.62) – 69.29
Other timing differences 14.41 16.66 – 31.07
TOTAL 145.84 (29.38) – 116.45
NET DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 280.33 (77.16) (6.23) 196.94
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		  For the Year 2018-19

` Crore

Particulars Opening Balance 
01.04.2018

Recognized in 
P&L

Recognized in 
OCI

Closing Balance 
31.03.2019

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY
Depreciation 356.93 35.54 – 392.47
Revaluation of FVTOCI Investments to Fair value 19.89 – 4.40 24.29
Other timing differences 0.77 0.24 – 1.01
TDR Accrued – 8.39 – 8.39
TOTAL 377.59 44.17 4.40 426.16

DEFERRED TAX ASSET
Provision for doubtful debts/claims/advances 8.63 7.86 – 16.49
Provision for obsolescence of stores 8.61 1.04 – 9.65
Provision for diminution in value of investments 12.37 – – 12.37
Expenditure allowable on payment basis 113.26 (20.35) – 92.91
Disallowance to be claimed in future on actual basis 10.09 (10.09) – –
Other timing differences 4.86 9.55 – 14.41
TOTAL 157.82 (11.99) – 145.84

NET DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY 219.77 56.16 4.40 280.33

69.		  Hedging activities and derivatives
		  ●	 Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
		  The Company has foreign currency denominated borrowings in the nature of External Commercial borrowings 

(ECBs), Foreign Currency Term Loan (FCTL) for its long term requirements and Buyers Credit, Suppliers credit 
for meeting its short term fund requirement. The Company has a hedging policy in place to manage its foreign 
currency risk relating to these borrowings. The Company uses various products for hedging like Forex Forward 
Contracts, Forward Rate Agreements, Plain Vanilla Options (call option and put option), Seagull options, Interest 
Rate Swaps, Currency Swaps including Cross-Currency Swaps etc. The Company undertakes hedging through 
these products considering the tenor of the underlying instrument and the same are not designated as cash flow 
hedges.

70.		  Fair values
		  The management has assessed that its financial assets and liabilities like cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, 

trade payables, bank overdrafts and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the 
short-term maturities of these instruments.

		  The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values for the given below financial assets.

		  ●	 Unquoted Equity Shares of Indian Potash Limited
		  The fair values of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using a weighted average of DCF, PE and NAV 

model. The Company avails the services of professional valuer’ s for valuation of the same and the fair values so 
reported are based on a valuation report received from an investment valuation expert.

		  ●	D erivatives not designated as hedges
		  The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various banks. Interest rate swaps, foreign exchange 

forward contracts, derivative instruments are valued using valuation techniques, which employs the use of market 
observable inputs (i.e. based on inputs/statement of position received from banks). All derivative contracts with 
banks are unsecured.
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		  ●	I nvestment Properties
		  The value of the investment properties are based on the information and a study of the micro market in discussions 

with industry experts, local brokers and regional developers.

		  Fair values hierarchy is detailed as below

` Crore

Fair values Hierarchy

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
Significant 
observable 

inputs

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs

Significant 
observable 

inputs

Significant 
unobservable 

inputs
Level 2 Level 3 Level 2 Level 3

Financial Assets
Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares of Indian Potash Ltd. – 72.26 – 69.99
Derivative Instruments not Designated as Hedges 2.67 – 0.14 -
Assets held for disposal – – – –
TDRs recognized at fair market value 31.32 – 131.49 -
Financial Liability – – – –
Derivative Instruments not Designated as Hedges – – 5.16 –
Assets for which Fair values are disclosed – – – –
Investment Properties 842.58 – 840.55 –

71.		  Financial risk Management objectives and policies
		  The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise of loans and borrowings, trade and 

other payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the 
Company’s operations and to provide guarantees to support operations of its subsidiaries/joint ventures, if any.

		  The Company’s principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents 
that derive directly from its operations. The Company also holds FVTOCI investments and enters into derivative 
transactions.

		  The Company is exposed to market risk (including interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity 
risk. The Company seeks to minimize the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge 
risk exposures, The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Company’s polices approved by the board of 
directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, use of financial hedging 
instruments.

		  The Company’s management oversees these risks with the support of a Risk Management Committee that advises 
on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The Risk Management 
Committee provides assurance to the Company’s management that the Company’s financial risk activities are 
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in 
accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives.

		  All derivative activities for risk management purposes are carried out by designated officers who have the appropriate 
skills, experience and supervision. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes 
may be undertaken. These risks are summarized below:

		  ●	I nterest Rate Risk:
			I   nterest Rate Risk Management:
			   Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 

of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to interest rate risks because the Company borrows 
funds at both fixed and floating interest rates.
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			   The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate 
borrowings. Hedging activities are evaluated regularly to align interest rate views and defined risk appetite, 
ensuring the most cost-effective hedging structures are applied and accordingly the Company enters into 
interest rate swaps.

			I   nterest Rate Sensitivity Analysis:
			   The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the exposure to interest rate risk on the borrowings 

outstanding as at the end of the reporting period. For floating rate liabilities, the analysis is prepared assuming 
the amount of the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period was outstanding for the whole year 
with a 50 basis point increase or decrease. The detailed sensitivity analysis is given below:

` Crore
Nature of Floating 
interest rate Loans

Total outstanding 
floating rate loans Current interest rate Change Impact on Profit and Loss 

Account (+Profit / -Loss)
As on 31.03.2020

EUR Borrowings 141.18 1.05%
0.50% (0.71)

-0.50% 0.71

INR Borrowings 574.94 7.24%
0.50% (2.87)

-0.50% 2.87

Total – – –
(3.58)

3.58
As on 31.03.2019

USD borrowings 20.72 5.65%
0.50% (0.10)

-0.50% 0.10

EUR Borrowings 164.57 1.05%
0.50% (0.82)

-0.50% 0.82

INR Borrowings 352.29 8.34%
0.50% (1.76)

-0.50% 1.76

Total 537.58 – –
(2.69)

2.69

			   The assumed movement in basis points for the interest rate sensitivity analysis is based on the currently 
observable market environment.

		  ●	C redit Risk:
			C   redit Risk Management:
			   Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial 

loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties 
and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigation the risk of financial loss from 
defaults.

			   Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse geographical areas for its 
fertilizers segment and across geographical areas and industries in respect of its chemicals segment. Ongoing 
credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable.

			   The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are primarily Public Sector mutual funds 
and further the Company invests only in 100% debt oriented schemes of such funds. As regards derivative 
financial instruments the same is also limited because the counterparties are banks whose operations are 
regulated by the Reserve Bank of India.
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		  ●	M arket risk
			   Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other 
price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity risk. The Company’s activities exposes it’s primarily to 
the financial risk of changes in foreign currency risk and interest rates risk.

		  ●	L iquidity risk
			L   iquidity risk management
			   Liquidity risk management refers to the management of the Company’s short-term, medium-term and long-

term funding and liquidity management requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining 
adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast 
and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

			   The following table details the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial 
liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash 
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The 
tables include both interest and principal cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the 
undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period.

` Crore

Company’s Financial Liabilities
As at 31.03.2020

Demand <3 Months 3-12 Months 1-5 years >5 Years Total
Borrowings 82.00 3880.51 259.60 486.47 114.44 4823.02
Trade Payables 694.92 263.33 38.48 211.79 – 1208.52
Other Financial Liabilities 223.65 27.68 125.00 4.70 0.05 381.08
TOTAL 1000.57 4171.52 423.08 702.96 114.49 6412.62

As at 31.03.2019
Borrowings 18.54 2796.81 221.24 425.11 – 3461.70
Trade Payables 769.54 305.62 79.93 211.79 – 1366.88
Other Financial Liabilities 228.44 32.04 38.29 43.08 0.64 342.49
TOTAL 1016.51 3134.47 339.46 679.97 0.64 5171.07

		  ●	 Foreign Currency Risk:
			   The Company undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies, consequently, exposure to exchange 

rate fluctuations arise. The Company has a Board approved Hedging Policy in place entailing parameters for 
hedging its foreign currency exposures completely before their maturities. The Company manages its exchange 
rate exposures within the approved parameters of the hedging policy through various derivative instruments 
such as options, swaps etc.

			   Foreign Currency Sensitivity Analysis:
			   The Company is mainly exposed to the currency of USD and EUR. The following table details the Company’s 

sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in the INR as against the USD/EUR. The sensitivity analysis includes 
only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items i.e. loans in foreign currency and adjusts their 
translation at the period end for a 5% change in foreign currency rates. A positive number indicates an increase 
in profit or equity where the INR strengthens 5% against USD/EUR. For a 5% weakening of INR as against 
USD/EUR, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity, and the number would be negative.
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` Crore
As on 31st March 2020

Currency Trade 
Payables

Bank Loans 
(Long term 

+ Short 
Term)

Derivative 
Financial 

Instruments

Interest 
accrued but 
not due on 
borrowings

Total 
Exposure 
to Foreign 
Currency

Exchange 
rate as on 
31.03.2020

Change Change 
per USD

Impact on 
Profit and Loss 

Account (+Profit 
/ -Loss)

In Million `/Foreign
Currency % `/Foreign

Currency ` in Crore

USD 20.63 32.65 10.17 0.03 63.47 75.3859 5% 3.7693 (23.92)
-5% -3.7693 23.92

EUR 17.00 2.13 0.05 23.43 83.0496 5% 4.1525 (9.73)
-5% -4.1525 9.73

` Crore
As on 31st March 2019

Currency Trade 
Payables

Bank Loans 
(Long term 

+ Short 
Term)

Derivative 
Financial 

Instruments

Interest 
accrued but 
not due on 
borrowings

Total 
Exposure 
to Foreign 
Currency

Exchange 
rate as on 
31.03.2019

Change Change 
per USD

Impact on 
Profit and Loss 

Account (+Profit 
/ -Loss)

In Million `/Foreign
Currency % `/Foreign

Currency ` in Crore

USD 80.49 25.92 86.35 0.14 192.90 69.1198 5% 3.4560 (66.67)
-5% -3.4560 66.67

EUR – 21.25 6.38 0.12 27.75 77.4478 5% 3.8724 (10.75)
-5% -3.8724 10.75

72.		C  apital Management
		  For the purpose of the Company’s Capital management, capital includes equity capital and all other reserves. The 

primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximize the shareholder value.

		  The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions 
and the requirements of the financial covenants. The Company, for its capex requirement, borrows to the extent of 
70% of the requirement and the remaining 30% shall be sourced from the internal accruals. Further, the Company, 
being a Public sector undertaking, is governed by the guidelines of the Department of Investment & Public Asset 
Management (DIPAM), which specifies the minimum percentage of dividend that can be declared. Accordingly, 
the Company has to manage its capex in such a way that the minimum dividend payout as stipulated is met. The 
Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt.

		  Gearing Ratio:
		  In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure 

that its meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure 
requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and 
borrowings. There have been no breaches in financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowings in 
the currency period.

		  No changes have been made in the objectives, policies and processes for managing capital during the years ended 
31st March 2020 & 31st March 2019.
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` Crore
Particulars 31.03.2020 31.03.2019

Borrowings (Current + Non-Current) 4823.02 3461.7
Trade Payables 1208.52 1366.88
Total Debt (A) 6031.54 4828.58
Total Capital (B) 3186.27 3033.76
Total Capital and Net Debt (C) 9217.81 7862.34
Gearing Ratio (A/C X 100) 65.43 61.41

73.		D  isclosure as per IND AS 116
		

` Crore
Sr. 
No. Particulars As at 

01.04.2019
As at 

31.03.2020
Details pertaining to Lease Arrangement considered as ROU

1 Total Gross Lease liability 14.42 18.35
2 Total Discounted lease liability 10.12 11.41
3 Cash Outflow due to Lease Liability – 3.28
4 Interest charged to Statement of Profit & Loss – 0.90
5 Depreciation charged to Statement of Profit & Loss – 2.74
6 Cancellations charged to Statement of Profit & Loss – –
7 Maturity Profile of Lease Liability

On Demand – –
Less Than 3 Months 0.63 0.56
3 to 12 Months 1.93 1.25
1 to 5 years 3.48 4.70
5 Years & Above 4.08 4.90
Grand Total 10.12 11.41
Details pertaining exemptions availed as Short Term Lease Arrangement and not considered above

8 Total Short Term Lease Liability 0.17 –
9 During the year charged to Statement of Profit & Loss – 4.77
10 Disclosure of undiscounted lease receivables wrt to assets given on Operating lease as a lessor

On Demand – –
Less Than 3 Months 2.02 1.93
3 to 12 Months 10.62 9.72
1 to 5 years 17.15 7.98
5 Years & Above 1.91 1.56
Grand Total 31.70 21.19

		  Refer Note no 1, 20, 26, 43

74.		  The standalone financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by the Board 
of Directors on 29th May 2020.

75.		  The financial statements as approved by the Board of Directors are subject to audit by Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India and final approval by its Shareholders.
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76.		C  ovid-19 Impact Analysis:
		  a)	 For the year ended 31st march, 2020 operation of the Company were scaled down during the last fortnight 

of the year. The Company was quick in restoring the operations ensuring health, safety and well-being of its 
employees. This has not impacted the operations and results for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

		  b)	 For the year financial year 2020-21 adverse impact is anticipated in the following areas:

		  i)	 Manpower - Own employees as well as Contract labour downtime due movement restrictions and health 
issues.

		  ii)	 Delay in commissioning of projects and the ensuing benefits due to delayed supply of equipments and 
restrictions in movement of personnel from foreign countries / within India required for the project.

		  iii)	 Rationalization of Government expenditures may result in delayed settlement of subsidies straining liquidity 
and working capital.

77.		  The figures of the previous year have been re-arranged and regrouped wherever necessary and / or practicable to 
make them comparable with those of the current year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our report of even date attached
RASHTRIYA CHEMICALS AND FERTILIZERS LTD. For Chhajed & Doshi For Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(S. C. Mudgerikar) Firm Regn. No. 101794W Firm Regn. No. 102860W / W100089
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 03498837 (Kiran K. Daftary) (Astha Kariya)

Partner Partner
(Umesh Dongre) Membership No: 010279 Membership No: 122491
Director (Finance)
DIN : 08039073 Dated : 29th May, 2020

Place: Mumbai
(J. B. Sharma)
Company Secretary
Membership No: FCS5030

Dated : 29th May, 2020
Place: Mumbai



42nd keeef<e&keÀ efjHeesì&/Annual Report 2019-20

170

EXPLANATORY INFORMATION ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

Annexure-1 

STANDALONE SEGMENTWISE REVENUE & RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

` Crore
Sr. 
No Particulars Fertilizers Trading Industrial 

Chemicals Unallocated Total

SEGMENT REVENUE
i. Sales (Incl. Subsidy wherever applicable) 8063.21 949.83 660.94 – 9673.98
ii. Other operating Income 12.97 0.11 0.22 10.67 23.97

Total Revenue 8076.18 949.94 661.16 10.67 9697.95
SEGMENT RESULT

i. Segment Results 431.45 91.16 (11.10) (112.17) 399.34
ii. Interest Expense 237.82
iii. Interest Income 41.41
iv. Profit before Tax 202.93
v. Tax - Current 71.72
vi. Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) (77.16)
vii Tax adjustments of earlier years (excess) / short 0.22
viii. Net Profit 208.15

OTHER INFORMATION
i. Segment Assets 7705.77 190.10 322.73 2081.90 10300.50
ii. Segment Liabilities 1901.25 0.08 84.16 5128.74 7114.23

Other Disclosures
iii. Capital Expenditure 461.45 – 2.84 3.27 467.56
iv. Depreciation and Amortisation 125.36 – 38.89 4.27 168.52
v. Impairment – – 2.86 – 2.86
vi. Other Non Cash Expenses 8.03 – 0.00 (0.01) 8.02
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STANDALONE SEGMENTWISE REVENUE & RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019

` Crore
Sr. 
No Particulars Fertilizers Trading Industrial 

Chemicals Unallocated Total

SEGMENT REVENUE
i. Sales (Incl. Subsidy wherever applicable) 7541.23 372.91 955.16 – 8869.30
ii. Other operating Income 5.32 0.14 1.07 9.64 16.17

Total Revenue 7546.55 373.05 956.23 9.64 8885.47
SEGMENT RESULT

i. Segment Results 277.76 36.80 60.27 (1.50) 373.33
ii. Interest Expense 155.85
iii. Interest Income 17.77
iv. Profit before Tax 235.25
v. Tax - Current 57.12
vi. Deferred Tax Liability / (Asset) 56.16
vii Tax adjustments of earlier years (excess) / short (17.20)
viii. Net Profit 139.17

OTHER INFORMATION
i. Segment Assets 7615.23 675.31 353.09 276.86 8920.49
ii. Segment Liabilities 1560.20 377.66 119.98 3827.95 5885.79

Other Disclosures
iii. Capital Expenditure 332.26 – 4.68 6.62 343.56
iv. Depreciation 120.28 – 31.64 4.11 156.03
v. Impairment – – – – –
vi. Other Non Cash Expenses 10.47 – 0.01 19.51 29.99

*	 Finance income and costs, and Corporate expenses are not allocated to individual segments as the same are managed 
on a group basis.

*	 Current taxes, deferred taxes and write back of excess tax provisions are also not allocated to those segments as they 
are also managed on a group basis.

*	 Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties.
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REONCILIATIONS TO AMOUNTS REFLECTED IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

` Crore
Sr. 
No Particulars AS AT 

31.03.2020
AS AT 

31.03.2019
I OPERATING REVENUE

Segment Revenue
India 9686.95 8875.83
Outside India 0.33 –
Segment Reveue 9687.28 8875.83
Unallocated - Management fees 10.67 9.64
Total Operating Revenue 9697.95 8885.47

II RECONCILIATION OF PROFITS
Segment Profit 511.51 374.83
Add: Interest Income 41.41 17.77

552.92 392.60
less: Finance Costs 237.82 155.85
Corporate Expenses (net) 112.17 1.50
Profit Before Tax 202.93 235.25

III RECONCILIATION OF ASSETS
Segment Assets 8218.6 8643.63
Investments 263.00 86.34
Corprate Assets + CWIP 24.42 25.45
Non Current Tax Asset 109.6 105.15
Derivatives not designtaed as hedges (MTM Gain Receivable) 2.67 0.14
Cash & Bank balances 1.09 3.04
Other assets * 1681.12 56.74
Total Assets 10300.5 8920.49

IV RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
Segment Liabilities 1985.49 2057.84
Borrowings long term 600.91 425.11
Current maturities of long term Loans 145.24 151.12
Borrowings Short term 4075.78 2880.96
Deferred Tax Liabilities 196.94 280.33
Current Tax Liability 53.25 –
Derivatives not designtaed as hedges (MTM Loss Payable) 0.03 –
Other current financial liabilities 7.23 45.33
Other non current financial liabilities – 0.09
Other Liabilities 49.36 45.01

7114.23 5885.79

* Includes an amount of ` 1598.65 Crore receivable from Government of India towards Import of Urea on Government 
Account (P.Y. NIL)
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TO THE MEMBERS OF RASHTRIYA CHEMICALS 
AND FERTILIZERS LIMITED.

Report on the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS 
financial statements of RASHTRIYA CHEMICALS AND 
FERTILIZERS LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Company”) and its jointly controlled entities comprising 
of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, 
the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
other comprehensive income), the Consolidated Statement 
of Changes in Equity and Consolidated Statement of cash 
flows for the year ended March 31, 2020, and notes to the 
financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Consolidated Ind AS Financial 
Statement”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements give the information required 
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair 
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India including the Ind AS, of the consolidated 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and 
its consolidated profit, consolidated total comprehensive 
income, consolidated changes in equity and its consolidated 
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our 
responsibilities under those Standards are further described 
in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Consolidated IND AS Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence 
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated IND AS 
financial statements.

Emphasis of Matters
a)	 Note No. 47 – Subsidy Income: 
	 DoF vide its Notification dated 30th March, 2020 

has removed the ambiguity with respect to eligible 

compensation on revision in fixed costs effective from 
2nd April, 2014 under Modified NPS III. Accordingly, 
Company has recognised subsidy income based on the 
assessment of its eligibility and provided for certain 
anticipated recoveries by DoF towards final adjustments 
on NPK fertilizers and receivables, recognised earlier on 
estimated basis, being doubtful of settlement. The net 
impact of the same works out to ̀  342.92 crore receivable 
from FICC/DoF.

b)	 Note No. 48 - Use of domestic gas for manufacture of 
nutrient “N” :

	 The matter relating to the issue of unintended benefits 
accruing to units using domestic gas for manufacture of 
nutrient “N” has been referred and is pending before an 
Inter-Ministerial Committee (IMC) of Government of 
India (GoI). It is expected that a decision on the matter 
would be taken soon by the IMC. Initially subsidy 
amounting to ` 198.94 crore was withheld by DOF, 
which has been released in full upon submission of its 
claims along with bank guarantee for equivalent amount 
by the Company.

c)	 Note No. 49 - Gas pooling applicable to Fertilizer 
(Urea) sector :

	 Consequent to Gas pooling being made applicable to 
Fertilizer (Urea) sector w.e.f. June 1, 2015, it is expected 
that a differential pricing of gas may be made applicable 
for non-urea usage. Company has represented to DoF for 
maintaining supply of domestic gas for P&K fertilizers 
and chemicals. Ministry of Petroleum & Natural Gas 
(MoPNG) vide its order No. L-13013/3/2012-GP-I, 
dated: December 16, 2015 has directed GAIL (India) 
Limited to levy a higher gas price (i.e. the highest rate of 
RLNG used for production of urea) for gas consumed in 
non-urea operations. As the matter relating to the same 
is pending before the IMC for decision, the Company 
has represented that any decision on the same be taken 
only upon the issue being settled by the IMC of GoI. 
However, pending finalization of price payable as per 
the said letter, Company is recognizing liability based 
on the difference between domestic gas price and pool 
/ market price of gas for its non-urea operations. The 
difference is provided considering domestic gas first 
for urea operations on cumulative basis for the year and 
the balance if any, for non-urea operations. Accordingly, 
there is no impact for the year ended March 31, 2020. 
The Company has recognised a liability of ̀  211.79 crore 
for the period commencing from June 1, 2015 to March 
31, 2020 (` 211.79 crore upto March 31, 2019) on this 
account.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (REVISED)
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	 Company has entered into a contract for procurement of 
market priced gas for non-urea operations at Trombay 
unit, effective from May 16, 2016.

	 Pursuant to the said order, GAIL has sought a differential 
levy amounting to ` 1442.84 crore for the period 
commencing from July 1, 2006 till March 31, 2017 and 
has initiated arbitration proceeding towards non-payment 
of the same. Company has represented this matter to 
Department of Fertilizers for dispute resolution as the 
matter relating to the same is pending before the IMC 
of GoI. The said matter has been currently referred to 
Administrative Mechanism for Resolution of CPSEs 
Disputes (AMRCD) on May 22, 2018.

d)	 Note No. 50 - Gas Turbine Generator (GTG) plants 
at Thal unit :

	 On 20th and 22nd March, 2019 respectively, both the Gas 
Turbine Generator (GTG) plants at Thal unit stopped 
operating. Upon failure the matter, was taken up with 
the LSTK contractor who had supplied the turbines for 
repair as the same were covered under warranties. The 
matter was referred by the LSTK contractor for repairs 
to the Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) who 
had indicated a total estimated expenditure of about 98 
Million SEK (` 74.51 crore excluding taxes and duties).

	 In the best interests of the Company, based on the 
acceptance of Notice to Proceed as proposed by the 
LSTK contractor, the equipment have been sent for repair 
to the foreign Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) 
which are to be received back as at the Balance Sheet 
date. As per the Notice to proceed, the final settlement 
of the repair costs can either be decided mutually and 
in the event not agreed upon, the settlement of disputes 
clause as per contract can be invoked.

	 As the equipment are covered under warranties, the 
Company is of the view that no additional costs would 
devolve on the Company. Further the Company has 
initiated arbitration proceedings towards the LSTK 
contractor citing loss of profits owing to higher energy 
costs, higher maintenance costs etc.

	 In the meanwhile, the Company has procured a Gas 
generator and commissioned a Turbine Generator in 
August 2019 to mitigate future losses.

e)	 Note No. 51 - Contribution to Employee Provident 
Fund Trust :

	 Pending finalisation of accounts of the Company’s 
Employees Provident Fund Trust, the investments held 
by the Trust amounting to ` 92.64 crore have become 
doubtful as at 31st March 2020 owing to defaults with 

respect to payment of principal and interest warranting 
provision towards the same. The same will have to be 
made good by the Company, as principal employer, in 
the event there are no adequate assets of the Trust to meet 
its liabilities as per EPFO Act.

	 However as per Ind AS 19, for Defined Benefit plans, 
Company is required to ascertain the present value of 
the defined benefit obligation and compare with the fair 
values of the Plan assets to determine the surplus or 
deficit, if any, as at Balance Sheet date. Deficit, if any, 
needs to be accounted in the books of the Company. 
Accordingly, Company has recognized an amount of 
` 19.07 crore as contribution to Trust owing to such 
deficit.

f)	 Note No 54.2 - Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD) 
advanced to Fertilizers and Chemicals Travancore 
Ltd :

	 The amount of ` 25.50 crore being the share of 
contribution of Fertilizers and Chemicals Travancore 
Ltd (FACT) - a 50% JV partner in FACT-RCF Building 
Products Ltd (FRBL) paid by RCF towards one-time 
settlement entered into between FRBL and their bankers 
resulting in discharge of Corporate Guarantee given by 
Company to FRBL bankers has been reported under 
Inter Corporate Deposit (ICD). This ICD along with 
interest outstanding for the half year ending 31st March 
2020 amounting to ` 1.09 crore has not been provided 
for, considering improvement in FACT’s financial 
position and the Company is confident of settlement of 
the ICD given. FACT is a Government owned Entity 
and outstanding interest has been settled by them in 
May 2020. Further the Company has entered into an 
agreement with FACT for the ICD given, wherein FACT 
shall repay the same in five annual equal instalments 
commencing from December 2020.

g)	 Note No. 59 - Loss on fair valuation of Transferable 
Development Rights (TDR) :

	 The loss on account of fair valuation of Transferble 
Development Rights (TDRs) received /accrued has been 
reported as exceptional item amounting to ̀  100.17 crore. 
Hitherto, as at 31.03.2019 the Company expecting TDRs 
to be sold in the coming financial year had classified 
the same under Non-Current Assets Held for sale. 
Considering the current depression in the real estate 
segment which has been further aggravated owing to 
COVID-19 pandemic, the sale of the same is not highly 
probable. Accordingly as per IND AS 105, the TDRs 
cannot be classified as Non-Current Asset Held for sale 
and has been transferred at fair value of ` 31.23 crore 
and reported as investments at 31.03.2020.
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Sr.No. Key Audit matter Response to Key Audit Matter
1 Revenue recognition and measurement in respect to 

subsidy income.
Recognition of subsidy is generally made on the basis 
of in principle recognition/approval /settlement of 
claims from Government of India/Fertilizer Industry 
Co-ordination Committee while finalizing the financial 
statements.

During the year, Company has recognized an amount 
of ` 95.74 crore refundable to FICC/DOF towards 
adjustment to subsidy income on estimated basis. Further, 
considering the notification issued by DoF dated 30th 
March 2020, removing the ambiguity in respect of eligible 
compensation of fixed costs effective from 2nd April, 2014 
under Modifed NPS III, Company has recognized net 
subsidy income of ̀  342.92 crore based on the assessment 
of its eligibility and also provided for certain anticipated 
recoveries by DoF towards final adjustments of subsidy 
on NPK fertilizers and other subsidy receivables.

MRP of urea being fixed by Government of India, the 
company is entitled for subsidy wherein certain inputs 
costs are a pass through and compensation for production 
beyond a level of production known as Reassessed

Our Procedure included:

Accounting policies and principles:
We have reviewed the Company`s Accounting policies for 
Subsidy on Urea as mentioned under “Note A. Statement 
of Significant Accounting policies III) D) Revenue 
Recognition” of the financial statements and the same is 
compared with the applicable Ind AS.

Tests of controls:
We have evaluated the design, implementation and 
operating effectiveness of key controls over recognition 
of subsidy income.

Tests of details:
We have verified the supporting documentation for 
determining that the subsidy was recognized in the correct 
accounting period and as per notified rates.
In absence of notified rates, we have verified calculation 
of estimated rates based on information available with 
the Company for such costs which are a pass through.
In case estimation of income is based on other parameters 
like IPP of Urea etc. verification of the same based on 
available information in public domain.

h)	 Note No. 62 – Revision of Consolidated Financial 
Statements:

	 We draw attention to Note 62 to the financial statements, 
which describes reason for revision of consolidated 
financial statements.

	 Our Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 
dated May 29, 2020, approved by the Board of Directors 
of the Company, is revised based on the revision in 
consolidated financial statements on the directions of the 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India to consolidate 
the figures of Jointly Controlled entities based on the 
respective audited financial statements instead of the 
unaudited management certified financial statements.

	 This audit report supersedes the original audit report on 
consolidated financial statements dated May 29, 2020.

i)	 Note No. 65 - Effects of COVID-19 :
	 We draw attention to Note 65 to the financial statements, 

which describes the impact of the outbreak of coronavirus 
(COVID-19) on the business operations of the company. 
In view of highly uncertain economic environment, a 
definitive assessment of the impact on the subsequent 
periods is highly dependent upon circumstances as the 
evolve.

	 Further our attendance at the physical inventory 
verification done by the management at the year end, 
wherever taken, was impracticable under the current 
lockdown restrictions imposed by the government and 
we have therefore relied on related alternative procedures 
to obtain comfort over the existence and condition of the 
inventory at year end.

	 Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matters.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional 
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
financial statements of the current period. These matters were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated 
IND AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters.

The key audit matters identified in our audit are:
1.	 Revenue Recognition and measurement in respect of 

subsidy income.
2.	 Transferrable Development Rights (TDR) – Accounting 

and Valuation.
3.	 Estimation of Provision & Contingent Liabilities.
4.	 Information Technology General Control.
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Sr.No. Key Audit matter Response to Key Audit Matter

capacity is restricted to lower of Import Parity Price 
(IPP) of Urea plus other incidental charges which 
the government incurs on imported urea, or its own 
concession price, as determined under extant policies 
for Urea. Further subsidy income is net of adjustments 
of recoveries towards sale/transfer for surplus ammonia 
or non-conversion of entire ammonia into urea.

Since there is a time lag between actual expenditure 
incurred and notification of concession rates for the year, 
Management exercises significant judgement in arriving 
at the income entitled on account of same for the year.

Therefore, there is a risk of revenue being misstated on 
account of errors in estimation of concession/IPP rates yet 
to be notified, due to absence of notification available and 
change in methodology/ calculation, if any for arriving 
at price concession.

Testing reasonability of assumptions based on past trends, 
consistency in application and changes in the same owing 
to change in Government policies

Performing substantive analytical procedures: -
Ascertainment and analysis of variations with respect of 
amounts estimated and actually entitled upon notification 
with respect to previous years.

We also assessed as to whether the disclosures in respect 
of revenue were adequate.

2. Transferrable Development Rights (TDR) – 
Accounting and Valuation
The loss on account of fair valuation of Transferable 
Development Rights (TDRs) received /accrued has been 
reported as exceptional item amounting to ̀  100.17 crore. 
Hitherto, as at 31.03.2019 the Company expecting TDRs 
to be sold in the coming financial year had classified the 
same as Non-Current Assets Held for sale. Considering 
the current depression in the real estate segment which has 
been further aggravated owing to COVID-19 pandemic, 
the sale of the same is not highly probable. Accordingly, 
as per IND AS 105, the TDRs cannot be classified as 
Non-Current Asset Held for sale and has been reclassified 
as investment at fair value of ` 31.23 crore for the year 
ended 31.03.2020.

Further an amount of ` 75.17 crore along with interest 
thereon has not been accounted as per an arbitration award 
on the said matter as per Note 59 to Consolidated Ind AS 
financial Statement.

Management judgement has been exercised in accounting 
and valuation of the same which is based on the 
representation and explanation given by the management 
along with confirmation from a lawyer in respect of matter 
in dispute and valuation report of an independent valuer.

In the absence of any empirical evidence relating to 
value of TDR’s realized by the Company in the past 
and determination of probability of receipt of TDRs 
considering present scenario where TDRs is in dispute, 
these judgements may result in error in estimation which 
may impact future financial statements.

Internal enquiry:
We enquired of the senior management, and inspected 
the minutes of the board, and various committees of the 
board in regard with receipt of TDRs wherever TDRs is in 
dispute and efforts made by the company for sale of TDR.

Accounting policies:
Further, we focused on whether the valuation of TDR has 
been in accordance as per accounting guidance issued by 
ICAI and the classification and reporting of the same as 
per applicable accounting standards.

Enquiry and confirmation of lawyers:
In respect of matters which are under dispute as far 
as TDR is concerned, we have assessed and received 
confirmation / opinion of Company’s in-house Legal 
Department where ever necessary.

Tests of controls
We have evaluated the design, implementation and 
operating effectiveness of key controls that the 
management has established for Accounting, classification 
and valuation of TDR’s.

Tests of details:
We have relied on report as prepared by independent 
valuer’s and have reviewed the assumptions made by the 
valuer in it for its acceptability.

We also assessed as to whether the disclosures in respect 
of TDR’s were adequate.
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Other Matters
The consolidated Ind AS financial statements include the 
Group’s share of net loss of ` 1.01 crore and ` 0.01 crore 
for the year ended March 31, 2020, as considered in the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in respect of jointly 
controlled entities i.e. Talcher Fertilizers Limited and Urvarak 
Videsh Limited respectively, whose financial statements have 
not been audited by us.

In respect of FACT RCF Building Products Limited, the 
Company’s investment therein has been fully provided. 
Accordingly, the Company has not recognised share of its 
losses for the year ended March 31, 2020 in this Joint Venture.

These financial statements have been audited by other auditors 
whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management 
and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in 
so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included 
in respect of these jointly controlled entities and our report 
in terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so 
far as it relates to the aforesaid jointly controlled entities, is 
based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

In our opinion and according to the information and 
explanations given to us by the Management, these Ind AS 
financial statements are not material to the Company.

Sr.No. Key Audit matter Response to Key Audit Matter

3 Estimation of Provision & Contingent Liabilities
In the recognition and measurement of provisions, there 
is uncertainty about the timing or amount of the future 
expenditure required to settle the liability.

In respect of contingent liabilities, there are estimates 
and assumptions made to determine the amount to be 
disclosed.

As a result, there is a high degree of judgement required 
for the recognition and measurement of provisions and 
disclosure of contingent liabilities.

Company has reported Provision and Contingencies 
amounting to ` 1697.23 crore in the financial statement.

There is a risk of material misstatement that the estimates 
are incorrect and that the provisions or contingent 
liabilities are materially misstated.

Internal enquiry:
We enquired of the senior management, and inspected 
the minutes of the board, and various committees of the 
board where relevant, for claims arising and challenged 
whether provisions are required.

Tests of details:
In respect of significant claims, we checked the amount 
of claim, nature of issues involved, management 
submissions and corroborated the same with external 
evidence, where available.

Enquiry and confirmation of lawyers:
In respect of matters which are under dispute, we 
have assessed opinion of Company’s in-house Legal 
Department / external lawyers where ever necessary.

4 Information Technology Controls
A significant part of the company’s financial reporting 
process is heavily reliant on IT systems with automated 
processes and controls over the capture, storage and 
extraction of information. A fundamental component of 
these processes and controls is ensuring appropriate user 
access and change management protocols exist and being 
adhered to. These protocols are important because they 
ensure that access and changes to IT systems and related 
data are made and authorised in an appropriate manner. 
As our audit sought to place a high level of reliance on 
IT systems and application controls related to financial 
reporting, high proportion of the overall audit effort was 
in Information Technology (IT) Systems and Controls. We 
focused our audit on those IT systems and controls that are 
significant to the Company’s financial reporting process.

We focused our audit on those IT systems and controls 
that are significant to the Company’s financial reporting 
process.
We assessed the design and tested the operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s IT controls, including 
those over user access and change management as well 
as data reliability.
In a limited number of cases we adjusted our planned 
audit approach as follows:
–	 we extended our testing to identify whether there had 

been unauthorized or inappropriate access or changes 
made to critical IT systems and related data;

–	 where automated procedures were supported by 
systems with identified deficiencies, we extended our 
procedures to identify and test alternative controls; 
and

–	 where required, we performed a greater level of 
testing to validate the integrity and reliability of 
associated data and reporting.
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Other Information
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Director’s Report, Management 
Discussion & Analysis Report, Business Responsibility 
Report and Corporate Governance Report but does not 
include the financial statements and our auditor’s report 
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover 
the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 
so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.

When we read the Director’s Report, Management Discussion 
& Analysis Report, Business Responsibility Report and 
Corporate Governance Report, if we conclude that there 
is a material misstatement therein, we are required to 
communicate the matter to those charged with governance

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged 
with Governance for the Consolidated IND AS Financial 
Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, the financial performance, 
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows 
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting 
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of 
the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; 
selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 
presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated IND AS financial statements, 
management is responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the 
going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing 
the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated 
IND AS Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the consolidated IND AS financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, 
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and 
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, 
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic 
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 
IND AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

●	 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement 
of the consolidated IND AS financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit 
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or 
the override of internal control.

●	 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 
adequate internal financial controls system in place and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

●	 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management.
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●	 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the consolidated IND AS financial statements or, if 
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. 
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future 
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease 
to continue as a going concern.

●	 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of 
the consolidated IND AS financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated IND AS 
financial statements represent the underlying transactions 
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
consolidated IND AS financial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic 
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope 
of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; 
and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements 
in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing 
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and 
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with 
governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the consolidated IND AS financial 
statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, 
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.	 As required by Section 143 (5) of the Act, we give in 

“Annexure A” the directions and sub-directions issued 
by the Comptroller and Auditors General of India, the 
action taken thereon and its impact on the accounts and 
financial statements of the Company.

2.	 As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

	 a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

	 b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.

	 c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Statement 
of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated Statement 
of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in 
agreement with the relevant books of account

	 d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements comply with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 
of the Act.

	 e)	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on 31st March, 2020 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the 
directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2020 from 
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 
164(2) of the Act.

	 f)	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting of the Company and 
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to 
our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

	 g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in 
the Auditor’s Report as per section 143 (3) (j):

		  I.	 in accordance with requirements of section 197 
(16) of the act as amended: As per notification 
number G.S.R. 463 (E) dated June 5, 2015 
issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Section 
197 of the Act as regards the managerial 
remuneration is not applicable to the Company, 
since it is a Government Company.

		  II.	 in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion 
and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us:
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		  i.	 The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements – Refer Note 41 to the Ind AS financial statements.

		  ii.	 The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting standards, for 
material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

		  iii.	 There is no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection 
Fund by the Company.

For CHHAJED & DOSHI
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101794W

For FORD RHODES PARKS & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 102860W/W100089

Kiran K. Daftary
Partner
Membership. No. 010279
UDIN: 20010279AAAABI6528

Astha Kariya
Partner
Membership. No. 122491
UDIN: 20122491AAAACS7113

Place: Mumbai
Dated: October 9, 2020
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (REVISED)
Referred to in Para 1 ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the 
members of the Company on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

Report on the Directions and Sub-directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditors General of India, the action 
taken thereon and its impact on the accounts and financial statement of the Company under Section 143(5) of the Act:

A.	 Directions

1.	 Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transactions through IT system? If no, 
the implications of processing of accounting transactions outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along 
with the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

	 As per information and explanations given to us, most important functional areas of organization like Financial 
Accounting, Sales Accounting, Human Resources Information, Payroll, Material/Inventory Management etc. have 
been computerized. The Company has implemented SAP during 2005-06 in order to make information processing fully 
integrated and centralized. Following modules have been implemented SAP ERP wherein transactions are processed 
in an integrated manner.

	 ●	 Finance & Costing (FI-CO)
	 ●	 Asset Management (AM)

	 ●	 Production Planning (PP)

	 ●	 Plant Maintenance (PM)

	 ●	 Materials Management (MM)

	 ●	 Sales & Distribution (SD)

	 ●	 Cost Object & Profitability Analysis (CO-PA)

	 ●	 Business Warehouse (BW)

	 ●	 Environment Health & Safety (EHS)

	 ●	 Township Management

	 ●	 HR & Pay Roll (HCM- Implemented during the year 2006-07)

	 In 2010, along with an upgrade of the existing SAP business applications, following new solutions were also implemented
	 ●	 SAP Enterprise portal (Employee Self Service/Manager Self Service)
	 ●	 Governance, Risk and Compliance

	 Attendance recording system is another subsidiary system specifically developed to meet the requirements of the 
Company for recording attendance of unionized category employees of the Company. The attendance data from this 
system is directly uploaded in SAP for payroll processing.

	 The IT system has been also configured to meet the compliance and business requirements as mandated by applicability 
of Ind AS and Goods and Services Act.

	 Thus, the IT system enables integrated processing of most of the accounting transactions. However certain accounting 
transactions relating to subsidy income, recording of transactions relating to borrowings payment of interest etc., 
corporate taxes, valuation of finished goods inventory as per principles of Ind AS and certain year end provisions are 
processed directly in the Finance module of the SAP IT system as these transactions are consolidated to finance. Such 
transactions and balances are adequately supported by relevant documents maintained / calculations maintained in 
Excel work books. A maker checker protocol is also followed to check the calculations and the effect of the entries are 
posted in SAP system.
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	 Further based on the information processed in SAP system, such data is extracted to for preparation and presentation 
of financial statements as per Schedule III of Companies Act. Proper checks and controls are exercised so that the 
information presented is in consonance with the based data extracted.

2.	 Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts /loans/interest etc. 
made by a lender to the company due to the company’s inability to repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact 
may be stated.

	 Based on audit procedure performed by us and as per the information and explanation given to us, there is no restructuring 
of an existing loan or cases of waiver/write off of debts /loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the company due to the 
company’s inability to repay the loan.

3.	 Whether funds received/receivable for specific schemes from central/ state agencies were properly accounted 
for/ utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases of deviation.

	 As per information and explanations given to us, Company has not received any funds for specific schemes from central/
state agencies during the year.

B.	 Sub-directions

1.	 State the area of land under encroachment and briefly explain the steps taken by the Company to remove 
encroachments.

	 To the best of our knowledge and belief and according to the information and explanations given to us, instances of 
encroachment of land have been observed at Trombay unit which are as under:

	 i.	 Approx. 5 acres of land which is in the name of RCF has been encroached since the time of FCI. The value of the 
land cannot be determined exactly. RCF has approached the agencies like MMRDA for development of this land.

	 ii.	 Approx. 15 Acres is under slum/encroached since 1980.Slums from other pockets were shifted on this land and is 
without clear title in favor of RCF. The matter is taken up with appropriate authorities for obtaining clear title in 
favor of RCF.

	 Both the matters are pending in Mumbai High Court for resolution. As explained to us, other than the above there are 
no cases of encroachment of land at other locations.

2.	 (i)	 Whether subsidy received/recoverable from Government of India has been properly accounted for as per 
claims admitted ?

		  Based on the audit procedures performed by us and as per the information and explanations given to us, subsidy 
received/recoverable from Government of India has been properly accounted for as per claims admitted. In 
addition to the same, for the rates yet to be notified due to escalations/de-escalations in the cost of inputs and other 
costs, subsidy has been accounted on estimated basis which is in line with its stated accounting policy of revenue 
recognition given in notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year 2019-20.

	 (ii)	 Whether subsidy received during the year has been reconciled with subsidy disbursed by the Government 
of India?

	 Subsidy received during the year amounting to ` 5952.00 crore is in agreement with the amount disbursed by the 
Government of India.

3.	 Whether the Transferable Development Rights (TDR) from Maharashtra Government properly valued and 
accounted for

	 As per explanation and information given to us, Transferable Development rights have been properly valued and 
accounted for, summary of the same is as follows:
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Particulars
2019-20 2018-19

Change
Land TDR TDR Value Land TDR TDR Value
Sq. Mt. Sq. Mt. ` Crore Sq. Mt. Sq. Mt. ` Crore ` Crore

TDR Received: MMRDA 8,265 16,530 12.62 8,265 16,530 55.50 -42.89
TDR Accrued:
MMRDA 40,585 11,799 9.00 40,585 11,799 30.96 -21.95
MCGM (Refer Note 1) 6,320 13,273 9.70 7,000 15,400 45.03 -35.33
TDR Dispute 22,173 - - 22,173 - – –
Total 77,343 41,602 31.32 78,023 43,729 131.49 -100.17

Note :

1.	 During the year 2019-20, the land handed over to MCGM was measured by CTSO and the measurement arrived at is 
6320.30 Sq. Mtr as against 7000 Sq. Mtr accounted by the Company in 2018-19. Company has accounted 7000 Sq. 
Mtr based on provisional letter issued by Chief Engineer, Development Plan, MCGM. Further MCGM has approved 
grant of TDR of 13273.63 sq. Mtrs which includes bonus @10% as against 20% considered in 2018-19.

2.	 As per Note no. 58 to the “Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement,” the Company had received an arbitration award 
in its favor of compensation claimed in respect of transfer of land to Mumbai Metropolitan Regional Development 
Authority (MMRDA) on May 23, 2018. As per the Award, the Company is eligible for additional compensation either 
in the form of Cash or TDRs amounting to `75.17 crore along with interest @9% thereon from March 31, 2015 till the 
date of realization of award. As the award is being appealed against MMRDA, pending final outcome of the same, the 
Company has not recognised any income accruing on account of the same.

For CHHAJED & DOSHI
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 101794W

For FORD RHODES PARKS & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 102860W/W100089

Kiran K. Daftary
Partner
Membership. No. 010279
UDIN: 20010279AAAABI6528

Astha Kariya
Partner
Membership. No. 122491
UDIN: 20122491AAAACS7113

Place: Mumbai
Dated: October 9, 2020
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (REVISED)
Referred to in Para 3 (f) ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in our Independent Auditor’s Report to the 
members of the Company on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 (“the Act”)
In Conjunction with our audit of Consolidated Ind AS financial Statement of the Company as of and for the year ended 
March 31, 2020, we have audited the internal financial controls with respect to financial statements of RASHTRIYA 
CHEMICALS AND FERTILIZERS LIMITED (“the Company”) and its jointly controlled entities which are companies 
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control with respect to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the 
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with respect to Financial Statement 
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by 
ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial 
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls with respect to financial Statement was established and maintained and 
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
system with respect to financial Statement and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with respect to financial Statement included obtaining an understanding of internal 
financial controls with respect to financial statement, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Company’s internal financial controls system with respect to financial statement.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with respect to Financial Statement
A Company’s internal financial control with respect to financial statement is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control with respect to 
financial statement includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable 
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a 
material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with respect to Financial Statement
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with respect to financial statement, including the possibility 
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not 
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with respect to financial Statement to future 
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control with respect to financial statement may become inadequate 
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company and its jointly controlled entities, which hare incorporated in India, have in all material respects 
an adequate internal financial control with respect to financial statement system and such internal financial controls with 
respect to financial statement were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control with respect to 
financial statement criteria established by the Company and its jointly controlled entities, considering the essential components 
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters
Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial 
controls with respect to financial statement, in so far as it relates to the three jointly controlled entities, namely Urvarak 
Videsh Limited, FACT RCF Building Products Limited and Talcher Fertilizers Limited, which are companies incorporated 
in India, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

For CHHAJED & DOSHI
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 0101794W

For FORD RHODES PARKS & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 102860W/W100089

Kiran K. Daftary
Partner
Membership. No. 10279
UDIN: 20010279AAAABI6528

Astha Kariya
Partner
Membership. No. 122491
UDIN: 20122491AAAACS7113

Place: Mumbai
Dated: October 9, 2020
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF 
INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(B) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON THE 
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF RASHTRIYA CHEMICALS AND 
FERTILIZERS (RCF) LIMITED FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of Rashtriya Chemicals and Fertilizers (RCF) Limited (Consolidated) 
for the year ended 31 March 2020 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies 
Act, 2013 is the responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditors appointed by the Comptroller and 
Auditor General of lndia under section 139(5) of the Act read with section 129(4) of the Act are responsible for expressing 
opinion on the financial statements under section 143 read with section 129(4) of the Act based on independent audit in 
accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by 
them vide their Revised Audit Report dated 9 October 2020 which supersedes their earlier Audit Report dated 29 May 2020.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a supplementary audit of the consolidated 
financial statements of Rashtriya Chemicals and Fertilizers (RCF) Limited for the year ended 31 March 2020 under section 
143(6)(a) read with section 129 (4) of the Act. We conducted a supplementary audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
of Rashtriya Chemicals and Fertilizers (RCF) Limited, FACT-RCF Building Products Limited and Talcher Fertilizers Limited 
but did not conduct Supplementary audit of the financial  statement of Urvarak Videsh Limited for the year ended on that 
date. This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working papers of the statutory 
auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and company personnel and a selective examination 
of some of the accounting records. 

In view of the revision made in the consolidated financial statements by the Management, as indicated in Note No.56 and 
62 of the financial statements, to give effect to some of my audit observations raised during supplementary audit, I have no 
further comments to offer upon or supplement to the statutory auditors’ report, under section 143(6)(b) read with section 
129(4) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the 
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(Amitabh Prasad) 
Principal Director of Audit 

(Agriculture, Food & Water Resources) 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: 26.11.2020
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2020
	 ` Crore

Particulars Note No. AS AT
31.03.2020

AS AT
31.03.2019

ASSETS
1. NON CURRENT ASSETS

(a)	 Property, Plant and Equipment 1 2121.30 1942.71
(b)	 Capital Work in Progress 1.4 433.49 275.69
(c)	 Investment Property 2 6.10 6.29
(d)	 Intangible Assets 3 2.62 0.99
(e)	 Financial Assets

(i)	 Investments 4 255.77 80.13
(ii)	 Trade Receivables 5 – –
(iii)	Loans 6 20.53 0.27
(iv)	Others 7 – –

(f)	 Other non-current assets 8 203.70 297.26
3043.51 2603.34

2. CURRENT ASSETS
(a)	 Inventories 9 949.94 1478.78
(b)	 Financial Assets

(i)	 Trade Receivables 10 4551.23 4552.54
(ii)	 Cash and Cash Equivalents 11 2.07 3.59
(iii)	Bank balances other than (ii) above 12 1.29 1.27
(iv)	Loans 13 6.50 26.01
(v)	 Others 14 1655.20 43.88

(c)	 Other Current Assets 15 83.53 204.87
7249.76 6310.94

TOTAL ASSETS 10293.27 8914.28
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
A.	 EQUITY

(a)	 Equity Share Capital 16 551.69 551.69
(b)	 Other Equity 17 2627.35 2476.80

3179.04 3028.49
B.	 LIABILITIES

1.	 NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a)	 Financial Liabilities

(i)	 Borrowings 18 600.91 425.11
(ii)	 Trade Payables 19

(A)	total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises.

(B)	 total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises.

211.79 211.79

(iii)	Other Financial Liabilities 20 43.89 43.72
(b)	 Provisions 21 188.55 181.46
(c)	 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 22 196.94 280.33
(d)	 Other non-current liabilities 23 39.11 38.28

1281.19 1180.69
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH 2020
	 ` Crore

Particulars Note No. AS AT
31.03.2020

AS AT
31.03.2019

2.	 CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a)	 Financial Liabilities

(i)	 Borrowings 24 4076.87 2885.47
(ii)	 Trade Payables 25 – –

(A)	total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 
enterprises.

36.81 24.67

(B)	 total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 
and small enterprises.

959.92 1129.13

(iii)	Other Financial Liabilities 26 482.54 451.18
(b)	 Other Current Liabilities 23 81.51 72.82
(c)	 Provisions 27 142.14 141.83
(d)	 Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 28 53.25 –

5833.04 4705.10

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 10293.27 8914.28
Statement of Significant Accounting Policies A
Explanatory Information on Financial Statements 40 - 66

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our report of even date attached
RASHTRIYA CHEMICALS AND FERTILIZERS LTD. For Chhajed & Doshi For Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(S. C. Mudgerikar) Firm Regn. No. 101794W Firm Regn. No. 102860W / W100089
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 03498837 (Kiran K. Daftary) (Astha Kariya)

Partner Partner
(Umesh Dongre) Membership No: 010279 Membership No: 122491
Director (Finance)
DIN : 08039073 Dated : 9th October, 2020

Place: Mumbai
(J. B. Sharma)
Company Secretary
Membership No: FCS5030

Dated : 9th October, 2020
Place: Mumbai
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
	 ` Crore 

Particulars Note No. Year Ended
31.03.2020

Year Ended
31.03.2019

I	 Revenue from Operations 29 9697.95 8885.47
II	 Other Income 30 128.65 81.99
III	 Total Income(I+II) 9826.60 8967.46
IV	 Expenses:

Cost of Materials Consumed 31 3776.22 3880.01
Purchases of Stock in Trade 32 294.43 798.15
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Stock in Trade 33 603.25 (605.27)
Employee benefits expense 34 617.26 591.41
Finance costs 35 237.82 155.85
Depreciation and amortization expense / Impairment 36 171.04 155.69
Other Expenses 37 3823.48 3779.81
Total Expenses 9523.50 8755.65

V	 Profit before exceptional items (III-IV) 303.10 211.81
VI	 Share of Profit / (Loss) of Associates / JV’s (1.02) (6.25)
VII	 Profit before exceptional items (V-VI) 302.08 205.56
VIII	 Exceptional Items 38 100.17 (23.44)
IX	 Profit before tax (VII-VIII) 201.91 229.00
X	 Tax Expense

(1)	 Current tax 71.72 57.12
(2)	 Deferred tax (77.16) 56.16
(3)	 Taxation adjustment of earlier years Excess(-)/Short(+) 0.22 (17.20)

XI	 Profit/ (loss) for the year (IX-X) 207.13 132.92
XII	 Other Comprehensive Income

(i)	 Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (16.27) 8.82
(ii)	 Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 10.90 (3.07)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year (XII) (5.37) 5.75

XIII	 Total Comprehensive Income for the year (XI+XII) 201.76 138.67
XIV	 Earnings per equity share
	 Basic and Diluted Earnings per share (`) 55 3.75 2.41

Statement of Significant Accounting Policies A
Explanatory Information on Financial Statements 40 - 66

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our report of even date attached
RASHTRIYA CHEMICALS AND FERTILIZERS LTD. For Chhajed & Doshi For Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(S. C. Mudgerikar) Firm Regn. No. 101794W Firm Regn. No. 102860W / W100089
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 03498837 (Kiran K. Daftary) (Astha Kariya)

Partner Partner
(Umesh Dongre) Membership No: 010279 Membership No: 122491
Director (Finance)
DIN : 08039073 Dated : 9th October, 2020

Place: Mumbai
(J. B. Sharma)
Company Secretary
Membership No: FCS5030
Dated : 9th October, 2020
Place: Mumbai
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR 
ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

A.	 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL	 ` Crore 
Balance as at 

01.04.2019
Changes in equity share 
capital during the year

Balance as at 
31.03.2020

Balance as at 
01.04.2018

Changes in equity share 
capital during the year

Balance as at 
31.03.2019

551.69 – 551.69 551.69 – 551.69

B.	 OTHER EQUITY
	 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020	 ` Crore 

Particulars
Reserves and Surplus Items of Other Comprehensive 

Income TotalGeneral 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Equity Instruments through 
Other Comprehensive Income

Balance as at 01.04.2019 2431.27 – 45.53 2476.80
Profit for the year – 207.13 – 207.13
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) – (13.87) 8.50 (5.37)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year – 193.26 8.50 201.76
Dividend paid (Including Dividend Distribution Tax)  
Refer note no. 17

– (51.21) – (51.21)

Transfer to General Reserve 142.05 (142.05) – –
Balance as at 31.03.2020* 2573.32 – 54.03 2627.35

	 FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019	 ` Crore 
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Items of Other Comprehensive Income Total

General 
Reserve

Retained 
Earnings

Equity Instruments through Other 
Comprehensive Income

Balance as at 01.04.2018 2340.72 – 37.32 2378.04
Profit for the year – 132.92 – 132.92
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax) – (2.46) 8.21 5.75
Total Comprehensive Income for the year – 130.46 8.21 138.67
Dividend paid (Including Dividend Distribution 
Tax) Refer note no. 17

– (39.91) – (39.91)

Transfer to General Reserve 90.55 (90.55) – –
Balance as at 31.03.2019* 2431.27 – 45.53 2476.80

* The closing balance in General Reserve is arrived after adjustment of Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans ammounting 
to ` 13.87 crore (P.Y. ` 2.46 crore) during the year net of current tax amounting to ` 4.67 crore (P.Y. ` 1.33 crore)
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our report of even date attached
RASHTRIYA CHEMICALS AND FERTILIZERS LTD. For Chhajed & Doshi For Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(S. C. Mudgerikar) Firm Regn. No. 101794W Firm Regn. No. 102860W / W100089
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 03498837 (Kiran K. Daftary) (Astha Kariya)

Partner Partner
(Umesh Dongre) Membership No: 010279 Membership No: 122491
Director (Finance)
DIN : 08039073 Dated : 9th October, 2020

Place: Mumbai
(J. B. Sharma)
Company Secretary
Membership No: FCS5030
Dated : 9th October, 2020
Place: Mumbai
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
	 ` Crore

Particulars Year Ended
31.03.2020

Year Ended
31.03.2019

A	 Cash Flow From Operating Activities
Net Profit before tax 201.91 229.00
Adjustments for :

Depreciation/Loss on impairment of Assets 171.38 156.03
Profit(-) / Loss on sale of Assets 3.21 (1.89)
Changes in value of investements 1.02 6.25
Interest Income (41.41) (17.77)
Dividend Income (0.20) (0.32)
Interest and Finance Charges 237.82 155.85
Provision for Bad/Doubtful debts 4.73 24.58
Unrealised Foreign Exchange (Gain) /Loss 13.39 (6.28)

389.94 316.45
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 591.85 545.45
Adjustments for :

Trade Receivables and Other Assets (1494.44) (1636.23)
Inventories 528.84 (737.13)
Trade Payables and Other Liabilities (145.32) 289.98

(1110.92) (2083.38)
Cash Generated from Operations (519.07) (1537.93)

Direct Taxes Paid (10.60) (98.50)
Net Cash from Operating Activities (A) (529.67) (1636.43)

B	 Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Additions to Fixed Assets (Net of trade credit) (425.47) (302.77)
Sale of Fixed Assets 0.31 4.75
Purchase of Investments -Joint Ventures and Subsidiary (143.16) (11.33)
Intercorporate Deposits – (19.50)
Interest Received 41.37 17.76
Dividend Received 0.20 0.32
Government Grants Received – (526.75) 0.49 (310.28)
Net Cash from Investing Activities (B) (526.75) (310.28)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
	 ` Crore

Particulars Year Ended
31.03.2020

Year Ended
31.03.2019

C	 Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Net Proceeds /Repayment of Working capital facilities and short 
term loans

1181.00 1956.88

Proceeds from Term loans 309.00 267.00
Repayments of Term loans (139.08) (87.19)
Interest paid (241.52) (151.89)
Dividend paid (including Dividend Distribution tax) (51.22) (39.74)
Lease liability paid (3.28) 1054.90 – 1945.06
Net Cash from Financing Activities (C) 1054.90 1945.06
Net Increase/Decrease(-) in Cash and
Cash Equivalent (A+B+C) (1.52) (1.65)

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 1st April (Opening Balance) 3.59 5.24
Cash and Cash Equivalents as at 31st March ( Closing Balance) 2.07 3.59

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on hand 0.01 0.01
Balance With Scheduled Banks
in Current and Cash Credit Accounts 2.06 3.58

2.07 3.59

Note:
1.	 The Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the ‘Indirect Method’ as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind 

AS) 7 on Cash Flow Statement and presents cash flows by operating , investing and financing activities.
2.	 Figures in the Bracket are outflows / deductions.
3.	 Figures of the previous year have been regrouped / rearranged wherever necessary to make it comparable to the current year 

presentation
4.	 The cash credit facilities availed from bank are part of financing activity which do not form part of cash and cash equivalents 

for Cash Flow Statement purpose.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our report of even date attached
RASHTRIYA CHEMICALS AND FERTILIZERS LTD. For Chhajed & Doshi For Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(S. C. Mudgerikar) Firm Regn. No. 101794W Firm Regn. No. 102860W / W100089
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 03498837 (Kiran K. Daftary) (Astha Kariya)

Partner Partner
(Umesh Dongre) Membership No: 010279 Membership No: 122491
Director (Finance)
DIN : 08039073 Dated : 9th October, 2020

Place: Mumbai
(J. B. Sharma)
Company Secretary
Membership No: FCS5030

Dated : 9th October, 2020
Place: Mumbai
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I)	 Corporate information
	 The Company is a public company domiciled in India 

and is incorporated under provisions of the Companies 
Act applicable in India. Its shares are listed on two 
recognized stock exchanges in India. The registered 
office of the Company is located at Priyadarshini, Eastern 
Express Highway, Sion Mumbai 400022.

	 The Company is engaged in the manufacturing and 
marketing of fertilizers and industrial chemicals.

II)	 Basis of preparation and consolidation
	 a.	 The consolidated financial statements of the 

Company and its joint controlled entities have been 
prepared in accordance with accounting standards 
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies 
Act 2013 (the Act), Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by Companies 
(Indian Accounting Standards)(Amendment) 
Rules, 2016 and other relevant provisions of the 
Act. Except for the changes below, the Company 
has consistently applied accounting policies to all 
periods.

		  The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases 
“with the date of initial recognition being 1st April 
2019. Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17 – Leases and 
related interpretation and guidance. The standard 
sets out principles for recognition, measurement, 
presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties 
to a contract i.e. lessee and lessor. Ind AS 116 
introduces a single accounting model and requires 
a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all 
leases more than 12 months, unless the underlying 
asset is of low value.

		  Company has opted for Modified Retrospective 
Option for accounting of its leases (except for 
leases with balance term of less than twelve months 
(short term) and low-value assets), wherein present 
value of remaining lease payments for existing 
operating leases have been calculated using 
incremental borrowing rate as at date of transition 
i.e. 01.04.2019. The present value thus arrived at 
is used to measure Right to Use (ROU) asset at 
amount equal to liability (adjusted for accruals 
and prepayments). No adjustment has been made 
to Retained Earnings. As a result, the comparative 
information has not been restated.

		  The Company has made use of the following 
practical expedient available on transition to IND 
AS 116

		  (i)	 not to reassess whether a contract is or contains 
a lease, accordingly the definition of lease in 
accordance with IND AS 116 and IND AS 
17 will continue to be applied to those leases 
entered or modified before April 1, 2019.

		  (ii)	 The Company has applied a single discount 
rate, consequently, the Company has recorded 
the lease liability at the present value of 
remaining lease payments, discounted using 
the incremental borrowing rate at the date of 
transition and the right to use asset for similar 
amount

		  (iii)	excluded the init ial  direct  costs  from 
measurement of the RoU asset

		  (iv)	Not to recognize RoU assets and lease liabilities 
for leases with balance lease term of less.

	 b.	 The consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared under the historical cost and on accrual 
basis, except for the following:-

		  ●	 Certain financial assets and liabilities(including 
Derivative financial instruments) measured at 
fair value

		  ●	 Certain provisions recognized using actuarial 
valuation techniques

		  ●	 Non-current assets classified as held for sale are 
measured at the lower of their carrying amount 
and fair value less costs to sell.

		  ●	 Transferable development Rights received 
upon surrender of rights on open land which 
are measured at fair value.

	 c.	 The consolidated financial statements are presented 
in Indian Rupees (`) and all values are rounded to the 
nearest crores (` 00,00,000), except when otherwise 
indicated.

	 d.	 The consolidated financial statements relate to the 
Company [Rashtriya Chemicals & Fertilizers Ltd.] 
and Jointly Controlled Entities, viz. [FACT-RCF 
Building Products Ltd. (FRBL), Urvarak Videsh 
Ltd. (UVL) and Talcher Fertilizers Limited.(TFL)].

A. Statement of Significant Accounting Policies forming Part of
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2020
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		  Accounting Convention:
		  The accounting policies have been consistently 

applied by the Company and its Jointly Controlled 
Entities and are consistent with those used to prepare 
the opening balance sheet as at the transition date.

		  The financial statements of the Jointly Controlled 
Entities used in the consolidation are drawn up to 
the same reporting date as of the Company i.e. for 
the year ended 31st March 2019.

		  Principles of Consolidation:
		  The financial statements of Jointly Controlled 

Entities are combined by applying equity method 
in accordance with IND AS 28 -“Investment in 
Associates and Joint Ventures”.

		  The Consolidated Financial Statements are 
prepared using uniform accounting policies for 
like transactions and other events in similar 
circumstances and are presented to the extent 
possible, in the same manner as the Company’s 
separate Financial Statements. Differences in 
accounting policies followed by joint venture 
entity consolidated have been reviewed and no 
adjustments have been made, since the impact of 
these differences is not material.

		  The following Jointly Controlled Entities are 
considered in the consolidated financial statements:

Name of the 
Company

Country of 
Incorpo-

ration

Proportion of 
Ownership 

Interest as on 
30.03.2020

Date of 
the entity 
becoming 

Joint Venture
FACT –RCF Building 
Products Ltd.

India 50.00% 02-May-2008

Urvarak Videsh 
Limited

India 33.33% 18-July-2008

Talcher Fertilizers 
Limited

India 33.33% 13-Nov-2015

	 e.	 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and 
assumptions

1.1	 The preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial 
statements requires management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, 
and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure 
of contingent liabilities as at the Balance Sheet date.

1.2	 Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could 
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to 
the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in 
future periods. Any revisions to the accounting estimates 

are recognized prospectively when revised, in current 
and future periods.

	 Some of the significant judgements and assumptions 
exercised are given as under:-

	 1.2.1	 Impairment of non-financial assets
		  Impairment exists when the carrying value of an 

asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable 
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs 
of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less 
costs of disposal calculation is based on available data 
from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s 
length, for similar assets or observable market prices 
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The 
value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. 
The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount 
rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected 
future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for 
extrapolation purposes. The key assumptions used 
to determine the recoverable amount for the different 
CGUs, including a sensitivity analysis, are disclosed 
separately.

	 1.2.2	 Taxes
		  Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax 

losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the losses can 
be utilised. Significant management judgement is 
required to determine the amount of deferred tax 
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely 
timing and the level of future taxable profits together 
with future tax planning strategies.

	 1.2.3	 Defined benefit plans
		  The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and 

other post-employment medical benefits and 
the present value of the gratuity obligation are 
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial 
valuation involves making various assumptions that 
may differ from actual developments in the future. 
These include the determination of the discount rate, 
future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to 
the complexities involved in the valuation and its 
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is 
highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. 
All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

		  The parameter most subject to change is the discount 
rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for 
plans, the management considers the interest rates 
of government bonds in India.

		  The mortality rate is based on publicly available 
mortality tables as defined by LIC. Future salary 
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increases is based on Company’s assessment based 
on past trends.

	 1.2.4	 Subsidy Income
		  As per extant policies covering subsidy of Urea, 

major inputs like cost of energy, water etc. are a 
pass through in the same. Since the notified rates 
of subsidy of urea incorporating actual revision 
takes time, recognition of subsidy is generally made 
on the basis of in principle recognition/approval /
settlement of claims from Government of India/
Fertilizer Industry Co-ordination Committee while 
finalising the financial statements.

	 1.2.5	 Provision for obsolescence
		  Provision towards obsolete/surplus inventory are 

recognized as per management estimates under the 
assumption that they may fetch 5% of their book 
value upon disposal.

	 1.2.6	 Fair value measurements of financial instruments
		  When the fair values of financial assets and 

financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet 
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in 
active markets, their fair value is measured using 
valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash 
Flow model. The inputs to these models are from 
observable markets where possible, but where this 
is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required 
in establishing fair values. Changes in assumptions 
could affect the reported value of fair value of 
financial instruments.

	 1.2.7	 Application of Discount rates
		  Estimates of rates of discounting are done for 

measurement of fair values of certain financial assets 
and liabilities, which are based on prevalent bank 
interest rates and the same are subject to change.

	 1.2.8	 Estimates of Useful lives of assets/components
		  Company has identified significant components of 

plant and machinery and provides for depreciation 
over their useful lives as per its technical assessment.

	 1.2.9	 Operating Lease
		  The determination of whether an arrangement is 

(or contains) a lease is based on the substance of 
the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The 
arrangement, is or contains a lease is fulfilment of 
the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific 
asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right 
to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not 
explicitly not specified in an arrangement.

		  Lease arrangements in which the Company does 
not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards 
of ownership of an asset are classified as operating 
leases.

		  The company has applied IND AS 116 for 
ascertainment of the same.

III)	Significant accounting policies
	 A)	 Current versus non-current classification
		  The Company presents assets and liabilities in 

the balance sheet based on current/ non-current 
classification.

		  An asset as current when it is:

		  ●	 Expected to be realized or intended to be sold 
or consumed in normal operating cycle,

		  ●	 Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

		  ●	 Expected to be realized within twelve months 
after the reporting period, or

		  ●	 Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from 
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for 
at least twelve months after the reporting period

		  All other assets are classified as non-current.

		  The classification of an asset either current or 
non-current has been made applying the criteria 
of realization of such assets within a period of 12 
months after the reporting date.

		  Where assets have been fully provided for as 
doubtful, the same are classified as non-current.

		  A liability is current when:

		  ●	 It is expected to be settled in normal operating 
cycle.

		  ●	 It is held primarily for the purpose of trading.

		  ●	 It is due to be settled within twelve months after 
the reporting period , or

		  ●	 There is no unconditional right to defer the 
settlement of the liability for at least twelve 
months after the reporting period.

		  The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-
current.

	 B)	 Foreign currencies
		  The consolidated financial statements are presented 

in Indian Rupees (`), which is also the Company’s 
functional currency.
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		  a.	 Transactions and Balances
		  Foreign Currency transactions are accounted at the 

rates prevailing on the date of transaction. Year-end 
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the 
exchange rate prevailing on the date of the Balance 
sheet.

		  Exchange differences arising on settlement or 
translation of monetary items are recognized in 
Statement of Profit and loss for the period in which 
they arise, except for the following:-

		  ●	 Exchange differences on foreign currency 
borrowings relating to assets under construction 
for future productive use (i.e. Capital Work 
in progress), are included in the cost of those 
assets when they are regarded as an adjustment 
on account of interest costs on those foreign 
currency borrowings.

		  ●	 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms 
of historical cost in foreign currencies are 
reported using the exchange rates at the date 
of the transaction.

		  b.	 Exemption availed under Ind AS 101:-
		  Under Indian GAAP, Company had opted to 

capitalize exchange differences arising on translation 
of long term foreign currency monetary items in 
accordance with Para 46A of AS 11.

		  In accordance with Para D13AA of Ind AS 101, 
Company has continued with the policy of adjusting 
exchange differences arising on translation of long-
term foreign currency monetary items outstanding 
as on 31st March 2016, related to acquisition of fixed 
assets, to the cost of the asset and depreciate the 
same over the remaining useful life of such asset. For 
this purpose, the Company treats a foreign currency 
monetary items as “long-term foreign currency 
monetary item”, if it has a term of 12 months or 
more at the date of its obligation.

	 C)	 Fair value measurement
		  The Company measures financial instruments, such 

as, derivatives, investments in equity instruments, 
etc. at fair value at each balance sheet date.

		  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date. The fair value measurement is 
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell 
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

		  ●	 In the principal market for the asset or liability, 
or

		  ●	 In the absence of a principal market, in the most 
advantageous market for the asset or liability

		  The principal or the most advantageous market must 
be accessible by the Company.

		  The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured 
using the assumptions that market participants would 
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming 
that market participants act in their economic best 
interest.

		  A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset 
takes into account a market participant’s ability to 
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its 
highest and best use or by selling it to another market 
participant that would use the asset in its highest and 
best use.

		  The Company uses valuation techniques that are 
appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, 
maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs 
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

		  All assets and liabilities for which fair value is 
measured or disclosed in the financial statements are 
categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described 
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

		  ●	 Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities

		  ●	 Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is directly or indirectly 
observable

		  ●	 Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the 
lowest level input that is significant to the fair 
value measurement is unobservable

		  For assets and liabilities that are recognized in 
the financial statements on a recurring basis, the 
Company determines whether transfers have 
occurred between the levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based on the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement 
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

		  External valuers are involved for valuation of 
significant assets, such as properties, unquoted 
financial assets etc. Involvement of independent 
external valuers is decided upon annually by the 
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Company. Further such valuation is done annually at 
the end of the financial year and the impact if any on 
account of such fair valuation is taken in the annual 
financial statements.

		  For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the 
Company has determined classes of assets and 
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics 
and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the 
fair value hierarchy as explained above.

	 D)	 Revenue recognition
		  Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable 

that the economic benefits will flow to the Company 
and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless 
of when the payment is being made.

		  Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of 
promised products and services to customers in an 
amount that reflects the consideration expected to be 
received in exchange for those products or services.

		  Revenue, including subsidy, in respect of sale of 
goods is recognized when control of the goods has 
transferred, being when the goods are delivered 
to the buyer, the buyer has full discretion over the 
goods and there is no unfulfilled obligation that 
could affect the buyer’s acceptance of the goods.

		  Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable, taking into 
account contractually defined terms of payment. 
Amounts disclosed as revenue are inclusive of excise 
duty and net of returns, rebates, Value added taxes 
and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

		  Volume discounts, pricing incentives and other 
variable rebates are reduced from revenue. In respect 
of quantity rebates the Company recognizes the 
liability based on the estimate of the customer future 
purchases. Any change in the estimated amount of 
obligation of discount is accounted in the period in 
which the change occurs.

		  Scrap, salvaged/waste materials and sweepings are 
accounted for on delivery/realization.

		  Subsidy and Other Operating revenue
		  Recognition of Subsidy is generally made on 

the basis of in principle recognition/ approval/ 
settlement of claims from Government of India /
Fertilizer Industry Co-ordination Committee.

		  Concessions in respect of Urea as notified under 
the New Pricing Scheme is recognized with 
adjustments for escalation/de-escalation in the prices 

of inputs and other adjustments as estimated by the 
management in accordance with the known policy 
parameters in this regard as notified by Government 
of India.

		  Subsidy on P&K fertilizers is recognized based on 
Concession rates as notified by the Government of 
India under Nutrient Based Subsidy Scheme from 
time to time.

		  Subsidy on imported Urea is recognized based 
on lump sum compensation, and other charges 
receivable from the Government of India, as per 
terms of agreement.

		  Uniform freight subsidy on Urea, P&K fertilizers 
and Imported Urea has been accounted in accordance 
with the parameters and notified rates.

		  Subsidy on City Compost is recognized based on 
rates, as notified by the Government of India.

		  Subsidy income is recorded based on the quantity 
sold during the financial year.

		  Remaining Other Operating revenue/other income 
are recognized on accrual basis.

		  Interest income
		  For all debt instruments measured either at amortized 

cost or at fair value through other comprehensive 
income, interest income is recorded using the 
effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that 
exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments 
or receipts over the expected life of the financial 
instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, 
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset 
or to the amortized cost of a financial liability.

		  For interest due from customers, vendor’s etc. 
interest income is recognized when no significant 
uncertainty as to its realization exists and is 
accounted on time proportion basis at contracted 
rates.

		  Dividend
		  Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s 

right to receive the payment is established, which is 
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

		  Rental income
		  Rental income arising from operating leases is 

accounted on accrual basis in accordance with 
the terms of the contract since such charges are 
structured to increase in line with expected general 
inflation to compensate for expected inflationary 
cost.



je<ì^er³e kesÀefcekeÀume SC[ HeÀefì&ueeFpeme& efueefceìs[
Rashtriya Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited

199

		  Commission Income
		  For certain arrangements, Company acts as an agent. 

The role of the Company either as an agent or a 
principal is determined based on evaluation of the 
its role as a primary obligor, has the pricing latitude 
in the said arrangements, its exposure to inventory 
risks and credit risks, on case to case basis.

		  Government grants
		  Government grants are recognized in statement of 

profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods 
in which the Company recognizes as expenses the 
related costs for which the grants are intended to 
compensate and are presented within Other income.

		  Government grants relating to purchase of property, 
plant and equipment are credited to Statement of 
profit and loss on a Straight-line basis over the 
expected lives of the related assets.

		  Others
		  Insurance and other miscellaneous claims are 

recognized on receipt/acceptance of claim.

		  Income from sale of Certified Emissions Reductions 
(CER’s)/Voluntary Emissions Reductions (VER’s)/ 
Renewable Energy Certificates (REC’s) is recognized 
on delivery and confirmation of the same by the 
concerned authorities.

	 E)	 Taxation
		  Income tax expense for a financial year represents 

the sum of tax currently payable, adjustments for 
tax provisions of previous years and deferred tax.

		  a.	 Current tax
			   Current income tax assets and liabilities 

are measured at the amount expected to 
be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to 
compute the amount are those that are enacted 
or substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

			   Current tax items are recognized in correlation 
to the underlying transaction either in Other 
Comprehensive income or directly in equity. 
Management periodically evaluates positions 
taken in the tax returns with respect to situations 
in which applicable tax regulations are subject 
to interpretation and establishes provisions 
where appropriate.

		  b.	 Deferred tax
			   Deferred tax is provided using the liability 

method on temporary differences between 

the tax bases of assets and liabilities and 
their carrying amounts for financial reporting 
purposes at the reporting date.

			   Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all 
taxable temporary differences, except:

		  ●	 When the deferred tax liability arises from 
the initial recognition of goodwill or an 
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a 
business combination and, at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither the accounting 
profit nor taxable profit or loss.

		  ●	 In respect of taxable temporary differences 
associated with investments in subsidiaries, 
associates and interests in joint ventures, 
when the timing of the reversal of the 
temporary differences can be controlled and 
it is probable that the temporary differences 
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

			   Deferred tax assets are recognized for 
all deductible temporary differences, the 
carry forward of unused tax credits and 
any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets 
are recognized for unused tax losses to 
the extent that it is probable that taxable 
profit will be available against which the 
deductible temporary differences and the 
carry forward of unused tax credits and 
unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

		  ●	 When the deferred tax asset relating to 
the deductible temporary difference arises 
from the initial recognition of a asset 
or liability in a transaction that is not a 
business combination and, at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither the accounting 
profit nor taxable profit or loss

		  ●	 In respect of deductible temporary 
differences associated with investments in 
subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint 
ventures, deferred tax assets are recognized 
only to the extent that it is probable that the 
temporary differences will reverse in the 
foreseeable future and taxable profits will 
be available against which the temporary 
differences can be utilized.

			   The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is 
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 
to the extent that it is no longer probable that 
sufficient taxable profit will be available to 
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to 
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be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets 
are re-assessed at each reporting date and are 
recognized to the extent that it has become 
probable that future taxable profits will allow 
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

			   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured 
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the 
year when the asset is realized or the liability 
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted at 
the reporting period.

		  c.	 Current Tax and Deferred Tax
			   Current and Deferred tax are recognized in 

Statement of Profit and loss, except when they 
relate to items that are recognized in Other 
Comprehensive Income (OCI) or directly in 
equity, in which case, the current and deferred 
tax are also recognized in OCI or directly in 
equity respectively.

		  d.	 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 
are offset if a legally enforceable right exists 
to set off current tax assets against current tax 
liabilities and the deferred taxes relate taxable 
entity and the same taxation authority.

		  e.	 In accordance with amendments to the Income 
Tax Act-1961 and the Finance (No.2) Act 2019, 
Company has opted for lower rate of Tax as per 
Section 115BAA which entails payment of tax 
at lower rates subject to certain disallowances. 
Upon exercising the option, the Company will 
not be subject to Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) 
as per Income Tax Act. Thus any eligible MAT 
credit recognized in any previous year and 
grouped under deferred tax stands reversed.

	 F)	 Property, plant and equipment
		  All items of property, plant and equipment, including 

freehold land are initially recorded at cost, net of 
recoverable taxes and discounts.

		  The cost includes the cost of replacing part of 
the property, plant and equipment meeting the 
recognition criteria and borrowing costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition, construction 
or production of a qualifying property, plant and 
equipment upto the date of commissioning of the 
assets.

		  Subsequent to initial recognition, property, plant and 
equipment other than freehold land are measured 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and any 

accumulated impairment losses. The carrying 
values of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed for impairment when events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may 
not be recoverable.

		  Spares costing (Unit value of `10 lacs and above), 
and other components which are required to be 
replaced at intervals, meeting the recognition criteria 
have been classified as Plant and equipment and are 
depreciated separately based on their specific useful 
lives.

		  When a major inspection is performed, its cost is 
recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and 
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria 
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs 
are recognised in Statement of Profit and loss as 
incurred.

		  The present value of the expected cost for the 
decommissioning of an asset after its use is included 
in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition 
criteria for a provision are met.

		  Catalysts which are used in commissioning of new 
projects/plants are capitalized and are amortized 
based on the estimated useful life as technically 
assessed. Subsequent issues of catalysts, if any, are 
treated as inventory.

		  Projects under which assets are not ready for their 
intended use are shown as Capital work in progress.

		  Freehold / Leasehold improvements are considered 
as property plant and equipment.

		  Right of use assets are assets taken under an operating 
lease meeting the criteria laid under Ind AS 116. The 
value of such assets comprise of the amount of the 
initial measurement of the lease liability, any lease 
payments made at or before the inception date of 
the lease plus any initial direct costs, less any lease 
incentives received. Subsequently, the right-of-use 
assets is measured at cost less any accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, 
if any.

		  Exemption availed under Ind AS 101:- On 
transition to Ind AS, Company has elected to 
continue with the carrying value of all its property 
plant and equipment existing as at 1st April 2015, 
measured as per previous GAAP (Indian GAAP) 
and used that carrying value as the deemed cost of 
the property plant and equipment.
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		  a.	 Depreciation
			   Depreciation is calculated on a Straight-line 

basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets 
on the depreciable amount when such assets are 
ready for their intended use.

			   Freehold land has an unlimited useful life and 
therefore is not depreciated.

			   Company has identified significant components 
of plant and machinery and provides for 
depreciation over their useful lives as per 
technical assessment, as per Para 4 of Schedule 
II to Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation 
on other Tangible assets is provided for as 
per useful lives prescribed in Schedule II 
to Companies Act, 2013, except for mobile 
telephones classified under office equipment’s 
which are depreciated over a period of 3 years.

			   Depreciable amount is the cost of an asset, 
or other amount substituted for cost, less its 
residual value. A maximum residual value of 
5% is considered for all assets, except in case 
of roads, wells and fences, office equipment’s 
and end user computing devices like desk tops, 
laptops etc. where it is considered as NIL.

			   Depreciation on additions/deletions to Gross 
Block is calculated on pro-rata basis from the 
date of such additions upto the date of such 
deletions as per useful lives of such assets on 
Straight Line Basis.

			   After recognition of impairment loss, the 
revised carrying amount less residual value 
of the impaired asset would be depreciated on 
systematic basis over the remaining useful life 
of the asset. However, the carrying value after 
reversal is not increased beyond the carrying 
value that would have prevailed by charging 
usual depreciation if there was no impairment.

			   Depreciation on each item of an asset costing 
less than ̀  5,000 are depreciated at 100% in the 
year of capitalization.

			   The residual values, useful lives and method of 
depreciation of property plant and equipment 
are reviewed at each financial year and adjusted 
prospectively, if any.

			   An item of property, plant and equipment is 
de-recognized upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of 

the asset (calculated as the difference between 
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset) is included in the Statement 
of profit and loss in the year the asset is de-
recognized.

			   Assets under construction/Capital Work in 
Progress included under Property, Plant and 
equipment are not depreciated as these assets 
are not yet available for use. However they are 
tested for impairment if any.

	 G)	 Investment Properties
		  Investment properties are properties that are held 

to earn rentals and /or for capital appreciation 
(including property under construction for such 
purposes) and not occupied by the Company for its 
own use.

		  Investment properties are measured initially at cost, 
including transaction costs and net of recoverable 
taxes. The cost includes the cost of replacing parts 
and borrowing costs if recognition criteria are met. 
When significant parts of the investment property 
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company 
depreciates them separately based on their specific 
useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs 
are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

		  Subsequent to initial recognition, investment 
properties are stated at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if 
any.

		  Depreciation on Investment property, wherever 
applicable, is provided on straight line basis as per 
useful lives prescribed in Schedule II to Companies 
Act 2013.

		  Investment properties are derecognised either 
when they have been disposed off or when they 
are being occupied by the Company for its own 
use or when they are permanently withdrawn from 
use and no future economic benefit is expected 
from their disposal. The difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of 
derecognition.

		  Exemption availed under Ind AS 101:-On 
transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to 
continue with the carrying value of its Investment 
Property existing as at 1st April 2015, measured as 
per previous GAAP (Indian GAAP) and used that 
carrying value as the deemed cost of the same.
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	 H)	 Intangible assets
		  a.	 Recognition and measurement
			   Intangible assets acquired separately are 

measured on initial recognition at cost, net 
of recoverable taxes. The cost of intangible 
assets comprises its purchase price, and any 
cost directly attributable to bringing the asset 
to its working condition for the intended 
use. Following initial recognition, intangible 
assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortization and accumulated impairment 
losses.

			   Exemption availed under Ind AS 101:-For 
transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected 
to continue with the carrying value of all of its 
intangible assets existing as on 1st April 2015 
measured as per the previous GAAP (Indian 
GAAP) and use that value as its deemed cost 
as of the transition date.

			   The Company has no intangible assets with 
infinite useful lives.

		  b.	 Amortization
			   Intangible assets (i.e. software applications) 

having finite useful lives are amortized over 
their respective individual estimated useful lives 
on a STRAIGHT-LINE BASIS, pro-rata from 
the date the asset is available to the Company 
for its use. Management estimates the useful life 
of software applications identified as intangible 
assets as three years. Any expenses incurred on 
intangible assets with finite useful lives up to 
` 1 lakh in each case are being charged off in 
the year of incurrence.

			   Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an 
intangible asset are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized 
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset 
is derecognized.

	 I)	 Impairment of non-financial assets
		  The Company assesses, at each reporting date, 

whether there is an indication that an asset may be 
impaired. For the purpose of assessing impairment, 
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which 
there are separately identifiable cash inflows which 
are largely independent of the cash inflows from 
assets or group of assets (cash-generating units). If 
any indication exists, the Company estimates the 
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable 

amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating 
unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its 
value in use. When the carrying amount of an asset 
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset 
is considered impaired and is written down to its 
recoverable amount.

		  In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a 
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value 
less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 
taken into account.

		  Company bases its impairment calculation on 
detailed budgets and forecasts which are prepared 
for each of its CGU separately.

		  For all the assets, an assessment is made at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is an 
indication that previously recognized impairment 
losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such 
indication exists, the Company estimates the CGU’s 
recoverable amount. A previously recognized 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been 
a change in the assumptions used to determine 
the CGU’s recoverable amount since the last 
impairment loss was recognized. The reversal is 
limited so that the carrying amount of the CGU does 
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the 
carrying amount that would have been determined, 
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been 
recognized for the CGS in prior years. Such reversal 
is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		  Impairment losses of continuing operations, 
including impairment on inventories and right of 
use assets, are recognized in the Statement of profit 
and loss.

	 J)	 Borrowing costs
		  Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization 

of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the 
arrangement of borrowings and exchange differences 
arising from foreign currency borrowings to the 
extent they are regarded as an adjustment to interest 
cost.

		  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of an asset 
that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to 
get ready for its intended use or sale are accumulated 
and capitalized upto the date when such assets are 
ready for their intended use or sale, as part of the 
cost of the asset.
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		  All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period 
in which they occur.

		  Interest income earned on the temporary investment 
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on 
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing 
costs eligible for capitalization.

		  General Borrowings cost incurred in connection 
with qualifying assets are capitalized by applying 
the Capitalization rate on the quantum of such 
borrowings utilized for such assets.

	 K)	 Leases
		  The Company evaluates each contract or arrangement 

at inception, whether it qualifies as lease as defined 
under IND AS 116. That is, if the contract conveys 
the right to control the use of asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration.

		  The Company as a lessee
		  The Company assesses, whether the contract is, or 

contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease 
if the contract involves–

		  (a)	 the use of an identified asset,

		  (b)	 the right to obtain substantially all the economic 
benefits from use of the identified asset, and

		  (c)	 the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

		  The Company at the inception of the lease contract 
recognizes a Right-of-Use (RoU) asset at cost and 
corresponding lease liability, except for leases with 
term of less than twelve months (short term) and 
low-value assets.

		  As at date of transition i.e. 01.04.2019, Company 
has opted for Modified Retrospective Option for 
accounting of its leases (except for leases with 
balance term of less than twelve months (short 
term) and low-value assets), wherein present value 
of remaining lease payments for existing operating 
leases have been calculated using incremental 
borrowing rate

		  Right of use assets
		  The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the 

amount of the initial measurement of the lease 
liability, any lease payments made at or before 
the inception date of the lease plus any initial 
direct costs, less any lease incentives received. 
Subsequently, the right-of-use assets is measured 
at cost less any accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The right-
of-use assets is depreciated using the straight-line 

method from the commencement date over the 
shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use 
assets as follows: -

		  Leasehold land
		M  otor vehicles and other equipment
		  The Right to use assets are also subject to impairment 

as described in the polices with respect to the 
impairment of non-financial assets.

		  For lease liabilities at inception, the Company 
measures the lease liability at the present value 
of the lease payments to be made over the lease 
term. The lease payments are discounted using the 
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate is readily 
determined, if that rate is not readily determined, the 
lease payments are discounted using the incremental 
borrowing rate. After the commencement date, the 
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect 
the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease 
payments made.

		  The Company recognizes the amount of the re-
measurement of lease liability as an adjustment to 
the right-of-use assets. Where the carrying amount 
of the right-of-use assets is reduced to zero and there 
is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease 
liability, the Company recognizes any remaining 
amount of the re-measurement in the statement of 
Profit and loss.

		  For short-term and low value leases, the Company 
recognizes the lease payments as an operating 
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

		  Lease payments are classified in the Cash flow 
statement as cash flows relating to Financing 
activities.

		  Company as a lessor
		  Leases in which the Company does not transfer 

substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership 
of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental 
income from operating lease is recognised as 
revenues as per lease terms since such rentals are 
structured to increase in line with expected general 
inflation. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating 
and arranging an operating lease are added to the 
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised 
over the lease term on the same basis as rental 
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue 
in the period in which they are earned.

		  Leases are classified as finance leases when 
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership 
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transfer from the Company to the lessee. Amounts 
due from lessees under finance leases are recorded 
as receivables at the Company’s net investment in 
the leases.

		  Finance lease income is allocated to accounting 
periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of 
return on the net investment outstanding in respect 
of the lease.

	 L)	 Inventories
		  a.	 Assessment of Inventory
			   Raw Materials, Intermediary Products, By-

Products and Finished Products inside factory 
premises, in bulk form, are assessed by survey 
method on a date as close as possible to the 
Balance Sheet date and the shortages /excesses 
in the quantities as compared to book stocks are 
adjusted in the books. Finished goods and other 
inventory stored outside the factory premises 
are taken as per warehousing certificates and 
third party confirmation respectively.

		  b.	M ode of Valuation
			   Inventory is valued at lower of cost and net 

realizable value except in case of by-products, 
which are valued at, net realizable value.

			   Gases and slurries, if any, in pipelines at 
different stages of process are not valued as the 
same is not practicable.

			   Certified Emission Reductions (Carbon credits), 
Renewable Energy Certificates are valued at 
lower of cost and net realizable value.

		  c.	 Basis of Cost
			   The cost of manufactured finished goods, 

bought out products and intermediary products 
are arrived at based on weighted average cost. 
Bifurcation of cost of joint products is made on 
technical estimates.

			   Cost of raw materials, petroleum products, 
packing materials, stores and spares, and loose 
tools is determined on weighted average cost 
basis.

			   Provision is made in respect of raw materials, 
packing materials, stores and spares and 
petroleum products, wherever appropriate, 
based on technical estimates, to reflect the 
impact of obsolescence, damage or other 
diminution in value.

		  d.	 Measurement of Cost / Realizable Value
			   Cost of Purchases
			   Cost of purchase includes duties, taxes (net of 

those recoverable) freight and other expenses 
net of trade discounts, rebates and price 
adjustments.

			   Cost of Manufactured goods
			   Cost of Manufactured Goods comprises of 

direct cost, variable production overheads 
and fixed production overheads on absorption 
costing method. Catalysts issued are charged off 
over their estimated useful lives as technically 
assessed. Variable production overheads 
are allocated based on actual production. 
Variable overheads related to movement of 
finished products are allocated based on actual 
dispatches. Fixed overheads are allocated 
based on higher of the actual production level 
or normal production level. Average handling 
and transportation costs incurred to bring the 
material in its present location and condition is 
included in valuing stocks in field warehouses 
and in transit.

			   Cost of Traded Fertilizers
			   It comprises of Cost of Purchases as defined 

under (L.d) plus bagging, handling and 
transportation costs incurred to bring the 
material in its present location and condition.

			   Net Realizable Value
			   Price of urea is administered by the Government 

of India by which selling price is fixed for the 
buyer. The net realizable value for manufactured 
urea is taken at the applicable price concession 
(selling price net of dealers’ margin plus the 
applicable subsidy from Government of India) 
net of variable selling and distribution cost. Net 
realizable value of off-spec urea is taken at 40% 
of MRP excluding subsidy.

			   The net realizable value of phosphatic and 
potassic fertilizers is taken at the applicable 
selling prices expected to be realized, net 
of dealers’ margin and variable selling and 
distribution costs plus the concession as fixed/
to be fixed by Government. Net realizable value 
of off-spec phosphatic and potassic fertilizers 
is taken at selling price net of dealers’ margin 
and estimated cost of re-processing including 
transportation cost to factory. The net realizable 
value of off-spec traded phosphatic and potassic 



je<ì^er³e kesÀefcekeÀume SC[ HeÀefì&ueeFpeme& efueefceìs[
Rashtriya Chemicals and Fertilizers Limited

205

out fertilizers is at 30% of MRP excluding 
subsidy.

			   The Net realizable value of imported Urea is 
the selling price net of dealers’ margin and 
other entitled compensation as contracted with 
the Government net of variable selling and 
distribution cost.

			   The net realizable value of off-spec imported 
Urea is taken at 40% of MRP excluding subsidy.

			   Average freight incurred on despatches from 
silo/factory/ port to godown and other products 
handling costs is reduced for arriving at the net 
realizable value in respect of stocks of fertilizers 
in silo/factory/port.

			   The net realizable value of non-fertilizer 
products is taken at lowest selling prices net of 
variable selling and distribution costs , expected 
to be realized in future.

	M )	 Provisions
		  Provisions are recognized when the Company 

has a present obligation (legal or constructive) 
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of 
the obligation. When a provision is expected to be 
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a 
separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is 
virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision 
is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss net 
of any reimbursement.

		  If the effect of the time value of money is material, 
provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks 
specific to the liability. When discounting is used, 
the increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognized as finance cost.

		  Decommissioning liability
		  T h e  C o m p a n y  r e c o r d s  a  p r o v i s i o n  f o r 

decommissioning costs towards its manufacturing 
facilities wherever applicable. Decommissioning 
costs are provided at the present value of expected 
costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash 
flows and are recognised as part of the cost of the 
particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a 
current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to 
the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of 
the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised 

in the statement of profit and loss as a finance cost. 
The estimated future costs of decommissioning 
are reviewed annually and adjusted as appropriate. 
Changes in the estimated future costs or in the 
discount rate applied are added to or deducted from 
the cost of the asset.

	 N)	 Contingencies
		  A contingent liability is a possible obligation that 

arises from past events whose existence will be 
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence 
of one or more uncertain future events beyond the 
control of the company or a present obligation that 
is not recognized because it is not probable that 
an outflow of resources will be required to settle 
the obligation. A contingent liability also arises 
where a reliable estimate of the amount of the 
obligation cannot be made. Contingent assets are 
not recognized but are disclosed where an inflow 
of economic benefits is probable. The estimation 
of financial effect in respect of contingent liabilities 
and contingent assets wherever not practicable, is 
not disclosed and such fact is accordingly stated.

	 O)	 Financial instruments
		  A financial instrument is any contract that gives 

rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 
liability or equity instrument of another entity.

		  a.	 Financial assets
			   Initial recognition and measurement
			   All financial assets are recognized initially at 

fair value. However in case of financial assets 
that are not recorded at fair value through profit 
or loss; the transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition of issue of such 
financial assets are added to the value of the 
financial assets.

			   Subsequent measurement
			   Financial assets presently held by the Company 

are classified as under:-

		  ●	 Debt instruments at amortized cost

		  ●	 Debt instruments and derivatives at fair 
value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

		  ●	 Equity instruments measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income 
(FVTOCI)

		  b.	 Debt instruments at amortized cost
			   A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized 

cost if both of the following conditions are met:
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		  (a)	 The asset is held within a business model 
whose objective is to hold assets for 
collecting contractual cash flows, and

		  (b)	 Contractual terms of the asset give rise on 
specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) 
on the principal amount outstanding.

			   After initial measurement, such financial assets 
are subsequently measured at amortized cost 
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. 
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of 
the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in 
finance income in the profit or loss. The losses 
arising from impairment are recognized in 
the statement of profit or loss. This category 
generally applies to trade and other receivables.

		  c.	 Debt instrument at FVTPL
			   FVTPL is a residual category for debt 

instruments. Any debt instrument, which does 
not meet the criteria for categorization as at 
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as 
at FVTPL.

			   Debt instruments included within the FVTPL 
category are measured at fair value with all 
changes recognized in the Statement of profit 
or loss.

		  d.	 Equity investments
			   All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 

are measured at fair value. Equity instruments 
which are held for trading are classified as at 
FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the 
Company may decide to classify the same as 
at FVTOCI. The Company makes such election 
on an instrument-by-instrument basis upon on 
initial recognition and same is irrevocable.

			   Upon classification of equity instruments 
as at FVTOCI, all fair value changes on the 
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized 
in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts 
from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even 
on sale of investments. The Company may 
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within 
equity.

			   Equity instruments included within the FVTPL 
category are measured at fair value with all 

changes recognized in the statement of profit 
or loss.

		  e.	 Derivative financial instruments
			   The Company enters into a variety of derivative 

financial instruments to manage its exposure 
to interest and foreign exchange rate risks, like 
foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate 
swaps and cross currency swaps.

			   Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value 
on the date the derivative contracts are entered 
into and are subsequently re-measured to their 
fair value (Mark to Market) at the end of each 
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss 
is recognized in the Statement of profit and 
loss. Company does not designate any of its 
derivative instruments as hedge instruments. 
Derivatives are carried as financial assets when 
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities 
when the fair value is negative.

			   Transaction costs incurred for such derivative 
instruments are charged off to Statement of 
Profit and Loss on initial recognition.

		  f.	 Derecognition
			   The Company derecognizes a financial asset 

only when the contractual rights to the cash 
flows from the asset expires or it transfers the 
financial asset and substantially all the risks and 
rewards of ownership of the asset.

			   When the Company has transferred its rights to 
receive cash flows from an asset or has entered 
into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates 
if and to what extent it has retained the risks 
and rewards of ownership. When it has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all of the 
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred 
control of the asset, the Company continues 
to recognize the transferred asset to the extent 
of the Company’s continuing involvement. 
In that case, the Company also recognizes an 
associated liability. The transferred asset and 
the associated liability are measured on a basis 
that reflects the rights and obligations that the 
Company has retained.

			   Continuing involvement that takes the form 
of a guarantee over the transferred asset is 
measured at the lower of the original carrying 
amount of the asset and the maximum amount 
of consideration that the Company could be 
required to repay.
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		  g.	 Impairment of financial assets
			   In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company 

applies Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for 
measurement and recognition of impairment 
loss on the following financial assets and credit 
risk exposure:

		  i.	 Financial assets that are debt instruments, 
and are measured at amortised cost e.g., 
loans, debt securities, deposits, trade 
receivables and bank balance

		  ii.	 Lease receivables

		  iii.	 Trade receivables or any contractual right to 
receive cash or another financial asset that 
result from transactions that are within the 
scope of Ind AS 18.

		  iv.	 Financial guarantee contracts which are not 
measured as at FVTPL

			   Expected credit losses are the weighted average 
of credit losses with the respective risks of 
default occurring as the weights. Credit loss 
is the difference between all contractual cash 
flows that are due to the Company in accordance 
with the contract and all the cash flows that 
the Company expects to receive (i.e. All cash 
shortfalls) discounted at the original effective 
interest rate.

			   While estimating cash flows, Company 
considers all contractual terms of financial 
instrument over the expected life of the financial 
instrument including cash flows from the sale 
of collateral held that are integral to contractual 
terms.

			   The company follows ‘simplified approach’ for 
recognition of impairment loss allowance on:

		  ●	 Trade receivables or contract revenue 
receivables; and

		  ●	 All lease receivables resulting from 
transactions within the scope of Ind AS 17

			   Based on the same, it recognizes impairment 
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each 
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

			   Further for the purpose of measuring lifetime 
ECL allowance for trade receivables the 
Company has used a practical expedient as 
permitted under Ind AS 109.This expected credit 
loss allowance is computed based on a provision 
matrix which takes in account historical credit 

loss experience with adjustments for collaterals 
available and forward looking information, if 
required.

			   ECL allowance is not recognized on Subsidy 
receivables since they are due from Government 
of India and also on other receivables which are 
largely due from Government agencies, as the 
Company does not perceive any risk of default 
which would be material.

			   For recognition of impairment loss on other 
financial assets and risk exposure, the Company 
determines that whether there has been a 
significant increase in the credit risk since initial 
recognition. If credit risk has not increased 
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide 
for impairment loss. However, if credit risk 
has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is 
used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality 
of the instrument improves such that there is 
no longer a significant increase in credit risk 
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts 
to recognising impairment loss allowance based 
on 12-month ECL.

			   ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) 
recognized during the period is recognized 
as income/ expense in the Statement of profit 
and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under 
the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L. The 
balance sheet presentation for various financial 
instruments is described below:

			   Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, 
trade receivables and lease receivables:

			   ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an 
integral part of the measurement of those assets 
in the balance sheet.

			   The allowance reduces the net carrying amount, 
until the asset meets write-off criteria.

			   Trade receivables, other receivables, loans and 
advances are also fully provided for as doubtful 
upon review on case to case basis, to the extent 
of such loss considered as incurred.

		  h.	 Financial liabilities
			   Initial recognition and measurement
			   Financial liabilities are classified, at initial 

recognition as loans and borrowings, payables, 
derivatives and financial liabilities at fair value 
through profit or loss. The Company’s financial 
liability consists of trade and other payables, 
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loans and borrowings, bank overdrafts, financial 
guarantee contracts and derivative financial 
instruments.

			   All financial liabilities are recognized initially 
at fair value and, in the case of loans and 
borrowings and payables, net of directly 
attributable transaction costs, if any.

			   Subsequent measurement
			   The subsequent measurement of financial 

liabilities of the Company depending on their 
classification is described below:-

			   Loans and borrowings including bank 
overdrafts

			   After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans 
and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and 
losses are recognized in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognized as well as through 
the EIR amortization process.

			   Amortized cost is calculated by taking into 
account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or costs that are an integral part of 
the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as 
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

			   This category generally applies to interest-
bearing loans and borrowings.

		  i.	 Financial guarantee contracts
			   Financial guarantee contracts issued by the 

Company are those contracts that require a 
payment to be made to reimburse the holder 
of the guarantee for a loss it incurs because the 
specified debtor fails to make a payment when 
due in accordance with the terms of a debt 
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are 
recognized initially as a liability at fair value, 
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. 
Subsequently, the liability is measured at 
the higher of the amount of loss allowance 
determined as per impairment requirements 
of Ind-AS 109 and the amount recognized less 
cumulative amortization.

		  Derecognition
		  A financial liability is derecognized when the 

obligation under the liability is discharged or 
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial 
liability is replaced by another from the same 

lender on substantially different terms, or the terms 
of an existing liability are substantially modified, 
such an exchange or modification is treated as 
the derecognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss.

	 P)	 Cash and cash equivalents
		  Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet 

comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term 
deposits with a maturity of three months or less, 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 
in value.

	 Q)	 Investments in associates and Joint ventures
		  The results and assets and liabilities of associates or 

joint ventures are incorporated in the consolidated 
financial statements using the equity method of 
accounting, except when the investment, or a portion 
thereof, is classified as held for sale, in which case 
it is accounted for in accordance with IND AS 105.

		  An associate is an entity over which the Company 
has significant influence. Significant influence is the 
power to participate in the financial and operating 
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control 
or joint control over those policies.

		  A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement 
whereby the parties that have joint control of the 
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint 
venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed 
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists 
only when decisions about the relevant activities 
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing 
control.

		  The considerations made in determining whether 
significant influence or joint control are similar 
to those necessary to determine control over the 
subsidiaries.

		  The Company’s investments in its associate and 
joint venture are accounted for using the equity 
method. Under the equity method, the investment in 
an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised 
at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is 
adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share 
of net assets of the associate or joint venture since the 
acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate 
or joint venture is included in the carrying amount 
of the investment and is not tested for impairment 
individually.
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		  The statement of profit and loss reflects the 
Company’s share of the results of operations of the 
associate or joint venture. Any change in OCI of 
those investees is presented as part of the Company’s 
OCI. In addition, when there has been a change 
recognised directly in the equity of the associate 
or joint venture, the Company recognises its share 
of any changes, when applicable, in the statement 
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses 
resulting from transactions between the Company 
and the associate or joint venture are eliminated to 
the extent of the interest in the associate or joint 
venture.

		  If an entity’s share of losses of an associate or a 
joint venture equals or exceeds its interest in the 
associate or joint venture (which includes any 
long term interest that, in substance, form part of 
the Company’s net investment in the associate or 
joint venture), the entity discontinues recognising 
its share of further losses. Additional losses are 
recognised only to the extent that the Company has 
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made 
payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. 
If the associate or joint venture subsequently reports 
profits, the entity resumes recognising its share of 
those profits only after its share of the profits equals 
the share of losses not recognised.

		  The aggregate of the Company’s share of profit or 
loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown on 
the face of the statement of profit and loss.

		  The financial statements of the associate or joint 
venture are prepared for the same reporting period 
as the Company. When necessary, adjustments are 
made to bring the accounting policies in line with 
those of the Company.

		  After application of the equity method, the 
Company determines whether it is necessary to 
recognise an impairment loss on its investment in 
its associate or joint venture. At each reporting date, 
the Company determines whether there is objective 
evidence that the investment in the associate or joint 
venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the 
Company calculates the amount of impairment as 
the difference between the recoverable amount of 
the associate or joint venture and its carrying value, 
and then recognises the loss as ‘Share of profit of 
an associate and a joint venture’ in the statement of 
profit or loss.

		  Upon loss of significant influence over the associate 
or joint control over the joint venture, the Company 
measures and recognises any retained investment at 
its fair value. Any difference between the carrying 
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss 
of significant influence or joint control and the fair 
value of the retained investment and proceeds from 
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

	 R)	 Non – current assets held for sale
		  Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified 

as held for sale if their carrying amount will be 
recovered principally through a sale transaction 
rather than through continuing use. Non-current 
assets (and disposal groups) classified as held for 
sale are measured at the lower of their carrying 
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

		  Transferable development Rights having commercial 
substance, received upon surrender of rights on 
open land is initially measured at fair value. Their 
subsequent measurement would be at lower of their 
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, 
since they are expected to be disposed.

	 S)	 Government grants
		  Government grants are not recognized until there is 

reasonable assurance that the Company will comply 
with the conditions attaching to them and that the 
grants will be received.

		  Government grants are recognized in statement of 
profit and loss on a systematic basis over the periods 
in which the Company recognizes as expenses the 
related costs for which the grants are intended to 
compensate and are presented within Other income.

		  Government grants that are receivable as 
compensation for expenses or losses already 
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate 
financial support to the Company with no future 
related costs are recognized in profit or loss in the 
period in which they become receivable.

		  Government grants relating to purchase of property, 
plant and equipment are included in Other non-
current liabilities and are credited to profit or loss 
on a Straight-line basis over the expected lives of 
the related assets.

		  In the event of such property, plant and equipment 
being disposed off before completion of its estimated 
useful life, the outstanding amount of such capital 
grant is fully credited to profit or loss in the year of 
its disposal.
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	 T)	 Employee benefits
		  a.	 Short Term Employee Benefits:
			   All employee benefits payable within twelve 

months of rendering the service are classified 
as short term employee benefits and they are 
recognized in the period in which the employee 
renders the related service. The Company 
recognizes the undiscounted amount of short 
term employee benefits expected to be paid in 
exchange for services rendered as a liability 
(accrued expense) after deducting any amount 
already paid.

		  b.	 Retirement benefit costs and termination 
benefits and other long term employee 
benefits

			   Defined Contribution Schemes
			   Payments to defined contribution retirement 

benefit plans are recognized as an expense when 
employees have rendered service entitling them 
to the contributions.

			   Company’s defined Contribution made to its 
Super-annuation scheme is charged off to 
Statement of Profit and Loss on accrual basis.

			   Defined Benefit Plans
			   Provident Fund
			   Contribution to Provident Fund is accounted 

for on accrual basis. The Provident Fund 
contributions are made to a Trust administered 
by the Company by both the employer as well 
as employee. The Trust invests in specific 
designated instruments as permitted by Indian 
Law. The interest rate payable to the members 
of the Trust is being administered by the 
Government. The Company has an obligation 
to make good the shortfall, if any between the 
return from the investments of the Trust and the 
notified interest rate. Further in the event there 
is a deficit, owing to the fair valuation of plan 
assets defined benefit obligation at the balance 
sheet date, Company has to fund the shortfall. 
Such shortfall including shortfall in the interest 
is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

			   Gratuity and Post-retirement medical benefits
			   For Defined Benefit plans comprising of gratuity, 

post-retirement medical benefits the cost of 
providing benefits is determined using the 
Projected Unit credit method, with actuarial 
valuations being carried out at the end of each 

annual reporting period. Re-measurements, 
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect 
of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) 
and the return on plan assets (excluding net 
interest), is reflected immediately in the balance 
sheet with a charge or credit recognized in 
other comprehensive income in the period in 
which they occur. Re-measurements recognized 
in other comprehensive income is reflected 
immediately in retained earnings and is not 
reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost 
is recognized in profit or loss in the period of a 
plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by 
applying the discount rate at the beginning of 
the period to the net defined benefit liability or 
asset. Defined benefit costs are categorized as 
follows:

		  ●	 service cost (including current service cost, 
past service cost, as well as gains and losses 
on curtailments and settlements);

		  ●	 net interest expenses or income; and
		  ●	 re-measurements

			   The Company presents the first two components 
of defined benefit costs in the Statement of profit 
and loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits 
expense’. Curtailment gains and losses are 
accounted for as past service costs.

			   The retirement benefit obligation recognized in 
the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or 
surplus in the Company’s defined benefit plans. 
Any surplus resulting from this calculation is 
limited to the present value of any economic 
benefits available in the form of refunds from 
the plans or reductions in future contributions 
to the plans

			   The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan 
and other Post employment medical benefits 
and the present value of gratuity obligation are 
determined using actuarial valuation techniques.

			   Termination Benefits
			   A liability for a termination benefit is recognized 

at the earlier of when the entity can no longer 
withdraw the offer of the termination benefit 
and when the entity recognizes any related 
restructuring costs.

			   Other Long term benefits
			   Liabilities recognized in respect of other long 

term benefits like leave encashment and long 
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term service awards are measured at the present 
value of the estimated future cash outflows to 
be made by the Company (based on actuarial 
valuation)in respect of services provided by 
employees upto the reporting date.

	 U)	 Segment Reporting
		  The Company has recognized the following 

operating segments, viz Fertilizers, Industrial 
Chemicals and Trading, the business activities it 
is primarily engaged into. The same has been done 
based on the review of the operating results, internal 
reporting, review of performance, decision making 
relating to future allocation of resources, policy 
parameters influencing business etc. carried out by 
its Chief Operating Decision Maker i.e. Executive 
Management Committee/Board of Directors.

	 V)	 Prepaid Expenses
		  Individual expense up to ̀  1,00,000 is not considered 

in classifying prepaid expenses.

	 W)	 Research and Developments expenses
		  Revenue expenditure on Research activity is 

recognized separately and charged to Statement 
of Profit and Loss. Expenditure on development 
activities is capitalized when its future economic 
benefits can reasonably be regarded as assured.

	 X)	 Earnings per Share (EPS)
		  Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing 

net profit or loss after tax for the year attributable to 
equity shareholders by the weighted average number 
of equity shares outstanding during the year.

		  Upon discontinuation of an operation, the basic 
and diluted amount per share for the discontinued 
operation is separately reported, as applicable.

	 Y)	 Cash Dividend
		  The Company recognizes a liability to make cash 

distributions to shareholders when the distribution is 
authorized and the same is no longer at the discretion 
of the Company. As per corporate laws in India, a 
distribution is authorized when it is approved by the 
shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognized 
directly in equity.

IV)	Exemptions applied
	 Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions 

from the retrospective application of certain requirements 
under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following 
exemptions.

	 Company has elected to continue with the carrying value 
for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognized 
in the financial statements as at the date of transition 
measured as per Indian GAAP and use that as its deemed 
cost as at date of transition. The same is applicable even 
for Investment property and intangible assets.

	 Company has also reviewed the necessary adjustments 
required to be done in accordance with paragraph D21 
this standard (i.e. adjustments arising on account of 
decommissioning or restoration liabilities) and has 
accordingly considered the impact of the same wherever 
applicable.

	 The Company has designated unquoted equity 
instruments held at 1st April 2015 as fair value through 
OCI.

V)	 IND AS implemented during the year
	 IND AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax 

Treatments:

	 On March 30,2019 Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
has notified Ind AS 12Appendix C, Uncertainty over 
Income Tax Treatments which is to be applied while 
performing the determination of taxable profit( or loss), 
tax bases, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is 
uncertainty over income tax treatments under IndAS 12. 
According to the appendix, companies need to determine 
the probability of the relevant tax authority accepting 
each tax treatment, or group of tax treatments, that the 
companies have used or plan to use in their income 
tax filing which has to be considered to compute the 
most likely amount or the expected value of the tax 
treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax 
bases,unused tax credits and tax rates.

	 The Company has evaluated the effect of the treatment 
on the financial statements and concluded that there is 
no impact.

	 Amendment to Ind AS 12- Income taxes:

	 On March 30, 2019 Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued 
amendments to the guidance in Ind AS12, Income 
Taxes’, in connection with accounting for dividend 
distribution taxes.

	 The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognize 
the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or 
loss, other comprehensive income or equity according 
to where the entity originally recognized those past 
transaction or events.
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	 The Company has evaluated the effect of the treatment 
on the financial statements and concluded that there is 
no impact.

	 Amendment to Ind AS 19, plan amendment, 
curtailment or settlement:

	 On March 30, 2019 Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
issued amendments to the guidance in Ind As19, 
‘Employee Benefits’, in accordance with accounting 
for plan amendments, curtailments and settlements. The 
amendments require an entity-

	 ●	 To use updated assumptions to determine current 
service cost and net interest for the remainder of 
the periods after plan amendment, curtailment or 
settlement and

	 ●	 To recognize in profit or loss as part of past service 
cost, or gain or loss on settlement any reduction 
in surplus even if that surplus was not previously 
recognized because of the impact of the asset ceiling.

	 The Company has evaluated the effect of the treatment 
on the financial statements and concluded that there is 
no impact.

	 Amendments to Ind AS 109, Financial Instruments:
	 The amendments notified to Ind AS 109 pertain 

to classification of a financial instruments with 
prepayment feature with negative compensation. 
Negative compensation arises where the terms of the 
contract of the financial instrument permit the holder 
to make repayment or permit the lender or issuer to put 
the instrument to the borrower for repayment before the 
maturity at an amount less than the unpaid amounts of 
principal and interest. Earlier, there was no guidance on 
classification of such instruments.

	 The Company has evaluated the effect of the treatment 
on the financial statements and concluded that there is 
no impact.

	 Amendments to Ind AS 28, Investments in Associates 
and Joint Ventures:

	 As Company is reporting its Net investment in its Joint 
venture or Associate using Equity Method the Company 
has evaluated the effect of the treatment on the financial 
statements and concluded that there is no impact.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

` Crore
NOTE NO. 4	 “NON-CURRENT ASSETS” 
	 “FINANCIAL ASSETS – INVESTMENTS”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

Investments in Equity Instruments:

Unquoted (Fully paid up)

a	 Joint Ventures

i	 Urvarak Videsh Ltd. 0.02 0.03

	 (1,80,002 equity shares (P.Y.1,80,002) of `10 each )

ii	 Talcher Fertilizers Limited 152.26 10.11

	 (Formerly known as Rashtriya Coal Gas Fertilizers Limited)

	 ( 15,95,04,807 equity shares (P.Y. 1,63,44,568 equity shares) of `10 each)

	 (Under lock in period for 5 year from date of commercial operation)

b	 Others

Indian Potash Limited* 72.26 69.99

(6,73,200 equity shares (P.Y. 6,73,200 equity shares) of `10 each)

Other Investments (Unquoted)

Transfer Development Rights 31.23 –

(Refer Note No. 59)

TOTAL 255.77 80.13

*Reconciliation of fair value measurement of the investment in unquoted equity shares of Indian Potash 
Limited (IPL)

31.03.2020 31.03.2019

Opening balance 69.99 57.38

Total Gains and losses recognised in OCI 2.27 12.61

Closing Balance 72.26 69.99

` Crore
NOTE NO. 5	 “NON-CURRENT ASSETS” 
	 “FINANCIAL ASSETS – TRADE RECEIVABLES”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

Debtors

Credit Impaired 1.56 1.87

Less: Provision for doubtful debts (1.56) (1.87)

TOTAL – –

` Crore
NOTE NO. 6	 “NON-CURRENT ASSETS” 
	 “FINANCIAL ASSETS – LOANS”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

i	 Secured Considered Good : Loans- Employees 0.13 0.27

ii.	 Unsecured Considered Good : Loan- Other CPSE 20.40 –

iii.	 Significant Increase in Credit Risk – –

iv.	 Credit Impaired – –

TOTAL 20.53 0.27
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 7	 “NON-CURRENT ASSETS” 
	 “FINANCIAL ASSETS – OTHERS”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

(i)	 Advances to Related Parties

Considered Doubtful (Refer Note No. 54.1) 36.50 36.50

Less: Provision (36.50) (36.50)

– –

(ii)	 Advance against Equity Pending allotment (Refer Note No. 54.1) 2.36 2.36

Less: Provision towards diminution in value (2.36) (2.36)

– –

(iii)	 Others

Receivables towards Rent / Services provided

Unsecured - Considered Doubtful 4.40 5.84

Less: Provision for doubtful Receivables (4.40) (5.84)

– –

TOTAL – –

` Crore
NOTE NO. 8	 “NON-CURRENT ASSETS” 
	 “FINANCIAL ASSETS – CURRENT ASSET”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

(i)	 Capital Advances

Unsecured -Considered Good 10.31 55.48

(ii)	 Advances other than capital advances

a.	 Security Deposits

Unsecured -Considered Good (Refer Note No. 41.1.3) 19.22 19.12

Considered Doubtful 0.27 0.27

Less: Provision (0.27) (0.27)

19.22 19.12

b.	 Loans (Material given on refundable basis) to Related Parties

Considered Doubtful 1.37 1.37

Less: Provision (1.37) (1.37)

– –

c.	 Other Advances

Unsecured -Considered Good

i.	 VAT Receivable

Unsecured -Considered Good 60.80 107.58

Unsecured -Considered Doubtful 1.30 1.30

Less: Provision (1.30) (1.30)

60.80 107.58

ii.	 Considered Doubtful 3.37 1.62

Less: Provision for doubtful advances (3.37) (1.62)

– –



42nd keeef<e&keÀ efjHeesì&/Annual Report 2019-20

218

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 8	 “NON-CURRENT ASSETS” 
	 “FINANCIAL ASSETS – CURRENT ASSET”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

iii.	 Advance Income Tax (Net of Provision) 109.60 105.15
iv	 Deposits with Customs, Port Trust etc.

Unsecured -Considered Good 3.37 2.99
Unsecured -Considered Doubtful 2.00 2.00
Less: Provision (2.00) (2.00)

3.37 2.99
v.	 Prepaid expenses 0.27 1.06
vi.	 Lease Premium Prepaid – 2.48
vii.	 Other Miscellaneous – 3.17
Total Other Advances 174.04 222.43

(iii)	 Others

Employee Benefit Asset 0.13 0.23
TOTAL 203.70 297.26

` Crore
NOTE NO. 9	 “CURRENT ASSETS” 
	 “INVENTORIES”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

i.	 Raw materials 240.38 272.72
Raw materials-in-transit 85.51 0.36
Raw materials (Total) 325.89 273.08

ii.	 Finished Goods 233.16 306.02
Finished Goods-in-transit 50.67 81.70
Finished Goods (Total) 283.83 387.72

iii.	 Stock in Trade/Bought out Products 3.33 121.57
Stock in Trade/Bought out Products-in-transit – 375.96
Stock in Trade/Bought out Products (Total) 3.33 497.53

iv.	 Intermediary Products 28.90 35.41

v.	 By products 5.77 4.43

vi.	 Stores & Spares, packing materials and Petroleum products 327.36 308.23
Less: Provision for Obsolescence etc./Loss under Investigation (25.14) (27.62)

302.22 280.61
vii.	 Certified Emission Reduction Credits (CER) / Renewable Energy Certificates (REC) – –

(No. of CER Units C.Y. 9,73,738 , P.Y. 9,73,738)
(No. of REC Units C.Y. 13 , P.Y. NIL)

TOTAL 949.94 1478.78
Inventory Includes:
Stores and Spares
a)	 Under inspection 1.87 0.46
b)	 Platinum & Rhodium stolen in earlier year and under investigation which is not available for verification 0.21 0.21
c)	 With fabricators 20.12 8.32
Cost of Inventories Recognised as expense 3866.29 3975.25
Writedown of Inventories charge to P&L (difference between cost & NRV) 10.03 3.56
Reversal of writedowns – –
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 10	 “CURRENT ASSETS” 
	 “FINANCIAL ASSETS – TRADE RECEIVABLES”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

Subsidy Receivable (Unsecured - considered good)* 4248.14 4199.66

Sundry Debtors

Secured - Considered good 108.87 114.90

Unsecured - Considered good 197.35 239.45

Significant Increase in Credit Risk 0.84 0.30

307.06 354.65

Less : Provision for expected credit loss ** (3.97) (1.77)

Total - Sundry Debtors 303.09 352.88

TOTAL 4551.23 4552.54

*Includes an amount of ` 910.66 crore (P.Y. ` 788.17 crore) under special banking arrangement secured by way 
of specific subsidy claims to be settled by DoF/FICC)

** The company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade 
receivables based on provision matrix. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experience. 
The expected credit loss (ECL) allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates 
as given in the provision matrix. The provision matrix at the end of the reporting is as follows.

ECL % - Ageing

Not due 0.24 0.25

00 - 90 days 3.06 2.66

91 - 180 days 19.31 15.36

181 - 365 days 58.35 54.63

> 365 days (fully secured) – –

Age of Receivables (` Cr)

Not due - Receivable from GoI (Not tested for ECL) 12.38 –

Not due - Other Debtors 250.18 342.04

00 - 90 days 35.96 9.60

91 - 180 days 6.67 2.00

181 - 365 days 1.69 0.64

> 365 days (fully secured) 0.18 0.37

307.06 354.65

Movement in ECL allowance (`Cr)

Balance at Beginning of the year 1.77 3.20

Movement 2.20 (1.44)

Balance at End of the year 3.97 1.77

Out of the total Sundry Debtors, Debtors amounting to ` 108.87 Crore as on 31.03.2020 (PY ` 114.90 Crore) 
are secured against collaterals in form of Deposits / Bank Guarantees received and held by the company
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 11	 “CURRENT ASSETS” 
	 “FINANCIAL ASSETS – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

Cash and Cash Equivalents
i.	 Balances with Bank 2.06 3.58
ii.	 Cash on hand 0.01 0.01

TOTAL 2.07 3.59
The above cash and cash equivalent have not been pledged

` Crore
NOTE NO. 12	 “CURRENT ASSETS” 
	 “FINANCIAL ASSETS – OTHER BANK BALANCES”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

i.	 Margin money deposit / Bond Money received from Employees 0.42 0.39
ii.	 In unpaid Dividend Account * 0.87 0.88

TOTAL 1.29 1.27
* Earmarked balances with banks / No amounts are due & payable to Investor Education & Protection Fund

` Crore
NOTE NO. 13	 “CURRENT ASSETS” 
	 “FINANCIAL ASSETS – LOANS”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

i.	 Secured Considered Good
Loans- Employees 0.31 0.51
ii.	 Unsecured Considered Good (Refer Note No. 54.2)
Loan- Other CPSE 6.19 25.50
iii.	 Significant Increase in Credit Risk – –
iv.	 Credit Impaired – –

TOTAL 6.50 26.01

` Crore
NOTE NO. 14	 “CURRENT ASSETS” 
	 “FINANCIAL ASSETS – OTHERS”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

i.	 Finance Lease receivable (Refer Note No. 43)* – 0.34
ii.	 Advance to Related Party – 0.05
iii.	 Derivatives not designated as hedges (receivable) 2.67 0.14
iv.	 Interest Accrued 0.20 0.16
v.	 Receivables towards Rent / Services provided ** 1652.33 43.19

TOTAL 1655.20 43.88
* Expected credit loss-NIL

** Includes an amount of ` 1598.65 Crore receivable from Government of India towards Import of Urea on 
Government Account (P.Y. NIL)
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 15	 “CURRENT ASSETS” 
	 “OTHER CURRENT ASSETS”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

i.	 Advances other than capital advances
Security Deposits
Unsecured -Considered Good 0.08 0.22

ii.	 Other Advances
Unsecured -Considered Good
i.	 Contractors 32.77 19.73
ii.	 Employees 0.29 0.31
iii.	 GST Receivable (Asset) 38.77 43.37
iv.	 Prepaid expenses 10.97 9.00
v.	 Lease Premium Prepaid – 0.14
Total Other Advances 82.80 72.55

iii.	 Non Current Assets held for Disposal 0.57 131.97
(Refer Note No. 53 & 59)

iv.	 Employee Benefit Asset 0.08 0.13
TOTAL 83.53 204.87

` Crore
NOTE NO. 16	 “EQUITY” 
	 “EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

Authorised
80,00,00,000 Equity Shares of `10/- each. 800.00 800.00

Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up
55,16,88,100 Equity shares of `10/- each fully paid up. 551.69 551.69

TOTAL 551.69 551.69

RECONCILIATION OF SHARES OUTSTANDING AT THE BEGINNING AND END OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

31.03.2020 31.03.2019
No. ` Crore No. ` Crore

EQUITY SHARES
At the beginning of the year 551688100 551.69 551688100 551.69
Issued during the year – – – –
Outstanding at the end of the year 551688100 551.69 551688100 551.69

Terms/Rights Attached to Equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of ` 10 per share. 
Each share holder is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays 
dividend in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 
to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in 
case of interim dividend. In the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible 
to receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential 
amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

DETAILS OF SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING MORE THAN 5% SHARES IN THE COMPANY

31.03.2020 31.03.2019

No. % age of 
shareholding No. % age of 

shareholding
i.	 President of India 413769483 75.00 413769483 75.00
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 17	 “EQUITY” 
	 “OTHER EQUITY”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

i.   Other Reserves
General Reserve
Opening Balance 2431.27 2340.72
Add: Transferred (to) / from Retained Earnings 142.05 90.55
Closing Balance 2573.32 2431.27
Equity Instruments through Other Comprehensive Income Reserve
Opening Balance 45.53 37.32
Add: Changes in accounting policy as per IND AS (Net of Tax) – –
Add: Other Comprehensive Income for the year (Net of Tax) 8.50 8.21
Closing Balance 54.03 45.53

ii.   Retained Earnings
Opening Balance / Adjustments – –
Profit for the year 207.13 132.92
Add: Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans (Net of Tax) - Actuarial Valuation (13.87) (2.46)

Less: Dividends paid (C.Y. ` 0.77 per share, P.Y. ` 0.60 per share) (42.48) (33.10)

Less: Dividend Distribution Tax (8.73) (6.81)
Less: Transfer (to) / from General Reserve (142.05) (90.55)
Closing Balance – –

TOTAL 2627.35 2476.80
For FY 2019-20, The board of directors have recommended a dividend of ` 2.84 per share (P.Y. ` 0.77 per share) 
which is subject to approval of the shareholders. Further the same is not subject to dividend distribution tax as per 
changes made in Finance Act 2020 (P.Y. ` 8.73 crore)

` Crore
NOTE NO. 18	 “NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS”

AS AT 31.03.2020 AS AT 31.03.2019
Non 

Current Current Non 
Current Current

SECURED
Term Loan from Banks
1	 Rupee Loan from Banks

a.	 Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited 117.65 58.82 176.47 58.82
A loan of ` 250 crore availed from Kotak Mahindra Bank is secured by first 
pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on movable fixed assets (machinery 
and equipments) of the Ammonia plant situated at Thal to the extent of 1.25 
times of the amount borrowed from bank. The rate of interest is linked to 3 
months MIBOR (reset after every 3 months) plus fixed margin of 1.11% per 
annum. Repayment of the said loan would fall due for ` 58.82 crore in FY 
2020-21, ` 58.82 crore in FY 2021-22, ` 58.83 crore in FY 2022-23.

b.	 Exim Bank 61.94 27.53 89.47 27.53
A loan of ` 117 crore availed from EXIM Bank is secured by first pari passu 
charge by way of hypothecation on movable fixed assets (machinery and 
equipments) present and future of the Urea Plant situated at Thal to the extent 
of 1.25 times of the amount borrowed from bank. The rate of interest is linked 
to 1 year G-sec (reset after every 3 months) plus fixed margin of 1.20% per 
annum. Repayment of the said loan would fall due for ` 27.53 crore in FY 
2020-21, ̀ 27.53 crore in FY 2021-22, ̀ 27.53 crore in FY 2022-23 and ̀  6.88 
crore in F.Y 2023-24.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020
` Crore

NOTE NO. 18	 “NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “FINANCIAL LIABILITIES - BORROWINGS”

AS AT 31.03.2020 AS AT 31.03.2019
Non 

Current Current Non 
Current Current

c.	 State Bank of India 297.56 11.44 – –

A loan of ` 350 crore crore santioned by State Bank of India and availed ` 
309 crore is secured by first pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on 
movable fixed assets (machinery and equipments) present and future of the 
Ammonia 1 Plant, Suphala Plant, Urea Plant, Ammonia V Plant, New Sewage 
Water Treatment Plant situated at Trombay to the extent of 1.25 times of 
the amount borrowed from bank. The rate of interest is linked to 3 months 
MCLR as notified by the bank from time to time. Repayment of the said loan 
would fall due for ̀  11.44 crore in FY 2020-21, ̀  45.78 crore in FY 2021-22, 
` 45.78 crore in FY 2022-23, ` 45.78 crore in F.Y 2023-24, ` 45.78 crore in 
F.Y 2024-25, ` 45.78 crore in F.Y 2025-26, ` 45.78 crore in F.Y 2026-27 and 
` 22.88 crore in F.Y 2027-28

477.15 97.79 265.94 86.35

2	 Foreign Currency Loan / External Commercial Borrowings

a.	 Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited – – – 20.72

A foreign currency Term loan of ̀  100 crore equivalent to USD 15.99 Million 
availed by the Company from Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited, is secured by 
way of hypothecation on movable fixed assets (machinery and equipments) 
of the Ammonia V Plant situated at Trombay to the extent of 1.25 times of 
the loan amount. The rate of interest is 6 months USD LIBOR plus margin 
of 2.75% per annum. The said loan has been fully repaid during the year.

b.	 Yes Bank Limited 18.56 12.38 28.36 11.35

A foreign currency Term loan of ` 55 crore equivalent to USD 8.21 Million 
availed by the Company from Yes Bank Limited, is secured by way of 
hypothecation on movable fixed assets (machinery and equipments) of the 
Medium Pressure (MP) and High Pressure (HP) Nitric Acid Plant situated at 
Trombay to the extent of 1.25 times of the loan amount. The rate of interest 
is fixed at 3.70% per annum. Repayment of the said loan would fall due for ` 
12.38 crore in FY 2020-2021, ` 12.38 crore in FY 2021-22, and ` 6.18 crore 
in FY 2022-23.

c.	 State Bank of India 105.20 35.07 130.81 32.70

Term loan of EURO 25.50 Million availed by the Company from State Bank 
of India Antwerp branch, under RBI Loan Registration no. 201709145 is 
secured by way of hypothecation on movable fixed assets (machinery and 
equipments) of the GTG & HRSG project situated at Thal to the extent of 
1.25 times of the loan amount. The rate of interest is 6 months EURIBOR 
plus margin of 1.05% per annum. Repayment of the said loan would fall due 
for ` 35.07 crore in FY 2020-21, ` 35.07 crore in FY 2021-22 , ` 35.07 crore 
in FY 2022-23 and ` 35.06 crore in FY 2023-24.

123.76 47.45 159.17 64.77

Amount disclosed under the head “OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
(Refer Note No. 26)

(145.24) (151.12)

TOTAL 600.91 – 425.11 –
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` Crore

NOTE NO. 19	 “NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “FINANCIAL LIABILITIES – TRADE PAYABLES”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

Trade Payables

(A)	Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises – –
(B)	 Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 211.79 211.79
	 (Refer Note No. 49)

TOTAL 211.79 211.79

` Crore
NOTE NO. 20	 “NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “FINANCIAL LIABILITIES – OTHERS”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

i.	 Security Deposit from Vendors 34.44 43.71
ii.	 Deposit from Employees 0.01 0.01
iii.	 Other Liabilities (ROU Lease Liability) 9.44 –

TOTAL 43.89 43.72

` Crore
NOTE NO. 21	 “NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “PROVISIONS”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

Provision for Employee Benefits
i.	 Leave Salary Encashment 101.25 98.95
ii.	 Post Retirement Medical Benefits 87.03 71.64
iii.	 Gratuity – 10.57
iv.	 Long Service Award 0.27 0.30

TOTAL 188.55 181.46

` Crore
NOTE NO. 22	 “NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

a.	 Deferred Tax Liability:
i.	 Depreciation 286.17 392.47
ii.	 Fair value of Investments 18.06 24.29
iii.	 Revenue from TDR 8.39 8.39
iv.	 Other timing differences 0.77 1.01

Total 313.39 426.16
b.	 Deferred Tax Asset:

i.	 Provision for doubtful debts/claims/advances 11.95 16.49
ii.	 Provision for obsolescence of stores 4.14 9.65
iii.	 Provision for diminution in value of investments 7.07 12.37
iv.	 Expenditure allowable on payment basis 62.22 92.91
v.	 MAT Credit – 6.01
vi.	 Other timing differences 31.07 8.40

Total 116.45 145.83
Net Deferred Tax Liability 196.94 280.33
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` Crore

NOTE NO. 23	 “OTHER LIABILITIES” AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

I	 NON CURRENT
Others
i.	 Advance rent Received 23 A 4.44 6.99
ii.	 Government Grants 23 B 0.98 1.28
iii.	 Deferred Deposit 33.69 30.01

TOTAL OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES (I) 39.11 38.28
II	 CURRENT

(a)	 Revenue received in advance
Income received in advance from Customers 48.40 39.98

(b)	 Other Advances
Retention money 12.50 12.50

(c)	 Other Liabilities:
i.	 Advance Rent Received 23 A 2.55 2.55
ii.	 Government Grants 23 B 0.30 0.32
iii.	 Deferred Deposit 4.59 4.53
iv.	 Statutory Dues:

a.	 Withholding taxes 13.08 12.69
b.	 GST Payable – 0.18

v.	 Others 0.09 0.07
20.61 20.34

TOTAL OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES (II) 81.51 72.82

` Crore
NOTE NO. 23A	 “ADVANCE RENT RECEIVED” AS AT 

31.03.2020
AS AT 

31.03.2019
At at 1st April 9.54 12.34
Received / (Repaid) during the year – (0.46)
Released to the statement of profit and loss 2.55 2.34
As at 31st March 6.99 9.54
Current 2.55 2.55
Non-current 4.44 6.99

` Crore
NOTE NO. 23B	 “GOVERNMENT GRANTS” AS AT 

31.03.2020
AS AT 

31.03.2019
At at 1st April 1.60 1.41
Received / (Repaid) during the year – 0.49
Released to the statement of profit and loss 0.32 0.30
As at 31st March 1.28 1.60
Current 0.30 0.32
Non-current 0.98 1.28
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` Crore

NOTE NO. 24	 “CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “FINANCIAL LIABILITIES – BORROWINGS”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

(a)	 Loans Repayable on Demand
I.	 Secured
a.	 From Banks*

i.	 Cash Credit 82.00 18.54
ii.	 Working Capital Demand Loan 1230.66 2398.17

(includes Rupee Loans amounting to ̀  910.66 crore (P.Y. ̀  788.17 crore) from Punjab National Bank 
under Special Banking Arrangement against the subsidy receivables on Urea and P&K Fertilizers 
from Govt of India. The Bank has charged interest at 6.15% per annum which is totally payable by 
Govt. of India (PY 8.20% out of which 7.72% pa paid by Govt of India directly to the Bank). ̀  0.04 
crore pertaining to SBA of year 2018-19 (PY ` 0.16 crore) has been charged as interest expense 
in the statement of Profit and Loss. This loan is secured by hypothecation of subsidy receivables 
upto ̀  910.66 crore (PY ̀  788.17 crore) from Govt. of India. This loan is repayable within 60 days.

Total Secured 1312.66 2416.71
II.	 Unsecured:
a.	 From Banks

i.	 Foreign currency loans from banks-Buyers Credit ** 215.21 118.76
ii.	 Rupee loans 1349.00 –

1564.21 118.76
b.	 Other Loans

Commercial Paper *** 1200.00 350.00
Total Unsecured 2764.21 468.76
TOTAL 4076.87 2885.47

*Cash Credit and Working Capital Demand Loan from banks carrying interest in the range of 7.00% to 8.55% 
per annum are secured by hypothecation of entire Company’s current assets including all stocks, book debts and 
other moveable assets, both present and future.
**Unsecured Foreign Currency Loans from Banks are in the form of Buyers Credit and carry interest in the 
range of 2.00% to 3.00% per annum. These loans are repayable within 180 days.
***Unsecured Commercial Papers carry interest in the range of 5.48% to 7.55% per annum. The outstanding 
commercial papers are repayable by June 2020.

` Crore
NOTE NO. 25	 “CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “FINANCIAL LIABILITIES – TRADE PAYABLES”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

Trade Payables (including Acceptances)*
(A)	 Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 36.81 24.67
(B)	 Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 959.92 1129.13

TOTAL 996.73 1153.80
Trade payables are normally non-interest bearing and are usually settled within 30-days from the date of receipt 
of invoice unless they are contracted with specific credit terms as applicable.
* Acceptances include arrangements where operational suppliers of goods and services are initially paid by 
banks while the Company continues to recognise the liability till settlement with the banks which are normally 
effected within a period of 180 days amounting to ` 48.51 crores (P.Y. ` 65.06 crores)
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` Crore

NOTE NO. 26	 “CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “FINANCIAL LIABILITIES – OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

i. Current maturities of long term debt (Refer Note No. 18) 145.24 151.12

ii. Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 3.74 7.44

iii. Unclaimed dividend * 0.87 0.88

iv. Creditors on Capital Account 76.61 51.10

v. Standing Deposit from Customers 45.55 47.33

vi. Trade Deposit from Customers 73.88 76.45

vii. Earnest Money Deposit & Security Deposit from Vendors 78.62 56.11

viii. Other Payables - Tie ups 7.84 6.72

ix. Ex-gratia & employee benefits 48.22 48.87

x. Derivatives not designated as Hedges (MTM loss payable) – 5.16

xi. ROU Lease Liability 1.97 –

TOTAL 482.54 451.18

* No amounts are due & payable to Investor Education & Protection Fund

` Crore

NOTE NO. 27	 “CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “PROVISIONS”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

Provision for Employee Benefits

i.   Leave Salary Encashment 99.32 111.32

ii.   Post Retirement Medical Benefits 7.13 6.10

iii.   Ex-gratia / Gratuity Payable 16.53 24.37

iv.   Payable to Provident Fund 19.07 –

v.   Long Service Award 0.09 0.04

TOTAL 142.14 141.83

` Crore

NOTE NO. 28	 “CURRENT LIABILITIES” 
	 “CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES NET”

AS AT 
31.03.2020

AS AT 
31.03.2019

Provision for Taxation less Advance tax 53.25 –

TOTAL 53.25 –
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` Crore

NOTE NO. 29	 “REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS” Year Ended 
31.03.2020

Year Ended 
31.03.2019

1.	 Sales
	 A.	M anufactured Products 29A

Fertilizers 2369.57 2214.11
Industrial Products 660.94 955.16

3030.51 3169.27
	 B.	 Bought-out Products 29A

Fertilizers 642.74 252.85
Net Sales 3673.25 3422.12

2.	 Other Operating Revenues
Subsidy on Urea & Complex Fertilizers 29B 6000.73 5447.18
Sale of Scrap 1.87 3.46
Management Fees -For Services rendered 10.67 9.65
Margin on Tie- ups 11.43 3.06

TOTAL 6024.70 5463.35
	 Revenue from Operations 9697.95 8885.47
*Subsidy includes ` 320.33 crore (P.Y. ` 48.13 crore) in respect of earlier years, determined during 
the year

` Crore
NOTE NO. 29A	 “SALES - PRODUCT WISE BREAK-UP” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

1	 Manufactured
	 A.	 Fertilizers

Urea
Suphala 15 : 15 : 15 1119.48 943.82
Urea / Neem coated Urea 1216.55 1235.89
Others 33.54 34.40

2369.57 2214.11
	 B.	 Industrial Products

Ammonia 123.41 240.84
Methylamines 72.47 89.15
Ammonium Nitrate Melt 249.73 296.10
Others 208.37 329.07

660.94 955.16
2	 Bought-out Products

Imported Di Ammonium Phosphate 350.61 122.90
Imported Muriate of Potash 155.46 3.88
Imported NPK 10:26:26 122.48 114.94
Others 14.19 11.13

642.74 252.85
TOTAL 3673.25 3422.12
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` Crore

NOTE NO. 29B	 “SUBSIDY ON UREA & COMPLEX FERTILIZERS” Year Ended 
31.03.2020

Year Ended 
31.03.2019

1.	M anufactured Fertilizers
Price 5250.17 4839.17
Freight 443.47 487.95

5693.64 5327.12
2.	 Bought-out Fertilizers

Price 265.44 96.10
Freight 41.65 23.96

307.09 120.06
TOTAL 6000.73 5447.18

` Crore
NOTE NO. 30	 “OTHER INCOME” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

1.	 Interest Income
On Loans to Employees 0.08 0.13
On Deposits with Bank and Others 3.42 3.48
On Income Tax Refund 2.68 5.11
On Sales Tax Refund – 4.74
From Customers 3.71 3.39

From Others (includes ` 30.94 crore dues of DOF) 31.52 0.92
TOTAL 41.41 17.77

2.	 Dividend Income 0.20 0.32
3.	 Other Income

Profit on sale of fixed assets (Net) 0.10 2.83
Bad debts recovered 2.16 1.76
Rent received, recovery of electricity etc. 39.74 33.38
Lease compensation of railway siding 0.21 0.21
Government Grants (Refer Note No. 23B) 0.32 0.30
Amortisation of Deferred Deposits 6.13 4.79
Miscellaneous Income 38.40 20.64

87.06 63.91
Less: Transfer to Research and Development Expenses (Refer Note No. 37C) (0.02) (0.01)

TOTAL 128.65 81.99

` Crore
NOTE NO. 31	 “COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Raw Materials 31A 3671.08 3767.90
Packing Materials 105.15 112.11
Less : Transferred to Research & Development (Refer Note No. 37C) (0.01) –

TOTAL 3776.22 3880.01
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` Crore

NOTE NO. 31A	 “ITEMWISE BREAKUP OF MATERIALS CONSUMED” Year Ended 
31.03.2020

Year Ended 
31.03.2019

RAW MATERIALS
Rock Phosphate 74.08 67.73
Di-Ammonium Phosphate 7.49 –
Mono-Ammonium Phosphate 306.58 337.10
Muriate of Potash 316.03 264.66
Natural Gas 2873.76 3000.97
Others 93.14 97.44

SUB TOTAL 3671.08 3767.90
Less : Transferred to Research and Development (Refer Note No. 37C) (0.01) –

TOTAL 3671.07 3767.90

` Crore
NOTE NO. 32	 “PURCHASES OF STOCK IN TRADE” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Imported Di Ammonium Phosphate 166.09 429.02
Imported Muriate of Potash 10.00 212.17
NPK 10:26:26 137.90 143.73
Others 18.64 13.23

SUB TOTAL 332.63 798.15
Less: Transferred to Plant for internal consumption

Imported DAP / MOP (38.20) –
TOTAL 294.43 798.15

` Crore
NOTE NO. 33	 “CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF 
	 FINISHED GOODS & STOCK IN TRADE”

Year Ended 
31.03.2020

Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Opening Stock
Finished Goods 33A 387.72 278.96
Intermediary Products 35.41 33.57
By-Products 4.42 7.02
Stock in trade 33A 497.53 0.26

Sub-Total 925.08 319.81
Closing Stock

Finished Goods 33B 283.83 387.72
Intermediary Products 28.90 35.41
By-Products 5.77 4.42
Stock in trade 33B 3.33 497.53

Sub-Total 321.83 925.08
TOTAL 603.25 (605.27)
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` Crore

NOTE NO. 33A	 “OPENING STOCK - PRODUCT WISE BREAK-UP” Year Ended 
31.03.2020

Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Finished Goods
1.	M anufactured

A.	 Fertilizers
Urea (Trombay) 22.63 32.50
Urea (Thal) 172.13 147.53
Complex Fertilizers 170.14 77.48
Others 16.40 19.92

B.	 Industrial Products
Methanol 1.44 0.03
Concentrated Nitric Acid 0.20 0.10
Ammonium Bi-carbonate 0.27 0.21
Sodium Nitrate 0.51 0.25
Sodium Nitrite 0.57 0.36
Methylamines 0.93 0.38
Ammonium Nitrate Melt 0.02 0.02
Dimethyl Acetamide 1.71 0.03
Argon Gas / Liquid 0.69 0.06
Formic Acid 0.07 0.08
Others 0.01 0.01

387.72 278.96
2.	 Bought-out Products

Fertilizers
Imported Di Ammonium Phosphate 276.90 0.05
Imported Muriate of Potash 212.17 –
Imported NPK 20:20:0 8.46 –
Sulphate of Potash – 0.11
Others – 0.10

497.53 0.26
TOTAL 885.25 279.22

` Crore
NOTE NO. 33B	 “CLOSING STOCK - PRODUCT WISE BREAK-UP” Year Ended 

31.03.2020
Year Ended 
31.03.2019

Finished Goods
1.	M anufactured
A.	 Fertilizers

Urea (Trombay) 46.26 22.63
Urea (Thal) 130.17 172.13
Complex Fertilizers 87.24 170.14
Others 15.92 16.40

B.	 Industrial Products
Methanol 0.12 1.44
Concentrated Nitric Acid 0.24 0.20
Ammonium Bi-carbonate – 0.27
Sodium Nitrate 0.22 0.51
Sodium Nitrite 0.02 0.57
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` Crore
Sr 
No. Particulars As at 31.03.2020 

(Audited)
As at 31.03.2019 

(Audited)
6 Equity 456.79 30.33
7 Proportion of the Company’s ownership 33.33% 33.33%
8 Carrying amount of the investment 152.26 10.11
9 Income 5.78 0.95
10 Cost of materials consumed – –
11 Depreciation and amortization expense 0.15 0.05
12 Finance costs – –
13 Employee benefits expenses – –
14 Other Expenses 8.67 19.63
15 Profit/(Loss) from continuing operations (3.04) (18.73)
16 Total comprehensive income for the year (3.02) (18.74)
17 Company’s Share of profit / loss for the year (1.01) (6.25)

57.		  Disclosure of additional information pertaining to the Parent Company and Joint Ventures as on 31st March, 
2020

` Crore

Name of Entity in the Group

Net Assets i.e. Total Assets 
minus Total Liabilities Share in Profit or Loss Share in Other 

Comprehensive Income
Share in Total 

Comprehensive Income
As % of 

consolidated 
net assets

Amount 
(` in crore)

As % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

Amount 
(` in crore)

As % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

Amount 
(` in crore)

As % of 
consolidated 
profit or loss

Amount 
(` in crore)

Parent Company
Rashtriya Chemicals and Fertilizers 
Limited

95.21 3026.76 100.49 208.15 100.00 (5.37) 100.50 202.78

Joint Venture (as per Equity Method)
Indian
FACT –RCF Building Products Ltd. – – – – – – –
Urvarak Videsh Limited – 0.02 – (0.01) – – (0.01)
Talcher Fertilizers Limited 4.79 152.26 (0.49) (1.01) – (0.50) (1.01)
Total 100.00 3179.04 100.00 207.13 100.00 (5.37) 100.00 201.76

58.		  Contingent Assets:
		  As per the Arbitration award received in its favor for the compensation claimed in respect of surrender of land to 

Mumbai Metropolitan Regional Development Authority (MMRDA) on 23rd May, 2018, Company is eligible for 
compensation either in the form of cash / TDRs amounting to ` 75.17 crore along with interest over and above 
the entitled compensation as recommended by Arbitration award. Company has filed an execution application, 
however MMRDA has obtained stay against the same from Mumbai High Court subject to deposit of 25% of the 
disputed amount with the Court.

59.		  Exceptional items:
		  a)	 Exceptional item consist of :

` Crore

Particulars Year ended 
31.03.2020

Year ended 
31.03.2019

Loss / (Gain) on Revaluation of Development Right Certificate received / receivable from 
MMRDA towards surrender of land in earlier year.

64.84 21.58

Fair value gain on account of valuation of Development Right Certificate receivable from 
Municipal Corporation of Greater Mumbai towards surrender of land.

35.33 (45.02)

Net Exceptional Expense / (Income) 100.17 (23.44)
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			   The loss on account of fair valuation of Transferable Development Rights (TDRs) received /accrued has been 
reported as exceptional item amounting to ` 100.17 crore. Hitherto, as at 31.03.2019 the Company expecting 
TDRs to be sold in the coming financial year had classified the same as Non-Current Assets Held for sale. 
Considering the current depression in the real estate segment which has been further aggravated owing to 
COVID-19 pandemic, the sale of the same is not highly probable. Accordingly as per IND AS 105, the TDRs 
cannot be classified as Non-Current Asset Held for sale and has been reclassified as investment at fair value 
of ` 31.23 crore for the year ended 31.03.2020.

60.	 Disclosure as per IND AS 116
` Crore

Sr. 
No. Particulars As at 

01.04.2019
As at 

31.03.2019
Details pertaining to Lease Arrangement considered as ROU

1 Total Gross Lease liability 14.42 18.35
2 Total Discounted lease liability 10.12 11.41
3 Cash Outflow due to Lease Liability – 3.28
4 Interest charged to PL – 0.90
5 Depreciation charged to PL – 2.74
6 Cancellations charged to PL – –
7 Maturity Profile of Lease Liability

On Demand – –
Less Than 3 Months 0.63 0.56
3 to 12 Months 1.93 1.25
1 to 5 years 3.48 4.70
5 Years & Above 4.08 4.90
Grand Total 10.12 11.41
Details pertaining exemptions availed as Short Term Lease Arrangement and not considered above

8 Total Short Term Lease Liability 0.17
9 During the year charged to PL – 4.77
10 Disclosure of undiscounted lease receivables wrt to assets given on Operating lease as a lessor

On Demand – –
Less Than 3 Months 2.02 1.93
3 to 12 Months 10.62 9.72
1 to 5 years 17.15 7.98
5 Years & Above 1.91 1.56
Grand Total 31.70 21.19

		  Refer Note no 1, 20, 26, 43

61.		  Consolidated Employee benefit disclosures, lease disclosures, impairment disclosures and deferred tax liability 
(net), are not materially different from those disclosed in the standalone financial statements of the Company.

62.	 	 Consolidated financial statements were prepared based on Management Certified Financial Statements of joint 
ventures as they are not material to the Company and the same was approved by Board of Directors on 29.05.2020. 
As per directions received from Comptroller & Auditor General of India vide letter no 894/PDAAFWR/A/cs/Co/
RCFL/2020-21/222 dated 18.09.2020, Company has been asked to resubmit Consolidated Financial Statements 
based on audited Financial Statements in respect of the joint venture entities viz FACT-RCF Building Products 
Limited, Talcher Fertilizers Limited and Urvarak Videsh Limited. On receipt of audited Financial Statements of 
above mentioned joint ventures, Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company stands duly revised.
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		  The summary of Impact of the Consolidated Financial Statements based on the audited Financial Statements of 
the respective Joint ventures is as under: -

` Crore

Particulars Considering 
Un-audited

Considering 
Audited

1 Share of Profit/Loss of Associates/ Joint ventures (1.02) (1.02)
2 Other Equity 2627.35 2627.35

		  Other disclosures relating to summarized financial information of Company’s investment FACT –RCF Builidng 
Products Ltd. and Talcher Fertlizers Ltd. stand revised, which is explained in detail in Note no. 56 above.

63.		  The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution passed by the 
Board of Directors on 9th October, 2020.

64.		  The financial statements as approved by the Board of Directors are subject to audit by Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India and final approval by its Shareholders.

65.		  Covid-19 Impact Analysis:
		  a)	 For the year ended 31st march, 2020 operation of the Company were scaled down during the last fortnight 

of the year. The Company was quick in restoring the operations ensuring health, safety and well-being of its 
employees. This has not impacted the operations and results for the year ended 31st March, 2020.

		  b)	 For the year financial year 2020-21 adverse impact is anticipated in the following areas:

		  i)	 Manpower - Own employees as well as Contract labour downtime due movement restrictions and health 
issues.

		  ii)	 Delay in commissioning of projects and the ensuing benefits due to delayed supply of equipments and 
restrictions in movement of personnel from foreign countries / within India required for the project.

		  iii)	 Rationalization of Government expenditures may result in delayed settlement of subsidies straining liquidity 
and working capital.

66.		  The figures of previous year have been re-arranged and regrouped wherever necessary and/or practicable 
to make them comparable with those of the current year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors As per our report of even date attached
RASHTRIYA CHEMICALS AND FERTILIZERS LTD. For Chhajed & Doshi For Ford Rhodes Parks & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants
(S. C. Mudgerikar) Firm Regn. No. 101794W Firm Regn. No. 102860W / W100089
Chairman & Managing Director
DIN : 03498837 (Kiran K. Daftary) (Astha Kariya)

Partner Partner
(Umesh Dongre) Membership No: 010279 Membership No: 122491
Director (Finance)
DIN : 08039073 Dated : 9th October, 2020

Place: Mumbai
(J. B. Sharma)
Company Secretary
Membership No: FCS5030

Dated : 9th October, 2020
Place: Mumbai
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Annexure-1 

CONSOLIDATED SEGMENTWISE REVENUE & RESULTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH 2020

` Crore
Sr. 
No Particulars Fertilizers Trading Industrial 

Chemicals Unallocated Total

SEGMENT REVENUE
i. Sales ( Incl. Subsidy wherever applicable ) 8063.21 949.83 660.94 – 9673.98
ii. Other operating Income 12.97 0.11 0.22 10.67 23.97

Total Revenue 8076.18 949.94 661.16 10.67 9697.95
SEGMENT RESULT

i. Segment Results 431.45 91.16 (11.10) (112.17) 399.34
ii. Share of profit / (loss) of Joint Ventures (1.02) – – – (1.02)
iii. Interest Expense 237.82
iv. Interest Income 41.41
v. Profit before Tax 201.91
vi. Tax - Current 71.72
vii Deferred Tax Liability / ( Asset ) (77.16)
viii. Tax adjustments of earlier years (excess) / short 0.22
ix. Net Profit 207.13

OTHER INFORMATION
i. Segment Assets 7698.54 190.10 322.73 2081.90 10293.27
ii. Segment Liabilities 1901.25 0.08 84.16 5128.74 7114.23

Other Disclosures
iii. Investments in Joint Ventures 152.28 – – – 152.28
iv. Capital Expenditure 461.45 – 2.84 3.27 467.56
v. Depreciation 125.36 – 38.89 4.27 168.52
vi. Impairment – – 2.86 – 2.86
vii. Other Non Cash Expenses 8.03 – 0.00 (0.01) 8.02
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CONSOLIDATED SEGMENTWISE REVENUE & RESULTS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH 2019

` Crore
Sr. 
No Particulars Fertilizers Trading Industrial 

Chemicals Unallocated Total

SEGMENT REVENUE

i. Sales ( Incl. Subsidy wherever applicable ) 7541.23 372.91 955.16 – 8869.30
ii. Other operating Income 5.32 0.14 1.07 9.64 16.17

Total Revenue 7546.55 373.05 956.23 9.64 8885.47
SEGMENT RESULT

i. Segment Results 277.76 36.80 60.27 (1.50) 373.33
ii. Share of profit / (loss) of Joint Ventures (6.25) – (6.25)
iii. Interest Expense 155.85
iv. Interest Income 17.77
v. Profit before Tax 229.00
vi. Tax - Current 57.12
vii Deferred Tax Liability / ( Asset ) 56.16
viii. Tax adjustments of earlier years (excess) / short (17.20)
ix. Net Profit 132.92

OTHER INFORMATION

i. Segment Assets 7609.02 675.31 353.09 276.86 8914.28
ii. Segment Liabilities 1560.20 377.66 119.98 3827.95 5885.79

Other Disclosures
iii. Investments in Joint Ventures 10.14 – – – 10.14
iv. Capital Expenditure 332.26 – 4.68 6.62 343.56
v. Depreciation 120.28 – 31.64 4.11 156.03
vi. Impairment – – – – –
vii. Other Non Cash Expenses 10.47 – 0.01 19.51 29.99

*	 Finance income and costs, and Corporate expenses are not allocated to individual segments as the same are managed 
on a group basis.

*	 Current taxes, deferred taxes and write back of excess tax provisions are also not allocated to those segments as they 
are also managed on a group basis.

*	 Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment properties.
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REONCILIATIONS TO AMOUNTS REFLECTED IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

` Crore
Sr. 
No Particulars AS AT 

31.03.2020
AS AT 

31.03.2019
I OPERATING REVENUE

Segment Revenue
India 9686.95 8875.83
Outside India 0.33 –
Segment Reveue 9687.28 8875.83
Unallocated - Management fees 10.67 9.64
Total Operating Revenue 9697.95 8885.47

II RECONCILIATION OF PROFITS
Segment Profit 510.49 368.58
Interest Income 41.41 17.77

551.9 386.35
less: Finance Costs 237.82 155.85
Corporate Expenses (net) 112.17 1.50
Profit Before Tax 201.91 229

III RECONCILIATION OF ASSETS
Segment Assets 8211.37 8637.42
Investments 263.00 86.34
Corprate Assets + CWIP 24.42 25.45
Non Current Tax Asset 109.60 105.15
Derivatives not designtaed as hedges (MTM Gain Receivable) 2.67 0.14
Cash & Bank balances 1.09 3.04
Other assets * 1681.12 56.74
Total Assets 10293.27 8914.28

IV RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
Segment Liabilities 1985.49 2057.84
Borrowings long term 600.91 425.11
Current maturities of long term Loans 145.24 151.12
Borrowings Short term 4075.78 2880.96
Deferred Tax Liabilities 196.94 280.33
Current Tax Liability 53.25 –
Derivatives not designtaed as hedges 0.03 –
Other current financial liabilities 7.23 45.33
Other non current financial liabilities – 0.09
Other Liabilities 49.36 45.01

7114.23 5885.79

* Includes an amount of ` 1598.65 Crore receivable from Government of India towards Import of Urea on Government 
Account (P.Y. NIL)
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